PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETING
TAKE NOTICE THAT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE
Board of Directors of
Reunion Ranch Water Control and Improvement District
Will be held at the offices of Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC,
12912 Hill Country Blvd., Suite F-232, Austin, Texas 78738 (SEE NOTES BELOW)

in Travis County, Texas, commencing at 3:00 p.m. on August 16, 2022, to consider and act upon
any or all of the following:

PLEASE NOTE: THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD IN PERSON AT THE ABOVE LOCATION AND AT
LEAST THREE DIRECTORS WILL BE PHYSICALLY PRESENT AT THE ABOVE LOCATION. ANY
PERSON IS WELCOME AT THE MEETING LOCATION. HOWEVER, AS AN OPTION, MEMBERS OF THE
PUBLIC MAY ACCESS THIS MEETING BY TELEPHONE AND PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY
CALLING ONE OF THE FOLLOWING TOLL-FREE NUMBERS: (877) 853-5247 OR (888) 788-0099 AND
ENTERING THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: MEETING ID: 848 1143 6678 AND PASSWORD: 723569.
USING THE ZOOM APP YOU CAN ALSO ACCESS THE MEETING ON YOUR SMART PHONE OR
COMPUTER BY ENTERING THE FOREGOING MEETING ID AND PASSWORD.

PLEASE SEE THE DISTRICT’S WEBSITE AT WWW.RRWCID.ORG FOR THE MEETING PACKET.

AGENDA

—

Call to order
2. Roll call of Directors

3. Public Comments
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors conceming any issuc Lhat is nol on the agenda. The
response of the Board to uny comment under this heading is limited to making a statement of specific factual information in response to
the inquiry, or, reciting existing policy in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation of the issues is limited to a proposal to place it on the
agenda for a later meeling. Each speaker shall be limited 1o 3 minutes, unless more than 10 tmembers of the public wish to speak during
this meeting. In such case, speakers offering public comment shall he limited to | minute each.

Note: Members of the public wishing (o address the Board of Directors on specific agenda items will be required to indicate the agenda iterms on
which they wish o speak. They will be given an opportunity to speak when the item is called and prior to consideration by the Board. Such
comments shall be hmited to 3 minutes per speaker for each agenda item. f more than 10 members of the public wish to speak, all speakers shall
be limited to | minute cach per item per person.

4. Minutes of prior meetings (Dennis Daniel)
5. Developer’s reports and requests for action (Mike Moyer & Frank Krasovec)

a. Hays Reunion Ranch LP building forecast

b. Taylor Morrison

i. Conveyance of directors’ lot (Bill Flickinger)
6. Financial Reports and request for authorization for payments of bills (Allen Douthitt)
Proposed budget 2022/2023 (Gary Grass & Allen Douthitt)
8. Order Setting the District's Proposed Tax Rate for 2022 and Providing for Publication of
Notice Thereof (Garry Kimball & Bill Flickinger)

9. Items from the Board
Requests for common area modifications (Ron Meyer)
Public Hearing on Amended Drought Contingency Plan (Dennis Daniel)
Amended Drought Contingency Plan (Gary Grass)
Variances to Drought Contingency Plan requirements (Gary Grass)
Committee Reports

B

o a0 o



1. Communications (Terri Purdy)
ii. Utility Operations (Dennis Daniel)
ii. Land Use & Water Quality (Ron Meyer)
iv. Finance, Budget & Audit (Gary Grass)
v. Water Conservation & Drought Management (Gary Grass)
vi. Operations Contract Review (John Genter)
vii. Wastewater Effluent Reuse (Dennis Daniel)
10. Engineer’s Report and requested approvals (Andrea Wyatt & Evan Parker)
a. Wastewater treatment plant
1. Wastewater Flows and Trends
ii. Record Drawings Update
iii. Odor Control Update and Recommended Improvements
iv. Noise Issues and Abatement Options
v. Effluent Irrigation Improvements and Authorizations
Emergency Management Plan(s)
Long-term Improvements and Asset Management Plan
Approvals Related to Ongoing Construction Contracts
Approvals to Upcoming Construction Contracts
Miscellaneous
11. Operations and Maintenance Report and requested approvals (Ronja Keys)
Administrative
Wastewater treatment plant and effluent subsurface irrigation
Wastewater collection system
Water distribution system
Stormwater conveyance and pond maintenance
Customer matters, complaints, reports and updates
Customer billing and delinquencies
Authorizations for expenditures related to contracts, repairs, replacements,
operations improvements and maintenance
12. Attorney Report and requested actions (Bill Flickinger)
a. TCEQ Agreed Enforcement Order (Bill Flickinger)
b. Open Records Request by Save Our Springs (Hunter Hudson)
13. Adjourn (Dennis Daniel)

me ao o

RO Ao o

The Board may go into closed session at any time when permitied by Chapter 551, Government Code. Before going
into closed session a quorum of the Board must be assembled in the meeting room, the meeting must be convened as
an open meeting pursuant to proper notice, and the presiding officer must announce that a closed session will be held
and must identify the sections of Chapter 551, Government Code, authorizing the closed session.

(SEAL) //..;:

rd

>
Attorney for the District

************************************************************************t*******************************

The District is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Reasonable modifications and equal access to
communications will be provided upon request. Please call Jeniffer Concienne, Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC, at (512) 476-6604,
for information.



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF
REUNION RANCH WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF HAYS §

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Reunion Ranch Water Control and
Improvement District, open to the public, was held at 3:00 p.m. on July 19, 2022 at Willatt &
Flickinger, PLLC, 12912 Hill Country Blvd., Ste. F-232, Austin, Texas 78738, pursuant to notice
duly given in accordance with law.

il CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order.

2. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS

A roll call of the Directors was taken. The Directors present were:

Dennis Daniel — President (Via Zoom)
Terri Purdy — Vice President

Ron Meyer - Secretary

Gary Grass — Assistant Secretary
John Genter — Assistant Secretary

thus, constituting a quorum.

Also present at the meeting were Hunter Hudson, Greg Szuman and Jeniffer Concienne
with Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC, Andrea Wyatt and Bryce Canady with Murfee Engineering,
Allen Douthitt with Bott & Douthitt and Ronja Keyes with Inframark, LLC.

Attending via Zoom were President Dennis Daniel, Bill Flickinger with Willatt &
Flickinger, PLLC, Evan Parker with Murfee Engineering, residents Blake Gentry (HOA
Architectural Control Chair) and Pattie Webster (HOA Landscaping Committee member), Mike
Moyer with Taylor Morrison and Daniel Heyl with Heyl Homes.

3. CITIZEN COMMENTS

There were no citizen comments at this time.

4. MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETINGS

Assistant Secretary John Genter had revisions to the minutes, which were provided to
Jeniffer Concienne. Assistant Secretary Gary Grass also had a revision. Vice President Terri



Purdy entertained motion. Motion was made by Assistant Secretary John Genter and seconded
by Assistant Secretary Gary Grass to approve the June 21, 2022 meeting minutes as corrected.
The motion carried unanimously.

5. STATE OF DISASTER DECLARED DUE TO DROUGHT

Vice President Terri Purdy discussed Governor Greg Abbott’s state of disaster
declaration due to the extreme drought. Attorney Bill Flickinger advised that the District should
track all costs related to the drought because it may be possible to get reimbursed for those costs
from federal or state funds. There probably will not be any costs, but it a good idea to keep it in
mind.

6. PUBLIC HEARING ON DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN

7 AMENDED DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN

8. VARIANCES TO DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN REQUIREMENTS

Items 6, 7 and 8 were discussed together.

Attorney Bill Flickinger discussed the process for the public hearing, comments and
discussion of the Drought Contingency Plan. Engineer Andrea Wyatt has reviewed the District’s
Drought Contingency Plan in relation to the WTC PUA’s Plan to match it up.

Secretary Ron Meyer asked if the District is required to have its own plan if the water
supplier, which is WT'C PUA has one. Attorney Bill Flickinger advised that by contract, the
District is required to have its own Drought Contingency Plan to enforce watering restrictions
against the District’s customers.

Engineer Andrea Wyatt discussed the draft Drought Contingency Plan and summary.
Attorney Bill Flickinger indicated that the coordination between the District and WTC PUA needs
to be improved. The District should be notified directly when the WTC PUA plans on amending
its plan or implements a new stage. There was detailed discussion of the stages, triggers, measures
and consumption goals throughout the plan. Resident Blake Gentry noted that the WTC PUA has
5 stages, whereas the District only has 4 stages.

**Bookkeeper Allen Douthitt needed to get to another engagement, therefore, the Board
moved to the Bookkeeper’s report at this time.

**President Dennis Daniel returned to the Public Hearing on the Drought Contingency
Plan. Vice President Terri Purdy opened the public hearing on the Drought Continency Plan.

Vice President Terri Purdy stated that the projects which are currently permitted, will not
be subject to the WTC PUA’s Drought Contingency Plan measures. Daniel Heyl addressed the
Board and stated that he is a homebuilder in the private section within the District and has many
projects going on. Daniel Heyl would like to discuss the watering restrictions in regard to his

L



ongoing projects and pleaded for the District to not stop his progress on his projects. Blake Gentry
and Patti Webster discussed how the WTC PUA and the District’s plans do not match and also
asked the Board to please not revoke the current permitted projects. Blake Gentry addressed the
Board as well. He is at the end of an 8-month pool project. He has already reduced the
landscaping on his project. On June 10" he received a variance for his project. If the project is
stopped now, he could lose a lot of money. Blake Gentry asked the District to please stick with
the current plan and not change it in the middle of the season. Blake Gentry applauded the Board
on moving forward with effluent irrigation for the common areas. Patti Webster stated that she
owns a construction company and discussed the contractor’s predicament in regard to the
watering restrictions. President Dennis Daniel noted that the amendment to the Drought
Contingency Plan is complicated and that the Board will continue to work through it and bring it
back to the August board meeting for approval. As of today, the District will go into Stage 3
watering restrictions. Attorney Bill Flickinger advised that the District has to make all reasonable
efforts to proceed with the plan and be as stringent as the WTC PUA’s. Attorney Bill Flickinger
recommended that all granted variances at this time should stand. Attorney Bill Flickinger will
write a letter to the WTC PUA to request that communications be improved for notifications
regarding amendments to the Drought Contingency Plan or when implementing a new stage of
the plan. President Dennis Daniel and Vice President Terri Purdy reiterated that the Board will
plan to adopt the Amended Drought Contingency Plan next month and will adhere to the District’s
Stage 3 restrictions in the meantime. Attorney Bill Flickinger noted that the Notice of Watering
Restrictions will need to be revised as well. Secretary Ron Meyer and Secretary Gary Grass
discussed enforcement of the watering restrictions. Blake Gentry commented that this is still
unclear. No further restrictions will be placed on permitted projects at this time.

After the comments above, the public hearing was closed by Vice President Terri Purdy

After detailed discussion, President Dennis Daniel recommended a motion that the
District to move to Stage 3 under the District’s current Drought Contingency Plan based upon the
WTC PUA’s movement into Stage 3 and a presumption that the WTC PUA has a rational reason
and further that any approved and authorized construction under progress today be allowed to
continue in a timely manner and not waste water. The foregoing motion was made by Assistant
Secretary Gary Grass and seconded by Secretary Ron Meyer. The motion carried unanimously.

Motion was then made by President Dennis Daniel and seconded by Assistant Secretary
Gary Grass to direct the District’s engincer and attorney to draft an Amended Drought
Contingency Plan that conforms with the concept and ideas discussed today and bring back to the
Board at the August board meeting for approval. The motion carried unanimously.

President Dennis Daniel asked that a draft be sent out for review two weeks ahead of the
board meeting.

9. BOOKKEEPER’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL AFFAIRS OF THE
DISTRICT, INCLUDING AUTHORIZATION OF PAYMENT OF BILLS

Bookkeeper Allen Douthitt discussed the financials with the Board. Mr. Douthitt also
included a summary on the variances in the financials. Mr. Douthitt discussed the budget and the

gL



goal of generating one-year of operating reserve. The budget discussion for the next fiscal year
will start next month. Since the Board did not meet last month, due to lack of quorum, payment
of the invoices will need to be ratified. There was discussion of the Environmental Solutions
invoice for the odor control unit. That unit was removed several months ago and there should not
be a payment due. Manager Ronja Keyes will look into this matter. Motion was made by
Assistant Secretary Gary Grass and seconded by Assistant Secretary John Genter to ratify last
month’s payment of invoices and per diems. The motion carried unanimously. After discussion
of the current financials, motion was made by Assistant Gary Grass and seconded by Secretary
Ron Meyer to approve payment of the invoices and per diems and authorize the two fund transfers
as discussed. The motion carried unanimously.

10. DEVELOPER’S REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE
DISTRICT, DEVELOPMENT ENTITLEMENTS, PROVISION OF WATER,
WASTEWATER AND DRAINAGE SERVICES WITHIN THE DISTRICT,
SALES OF LOTS TO BUILDERS. HOMEBUILDING WITHIN THE DISTRICT,
STATUS OF DEVELOPMENT LOANS AND ACTIONS OF THIRD PARTIES
OPPOSING OR SUPPORTING DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE DISTRICT

A. Conveyance of directors’ lot

Mike Moyer with Taylor Morrison reported that they closed on the last house a few weeks
ago. Taylor Morrison is officially done with development in Reunion Ranch. President Dennis
Daniel mentioned that the house on Katie Drive still has a blue barrier up. Mike Moyer will check
on that.

Attorney Bill Flickinger discussed the purpose of a directors’ lot. Now that the Board
consists of all residents within the District, the directors’ lot is no longer needed. There was
discussion of the directors’ lot being conveyed to the HOA with the same requirements and
conditions as the other common area lots. After discussion, motion was made by President Dennis
Daniel and seconded by Vice President Terri Purdy to request Taylor Morrison to transfer the
directors’ lot to the HOA with the same terms as the other common area lots. The motion carried
unanimously. Mike Moyer will reach out to the HOA on this matter.

11. APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION PLANS AND PAY ESTIMATES, CHANGE
ORDERS AND ACCEPTANCES OF COMPLETION WITH RESPECT TO
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

This item was not discussed.

12.  ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS AND APPROVAL. AWARD,
RECOMMENDATION AND ADMINISTRATION OF CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTS

This item was not discussed.

13. ENGINEER’S REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE
DISTRICT., DEVELOPMENT ENTITLEMENTS, PROVISION OF WATER,

4-



WASTEWATER AND DRAINAGE SERVICES WITHIN THE DISTRICT,
PENDING PERMIT APPLICATIONS., SALES OF LOTS TO BUILDERS,
HOMEBUILDING WITHIN THE DISTRICT AND PAST. PRESENT AND
FUTURE BOND ISSUES: USE OF EFFLUENT TO IRRIGATE RIGHTS-OF-
WAY AND TIMELINE FOR SAME

14. WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION
A. Odor and noise issues
B. Irrigation improvements proposal

15. IMPLEMENTATION OF LONG-TERM DISTRICT IMPROVEMENTS AND
ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN

Items 13, 14 and 15 were discussed together.

Engineer Andrea Wyatt discussed the need for a conveyor system to move solids from the
press to the dump bin. Bids were solicited and two were received. The low bid was in the amount
of $54,500 from PW Tech. A concrete pad is recommended to be installed to support the
dumpster and conveyor legs. Bollards are also recommended to be installed. This will be an
additional cost. There was discussion of the cost of the concrete pad. After discussion, motion
was made by President Dennis Daniel and seconded by Assistant Secretary Gary to accept the
engineer’s recommendation for installation of the conveyor system and for the engineer to bring
back a proposal for the concrete pad with bollards to protect the equipment. The motion carried
unanimously.

Engineer Andrea Wyatt then discussed the Engineer’s Report as included in the agenda
package.

Attached to the report is the updated figure tracking wastewater flows, which includes
calculated flow values produced per household. Engineer Andrea Wyatt advised that the flows
are still on track and are actually a little bit under what was originally projected. They are not
seeing the spikes that they saw last year and the year before.

The record drawings are still in progress for the wastewater treatment plan. Engineer
Andrea Wyatt is still waiting on the electrical engineer’s drawings.

There have not been many odor control complaints since the expansion was completed.
Evan Parker has been going to the site to try to pinpoint what the biggest issues are noticed that a
cover will finish the problem off. After rainfall, the odor comes back and then once it dries up,
the odor goes away. Putting a cover on the dumpster seems to be a good solution. Engineer
Andrea Wyatt has provided some options to Inframark on covers and costs. There is a big range
in costs for these covers. A sectional cover seems to be a good option. Manager Ronja Keyes
advised they can work with whatever the Board decides. President Dennis Daniel recommended
the sectional cover and asked that the operator attempt to keep the sections in place as much as
possible, removing a section when necessary for the conveyor to work and drop into it but to keep
it covered as much as possible, particularly during inclement weather when sludge disposing is

-5-



suspended. After discussion, motion was made by President Dennis Daniel and seconded by
Assistant Gary Grass to move forward with the sectional cover as discussed. The motion carried
unanimously. President Dennis Daniel amended his motion to include a cost of the sectional
cover up to $2,000. Assistant Secretary Gary Grass seconded that amendment. The motion
carried was carried unanimously. This action will go through Inframark. Vice President Terri
Purdy would like to get moving on this before the rain eventually starts back up.

Engineer Andrea Wyatt discussed the effluent sampling for turbidity and BODs for the
210 permit limits. In regard to the effluent irrigation design, updating the skid with a jockey
pump has required a few changes to the original design and she is putting together bid documents
as quickly as possible. She is hopes to be done soon with this project. There was discussion of
delegating authorization to the committee to proceed instead of waiting until the next board
meeting. This will be discussed under the committee assignments.

In connection with the Emergency Preparedness Plan, there still have not been any
comments made by the TCEQ. The 90-day review and comment period has expired.

Engineer Andrea Wyatt is still working on the Wastewater Emergency Response Plan
with Inframark. She would really like to see some committee input to make sure that the
documents conform with what the Board wants.

A noise complaint was received on June 21% from a resident on Jayne Cove. Evan Parker
visited the site and to record the observe the noise. A resident also provided a recording of the
noise. It appears that the noise is coming from the odor control blowers, which are always on.
Engineer Andrea Wyatt reported that one of the units had a motor failure recently, but that the
noise continues. Manager Ronja Keyes will discuss the possibility of the noise being from an air
leak. The equipment representative has visited the site to evaluate the units. If the sound is
bouncing, this needs to be fixed as soon as possible. Engineer Andrea Wyatt reported that they
are in constant communication with the residents to keep them up to date on the progress.
President Dennis Daniel asked to keep the communications very direct and to give the resident
an update as well. He does not want this to be a nuisance in the cul-de-sac. Assistant Secretary
Gary Grass asked what has changed that the residents are now hearing the noise. It is possible
that residents believed the noise was from the ongoing construction at first. Vice President Terri
Purdy recently called in a noise complaint into Inframark for what sounded like a high-pitch
alarm.

Engineer Andrea Wyatt discussed the District’s capital improvement chart. The chart has
been updated to include a heading on estimated completion and final completion date. The Mary
Elise Pond aerator project has been completed. The 210 Irrigation skid cover cost should be
updated to the total amount of the project. A new table will be submitted with the upcoming
budget on new projects. Assistant Gary Grass discussed the budgeting for the 210 irrigation
project.



16. EFFLUENT DISPOSAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE HOA AND DISTRICT

Attorney Bill Flickinger reported that the Effluent Disposal Contract with the HOA is in
the agenda package and ready for Board approval. The 10% slope provision was removed from
the contract and Exhibit B was revised to include a description of the irrigation areas instead of
attaching a License Agreement with Hays County. The HOA advised that Hays County does not
require a License Agreement to irrigate some of the common areas. Assistant Secretary John
Genter stated that the HOA approved the Effluent Disposal Contract at its recent board meeting
subject to removal of the 10% slope provision. After discussion, motion was made by President
Dennis Daniel and seconded by Assistant Secretary John Genter to approve the Effluent Disposal
Contract between the District and HOA as presented. The motion carried unanimously.

17. CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL OF ANY MODIFICATIONS TO COMMON
AREAS:; ACCESS TO COMMON AREAS BY CONTRACTORS WORKING ON
INDIVIDUAL RESIDENTIAL LOTS

A. Inframark proposal for cleanup of debris

18. REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION TO COMMON AREA

Items 17 and 18 were discussed together.

Secretary Ron Meyer discussed the criteria for approval of any modifications to common
areas and access to common areas by contractors. There was discussion of the fact that any access
to the common areas, which belong to the HOA, is the HOA’s decision and approval. The District
can charge for any damage that occurs to the facilities, but there is no legal authority to prevent
the access. There was further discussion on the proposed criteria. Vice President Terri Purdy
created an Application and checklist for the District’s engineer and operator to complete when a
request for modification is submitted for consideration. There was also discussion of the clean-
up to the common areas. Inframark provided information on this matter. Since the HOA owns
these areas, the information will be passed on to the HOA for review. After discussion, motion
was made by President Dennis Daniel and seconded by Assistant Secretary Gary Grass to adopt
the committee’s recommendation on Common Area Project Review Criteria as prepared by
Secretary Ron Meyer. The motion carried unanimously.

Vice President Terri Purdy discussed the three requests for modification to the common
areas. Attorney Bill Flickinger noted that these requests were submitted in May and the 60-day
deadline is coming up. The requests have been reviewed in part and do not appear to be extensive.
Two requests are on the same street, and one is a playground shade structure.

President Dennis Daniel recommended approval. Motion was made by President Dennis
Daniel and seconded by Vice President Terri Purdy to approve the shade structure at the Windmill
Park playground as presented. The motion carried unanimously.

President Dennis Daniel’s only comment is that the District insist on appropriate erosion
control for bare soil.



Motion was made by President Dennis Daniel and seconded by Secretary Ron Meyer to
approve the project with the aerial photos and wildflower seeding with additional hedges, trees
and plants, provided that appropriate erosion control is maintained until cover is reestablished and
further suggest not to proceed until watering restrictions return to Stage 2. The motion carried
unanimously.

Motion was then made by President Dennis Daniel and seconded by Vice President Terri
Purdy to approve the project for planting hedges but not to proceed until watering restrictions
return to Stage 2. The motion carried unanimously.

Assistant Secretary John Genter recommended in the future adding an application number
to each request for easier identification.

19.  COMMITTEE REPORTS, ASSIGNMENT AND MEMBERSHIP

A. District Operations (Dennis & Terri)
B. Communications (Terri & Dennis)

C. WTCPUA (Dennis)

D. Water Quality/Land Use (Ron & Terri)
E. Audit/Budget (Dennis)

President Dennis Daniel discussed the new committee assignment handout, including
Standing Committees and Ad Hoc Committees.

After discussion regarding the Communications Committee (Terri & Dennis), motion was
made by President Dennis Daniel and seconded by Assistant Secretary Gary Grass to authorize
the committee to approve an expenditure up to $1,000 associated with District communication
needs. The motion carried unanimously.

After discussion regarding the Utility Operations Committee (Dennis & John), motion
was made by President Dennis Daniel and seconded by Assistant Secretary Gary Grass to
authorize the committee to approve any emergency expenditures as needed, which will then be
brought to the Board for ratification. The motion carried unanimously.

After discussion regarding the Land Use & Water Quality Committee (Ron & Gary),
motion was made by President Dennis Daniel and seconded by Assistant Secretary John Genter
to authorize the committee to approve any emergency expenditures, which will then be brought
to the Board for ratification. The motion carried unanimously.

The Finance, Budget & Audit Committee (Gary & John) will work with Bookkeeper Allen
Douthitt on the upcoming budget.

After discussion regarding the Water Conservation and Drought Management Committee
(Gary & Terri), motion was made by President Dennis Daniel and seconded by Assistant
Secretary to authorize the committee to approve enforcement actions, variances and approvals,
which will then be brought to the Board for ratification. The motion carried unanimously.

-8-



President Dennis Daniel advised that the LCRA has a new grant program regarding flume meters
and asked that the committee look into the matter.

20. OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT

Administrative

Wastewater Treatment Plant

Wastewater Grinder Stations

Effluent Irrigation System & Fields

Distribution & Collection System & Lift Stations

Billing Adjustments

Delinquencies

Customer Meter Issues

Customer and Resident Complaints

Stormwater conveyance & pond maintenance

Landscaping

Notices to residents on water quality

Out of District Water/Wastewater Service Requests

Request for Use of Greenspace and other District Easements
Maintenance access

Expenditures, contracts, repairs, replacements and maintenance
related to Operations and Maintenance Report

NOZEFASTIOTEUOE >

Manager Ronja Keyes discussed the Executive Summary.

In connection with the WWTP/ Collection system, the plant is running at 71% capacity.
The District’s total flows were 1.7 MG, which averages 57,000 GPD.

The odor control unit had a motor failure. The unit was turned off and found that the
motor overheated. The motor is under warranty. However, it may take up to 12 weeks to receive
the new motor.

Manager Ronja Keyes discussed the effluent lift station failure. The electrician installed
a control relay as a temporary bypass that is working fine at this time. A replacement proposal
will be forthcoming.

Inframark conducted the monthly inspection of the irrigation fields, and no issues were
reported.

The District’s water accountability is at 93% accountability for the month of June.
Assistant Secretary Gary Grass asked what the District is going to do to get it up to 100%.
Manager Ronja Keyes repaired an irrigation leak and hopes that will bring it up. A night survey
can also be done. The PUA’s master meter was calibrated recently. President Dennis Daniel
questioned the leak. Manager Ronja Keyes advised that the leak was on Reunion Ranch
Boulevard at the beginning of the bridge. There could also be an underground leak. President
Dennis Daniel reported that the water loss has continued for a year now and these leaks need to
be found. President Dennis Daniel will gather data from Inframark to provide an analysis on the

9.



water loss. Manager Ronja Keyes noted that the Samco survey was confusing. President Dennis
Daniel asked Inframark to please look at the HOA irrigation system that may possibily be
unmetered.

Manager Ronja Keyes discussed the unauthorized discharge that was reported by
President Dennis Daniel. The spill was reported at a manhole and ran down the street and into
the storm drain. President Dennis Daniel called it in, which went to dispatch. The operator was
notified to troubleshoot why they did not receive a callout. The lift station was then pumped
down. Inframark should have received a call out on the high run times. However, it was
discovered that the ARS team from Houston disabled the alarm during preventative maintenance
and failed to turn it back on. There will be no charge to the District regarding the spill. The
TCEQ was notified as required.

In regard to delinquencies, eight letters were mailed out and four door tags were hung,.
However, there were no disconnects as of today.

Manager Ronja Keyes discussed a complaint from a resident on Stage 3 watering
restrictions. The resident requested immediate action, so she apologized for asking the HOA to
send out an email blast. However, in the future she will contact the committee prior to action.

In regard to the noise complaint at the odor control unit, it appears to be an air leak. The
line is scheduled to be replaced today. President Dennis Daniel noted that he and Vice President
Terri Purdy will craft a message on the air leak and noise mitigation with the HOA.

Pond inspection reports were included in the agenda package. No additional proposals
were received for the pedestrian walkway to the Mary Elise Pond. Manager Ronja Keyes has
reached out to Lone Star Paving. Assistant John Genter asked if there were any Eagle Scouts
available for the task. This will be a good project to include in the upcoming budget.

The erosion control report was included in the Manager’s Report.

President Dennis Daniel noted that the emergency phone number needs to be updated on
the lift stations and at the plant. It currently has the customer service line listed. That number
has now been changed to the dispatch line. Vice President Terri Purdy noted that the District’s
website contact numbers should be updated as well. Jeniffer Concienne will arrange for the
District’s website to be updated. The Board asked that the emergency number be shared with
them.

Assistant Secretary John Genter asked about the District’s authority to issue a stop work
order against contractors who continue to be fined and fail to correct the erosion control issues.
Attorney Bill Flickinger advised that the District cannot issue a stop work order but can continue
to fine the contractor and authorize Inframark to correct the issue and charge the contractor for
the work. Assistant Secretary John Genter noted that one contractor has already been assessed
four fines.

-10-



21, PENDING ENFORCEMENT BY TCEQ

Attorney Bill Flickinger reported that the Final Agreed Order is on the TCEQ’s agenda
for July 20", Engineer Andrea Wyatt and Attorney Greg Szuman have prepared the Notice of
Commencement letter, certificates and cover letters in advance. Once the Final Agreed Order is
received all of the information will be filed at that time.

22, RESOLUTION REGARDING ANNUAL REVIEW OF DISTRICT
INVESTMENT POLICY AND INVESTMENT STRATEGIES

Attorney Bill Flickinger discussed the annual review of the District’s investment policy
and strategies. No changes are recommended at this time. After discussion, motion was made by
President Dennis Daniel and seconded by Assistant Secretary Gary Grass to approve the
Resolution Regarding Annual Review of District Investment Policy and Investment Strategies as
presented. The motion carried unanimously.

23.  ANNUAL AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER SUBMITTED BY MAXWELL
LOCKE & RITTER

Attorney Bill Flickinger discussed the process for the District’s annual audit. Maxwell
Locke & Ritter has done a job in preparing the District’s annual audits. The fee has increased by
$500 from last year. After discussion, motion was made by Assistant Secretary John Genter and
seconded by Vice President Terri Purdy to approve the engagement letter from Maxwell Locke
& Ritter to begin preparation of the District’s annual audit. The motion carried unanimously.

24.  ADJOURN

Vice President Terri Purdy adjourned the meeting at 6:40 p.m.

Dennis B. Daniel, President
Reunion Ranch WCID

ATTEST:

Ronald F. Meyer, Secretary
Reunion Ranch WCID

[SEAL]

I\ReunionRanch\minutes\07-19-22
8/12/22

-11-



Reunion Ranch W.C.1.D.
Accounting Report

August 16, 2022

= Review Cash Activity Report, including Receipts and Expenditures.

M Action Items:

e Approve director and vendor payments.
e Approve fund transfers.
e Approve bond payments.

= Review June 30, 2022 Financial Statements.

o 99.15% of 2021 tax roll collected
e $27,150.00 accrued for Inframark maintenance charges — June 2022

1 of 58



LE 1]
1€ o€ 6¢ 8¢ yx4 9c 214 0E 6¢ 8¢ iz 6¢ 8¢ 22 9¢ 14 ve [ X4
e €2 (44 X4 0¢ 61 13 9z 214 ve €¢ [44 (¥4 /4 (24 (4 0z 6l 8l 1 9l
Ll 9l St vl €l Zl 3 61 13 Ll 9l St 143 €l Sl vl €l 13 4% oL 6
ol 6 8 A 9 S ¥ cl 13 oL 6 2 2 9 8 L 9 S 14 € 14
€ 4 L S 14 € 4 l L

T TR ST
1€
o€ 6¢ 14 yx4 9¢ 14 1€ 11 (54 8¢ 0g 6¢ 8¢ P4 9z 14 Ve
e €2 ac (x4 0¢ 6} 8l px4 9¢ 14 e €C [44 X4 [ %4 fa4 Le 0¢ [-13 8L Ll
Ll 9l Gl vl €l i 9% (14 6} 8L A 91 Sl vl 9l Sl 14 £l cl 3% /13
[+]3 6 ] z 9 S 14 €l 43 7% ]2 4] 8 A 6 8 L 9 S 14 €

£ 4 b 9 ] 14 € [4 L 4 3

e AEREITTRS SRR

3 og 62

06 67 8z Iz 92 sz Iz 9% S ve € 06 67 9 L 9 S¢ e
sz vz € 2z ke o0z 6l iz o0z 6. 8 A 9 &l € zz Lz 0z Bk 8 1l
8L 4 9 5L vl € 2T v €L 2 L 0L 6 8 9. S v € 2 0l
b Ob 6 8 ! 9 s ] 9 s v € z L 8 8 L 9 s ¥ £
v € z ! z !
SO 7T 0TS | BT GRS A PSR
] e o
le o0 6z 82 2 8z Iz 62 8z 1 9 s& ve 2
92 Sz v2 € 2 iz 0z 9z sz ¥ e <z lz o2 2z 1z o0z 8L BE 2 9l
8L 8L ZL 9 & ¥ €l 6L 8L b 9L s vl €l S €k 2L b O B
2L W 0 B g L 9 Z8 W 0 B 8 . 9 8 l 9 s ¥ € z
s v € z L ) ¥ € z L L

5UNSSW pieod ST god . e ; 1L : : . o .
s o | T T
AIODOM Youey uoiunoy

SOION 44114

2 of 68



Cash Activity Report

3 of 58



Reunion Ranch W.C.I.D.
Cash Activity Report
June 30, 2022 - August 16, 2022

First Citizens

Operating Bookkeeper's
Account Account
Reconciled Cash Balance - June 30, 2022 $ 31,575.56 $ 24,784.12
Subsequent Activity through August 16, 2022 70,281.57 (3,059.02)
Transfer Approved at July 19, 2022 Board Meeting To TexPool Operating Account (40,000.00)
Deposit Service Revenue 103,881.57
Deposit Pool Depaosits and Inspections 6,400.00
Subtotal - Operating Account 70,281.57
Transfer Approved at July 19, 2022 Board Meeting From TexPool Operating Account 148,489.73
Expenditures Approved at July 19, 2022 Board Meeting Checks 2063 - 2079 (148,489.73)
Customer Refunds 2080 - 2086 Customer Refunds (373.13)
Hays County Tax Assessor - Collectar 2087 Tax Rolls - 2021 (687.00)
Theresa Purdy 2088 Director Fees - Cyber Securlty Tralning {138.52)
ATRT 2089 Telephone - July 2022 {230.65)
Pedernales Electric 2090 Utilities - June 2022 (1,739.65)
US Treasury 2091 Payroll Taxes - Second Quarter 2022 (344.24)
Verizon Wireless 2092 Wireless Charges - June 2022 (50.56)
AT&T 2093 Internet - July 2022 {95.27)
(3,059.02)
Expenditures to be Approved at August 16, 2022 Board Meeting (From Bookkeeper's Ac it) - (84,872.73)
Yendor Che & Memo Amoun
Gary Grass 2094 Director Fees - Drought Contingency 138.53
John Genter 2095 Director Fees - Drought Contingency 138.53
Dennis Daniel 2096 Director Fees - August 16, 2022 Meeting 158.53
Gary Grass 2097 Directar Fees - August 16, 2022 Meeting 138.52
John Genter 2098 Director Fees - August 16, 2022 Meeting 138.52
Ron Meyer 2099 Director Fees - August 16, 2022 Meeting 159.15
Theresa Purdy 2100 Director Fees - August 16, 2022 Meeting 138.52
Agquatic Features Inc 2101 Pond Maintenance - luly 2022 880.00
Bott & Douthitt, PLLC 2102 Accounting Services - July 2022 2,000.00
Inframark LLC 2103 Operations - July 2022 7,679.14
LCRA 2104 Raw Water/Monthly Fee - July 2022 5,701.78
Murfee Engineering 2105 Engineering - March and July 2022 12,242.13
Sommers Marketing 2106 Website - July 2022 650.00
West Travis County PUA 2107 Purchased Water - July 2022 38,212.70
Willatt & Flickinger 2108 Legal Fees - July 2022 12,761.68
Zane Furr 2109 Landscape Maintenance - July 2022 3,735.00
Total Operating Account Expenditures 84,872.73
Transfers to be Approved at August 16, 2022 Board Meeting {100,000.00) 84,872.73
Transfer From First Citizens Operating to TexPool Operating (100,000.00)
Transfer From TexPool Operating ta First Citizens Bookkeeper's 84,872.73
(15,127.27)
Projected Cash Balance - August 16, 2022 $ 1,857.13 § 21,725.10

4 of 68




5 of 58

$2°880'TT$ :1UnN020Y BupeIsdQ |O0dXSL 03 JUNEDDY XB] [00dX3L WOl SPUNy Jdysuel] 0]
€/°2£8'Y8$ :IUNODDY S,J9dPaX00g SUSZIND 15414 03 JUNODDY Bupesad( [004dX3 L WOL SPUry Jajsues) 0f

€/'896'88L'E = €£'896'88Z’E (TZ'116'PTY) 0€'TLL'86T ¥9'80T'ST6'E

€€'00T'PS - €E°00T'vS - - €E'00T VS

75'59%'2S - 75°59v'2S - - 25°59v2S %6T¥1°C

18°€96 - 18°'€96 = - 18'€96 %6TYT'C

P99 - vt 99 - - 99 %6TP1'T

95°9 - 95°9 - - 959 %6TPT'C

TE'I68°LLT'T (vz'gso’tT) 95°646'88T' - - 9S5'6/6'882°C

9'856'292'2 - 9v°856'292'C = - 94°856'292'C %6TY1'T

98'2£6'vT (€) (b2'880°TT) 0T°T20'92 = = 01°T20'9¢ %6112

80°LL6'9SY'T vZ'880°TT v8'888'StY'T (1z°'116'VTY) 0€'TLL'8B6T S£'820°TLS'T

S8'YEE'EEY'T (e) (2) "(1) 18°512'9¢ PEBLT'LOY'T (e£'68Y'8YT) 00°000°0% £0°699'STS'T %6THT'C

01°52L'T2 (2) £2'7L8'v8 (€9°L¥1'€9) (8¥'12H'9£2) £2'68Y'84T ZTv8L've %0050°0

ET°/58'T ™) (00-000'001) €£1°/58°10T (00°000'0%) £5°182°0TT 95°G/S§'1E %0050°0
zZoz/9t/8 zZozZ/91/8 zzoT/91/8 Sjuawasingsig uun_u"-um TZOZ/0E/9 soey

aouejeg paaoiddy jeloiqns juanbasqns aosuejeq 159493uT

pajaafoid a0 03 Siajsueil

00°000°00T$ :3unO2Y BupesadQ |00dx3] 03 JUNOJJY Buleladp suaz|yD 1S414 WOLY Spuny 13 suel] ol @

spuny v - jejol

pung 399foid |eude) - jejol
s123(0.d |endeD pzZ0oZyS - [00dXa L
spafold [eude) 6T0TYS - [00dxaL
syalold [euded 8T0ZYS - loodxa)
s3oafold |exdeD £T0ZYS - [oodxal
- puny 323foid |epde)
pung 32JA19S 1924 - 101
JJIAIDS 393Q - |00dX3 ]
Xe] - |00dxa]
- pun4 3J21A49S 1930
pung |eiaua - [ej0]
Juno2dy BunesadQ - (004X
JuN023y S Jadaaxpjoog - SuazZYD) 1sd14

junoooy bujiesado - suaziid Isdi4
- pung |elduap

ZT0Z ‘91 1snbny - zzoz ‘0€ aunc
310day AJAIDY JUBWISDAUT/YSe)

"A'ID°M Yyouey uoiunay




RECEle]

3y} AQ Loy 485 59IB8JDIS PUD ADII04 JUSWISSAU| PUD (9677 Jo4dDyD BuIpuaWD ‘46z JoLdDyD) JOV JUBLUISBAU) SPUNS DIjANd Sy J0) PAYSIqD)se SO AD4DS JUSWISIAUN Y} Yiim 90uD)dwoa ||n) Ul s| Hodas Apaponb siyj

| | B oPL'SLA’'E  SOLpS'L0Z'9 8y’ IpPLSLE'E 50'LPa’L02'9 PrTLY’e SANN4 TV 1V101|
LU'BEL'YS P6'EESPITT LUBELYS Vo eesVITT £2099 AaNN4 S1D3rodd 1v1dVYD 1V10L
Sl 1£'806°CS ¥1'£96T9CT'T L£'B0S'TS Y17L96'T92C 4587159 %STVE'L 1004 {USUILSBAU| JUSUUISAOY) [DDOT SDXS|
3420202 JS - [00d4XSL
Sl £5'%96 6’296 18796 ¥6296 £9°L %52Ye’L |00d {USWISBAU| JUBUIUIBSAOS) [DIOT] SDXS|
3dD 610T ¥S - 100d%SL
€511 68799 98°EF9 68'v99 98'€99 £0't %STYE'| |00d |USWISIAU| JUBUIUIBADY) [DDOT SDXSL
34D 810Z &S - [004%5L !ANN4 SLO3rO¥d TVLIdVD
95'6.6'B8ZT ET6TSILET 95°6£6'89T°C €2°625'91E°C IS'159°E QGNN4 3DIA33S 16930 1101
SLLL BSETITT  0FYIEGEL'T 9v'BG4'Z9TT 09¥9E'6EL'T 98'C65'E  HSTYE'| 00 JUSWISSAU| JUSWUISAOS |DDOT SDXS|
BOIAISS 1G9( - [00dXS]
90LL ol'1zo'9z €IYoLLLL 0lL°120'9¢ €9PILLLL [VAF2Y %STYE’| [0044USLILSIAU| JUBSWUIBAOL) [DIOT SOX3|
TUNODDY XD - [00g%aL *ANN4 3DIAN3S 1830
SL'8T0°TLS'L  8@'ETRITYL SL°9T0°TLSL 88'€T8'929°L 9'098C ANNd ONILV¥IJO TVHINID TVIOL
£001 L0699°516°L TEPLOBZY L L0'699°515°L 267 10'8ZY'L EL9SET  %HGTHE'L 1004 JUSUIISSAL| JUBUWIUIBAOS |DDOT SDXS|
JUNGOoY BubI1adQ - [00dXa]
SolLl [A%4: 7474 GL98L°S1 4847474 SL98L°51 €71 %0050°0 JuND22Y 59daaxyooq
JUDE SUSZHD 5]
0001 95°645° 1€ 1222081 95'6/5'LE Lzeeoesl 148 %0050°0 uNODDY Buybiado
JuDg SUSZNID J5iy ‘ONN4 TVEINID
INNODDVY SAvVa iiva diva TZOT/0E/9 oL/ Liv T20%/08/9 o/ Ly e/9Teiv uva NOLVDHUNIQ! SaNNd
o ALINLYW 3avil VA DIW aN3 VA LIW 938 VA X8 ‘ON3 VA ) D39 1S3¥3INI 153¥3INI

ZZ0T ‘Of dunr - zz0Z ‘1 idy
SINIWISIANI A¥VIOIW3L 40 IINAIHOS
“@’1"D"M Y2uDy uojunay

6 of 58



cle Jo 00t

0g96¢ez ‘Al a0r WV G2Z:} 18 2202Z/10/.0 Uo pajulid

1910}y - (31931100 19d + SUORI3||0D) SUOOS]|0D PAUIGIOD

pa109)I0D %./8°9} Pajiig S8xe) Juaung o} paiedwo) suoids|ied (Y

pPaIOsHoD %/.°9) Pallig S9Xe] Juaung 0] paiedwod Suonds(|oD XeL

19°G6¥'69E'2$ — P3I99J10D OLA JU3LN)H

£6'922'68€'2$ — Ilod [euiBuQ paisnlpy
sabejuadiod

%SG 166 - LZ0T - Pa199j(0] 110H 19 %

26°082'0C 000 89°.L0'Y 09'80€'+¢ 000 09°'80€'+2Z Imoj nun Buixel
000 000 000 000 000 000 syoeq|oy
000 000 000 000 000 000 juanbuljaq (301
26°0£2'02 000 89220 09°80€'+2 000 09'80E'+E juaun) |ejoy

fewwng
SRS

89°L/0'%

TS S &

7000

TR b
00:0:7 s

09'80€'¥Z
= s ;ﬂuxm.x 3

RN

000

B ean
S

Lt

aouejeg

pa199ij0D

pajd9jiodun
P3323|j0dun aag "fny SUNo2SIg / SHpaID paisnipy
(vs'gy‘OW‘s)) sielol Hun Buixel
(QIoM youey UOIUNSY) YHM
jesiesddy
apn|ou| ‘syoeq||oy sjesedag suondQ Buipuaasy “Jeap Ag Ag pepoS  ZZ0Z/0S/90 O 2Z0Z/1L0/90 :36uey a1eq uopoesuel | ~-1dg Buiddug :syun Buixey) v :s8[pho

XVLISAVH

Joday sbuipuels ® desay

7 of 58



TAX YEAR

PERCENTASE

COLLECTIONS:

ocT
TAX ADJUSTMENTS
BASE TAX REV
TAXES
PENALTY

Nov
TAX ADJUSTMENTS
BASE TAX REV
TAXES
PENALTY

DEC
TAX ADJUSTMENTS
BASE TAX REV
TAXES
PENALTY

JAN
TAX ADJUSTMENTS
BASE TAX REV
TAXES
PENALTY

FEB
TAX ADJUSTMENTS
BASE TAX REV
TAXES
PENALTY

MAR
TAX ADTUSTMENTS
BASE TAX REV
TAXES
PENALTY

APR
TAX ADJUSTMENTS
BASE TAX REV
TAXES
PENALTY

MAY
TAX ADTUSTMENTS
BASE TAX REV
TAXES
PENALTY

JUN
TAX ADJUSTMENTS
BASE TAX REV
TAXES
PENALTY

JuL
TAX ADJUSTMENTS
BASE TAX REV
TAXES
PENALTY

AUG
TAX ADJUSTMENTS
BASE TAX REV
TAXES
PENALTY

SEP
TAX ADJUSTMENTS
BASE TAX REV
TAXES
PENALTY

TOTAL

BASE TAX REV
TAXES
PENALTY

TOTAL DISTRIBUTION

BEGINNNING
TAXES RECEIVABLE
TAX ADJUSTMENTS
BASE TAX REV
LESS: COLLECTIONS

TAX
REC @ END OF PERIOD

Reunion Ranch W.C,I.D.

ANALYSIS OF TAXES COLLECTED FOR RECONCTLIATION

June 30, 2022
021 7020 7019 TOTAL
General  Debt Service General  Debt Service General Debt Service Beoeral | Debf Service
Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total
$ 0275 $ 085500 $ 08250|% 01500 5 07250 § O0B8750|$ 01500 $ 07250 § 0B750
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
0.00 000 000| 10297 497694 6.006.65 000 000 000 102971 497694 6.006.65
000 000 000 190 30 51979 111009 000 000 0.00 150 30 91979 111009
000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 000
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
4644190 9288379  139,32569 000 000 000 000 0.00 000| 4644190  92,88379 13932569
0.00 0.00 000 0,00 000 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 000 000
167816 935633 14,03449 (4529) (218.91) (264 20) (a118) (19901 (240 19) 459169 8.938.41 1353010
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
54556246 109112492  1636.687.38 (45.29) (21891 (264.20) (a118) (199.01) (24019)] 54547599 109070700 163618299
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
(57.89) (11578) (7367 (3158) (152 61) (184.19) 0.00 000 000 (89.47) (268 39) (357.86)
000 000 000 0.00 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 0,00
13458248 26916495 40374743 (3158) 152 61) (184.19) 000 0a0 000| 13455090 26901234 40356324
000 000 000 000 000 0.00 000 000 000 000 000 000
(6510) (130.20) (19530} (32 28) (156.02) (188.30) (3128) (15116) (182.44) (128,66) (437.38) (566,04
000 0.00 0.00 000 000 0.00 [11¢10] 000 000 000 000 0.00
43,056 .06 8611213 12916819 (32.28) (156.02) (188.30) (31.28) (151 16) (18244)| 4299250  BS580495  128797.45
868,67 1737.34 2,606.01 000 000 0,00 0.00 000 000 868,67 173734 2,606.01
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 oao 000 000
1191570 2383141 35,747.11 317 1533 1850 0.00 000 000 1191887 2384674 35,765.61
588 32 1,176 64 176496 032 153 185 000 000 000 588 64 117817 1766 81
000 000 000 000 000 000 0.00 000 000 000 000 000
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 a00 000
242259 484519 7.267.78 000 000 000 000 000 000 242259 484519 7.267.78
1615 3230 48.45 000 000 000 000 000 000 1615 3230 48.45
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
000 0.00 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
449145 8.982.90 1347435 000 000 000 000 000 000 449145 896290 1347435
9175 183 50 27525 000 000 0.00 000 000 000 91.75 183,50 27525
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
000 000 000 000 000 0.00 000 000 000 000 000 000
1,359 23 271845 407768 000 000 ogo 000 000 000 135923 271845 407768
798 1595 2393 000 000 0.00 000 000 000 798 1595 2393
oo 000 000 000 aao 000 000 0400 0.00 aao aoo 000
000 000 0,00 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
000 0.00 0.00 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
000 000 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 o000 000 0.00 000 000 noo
000 000 000 0.00 000 000 000 000 0,00 000 0ge 000
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 0.00 000 000 000
000 000 000 0.00 000 000 0.00 000 0.00 000 0.00 oac
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 0,00 000 000 000
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
000 000 0.00 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
78983187 1579,66374 2,369,495 61 92373 446473 5,386.46 (72.46) (35017) (42263)| 79068314 158377830 237446144
157287 314573 4,718,60 190,62 92132 111194 000 000 0.00 176349 4067.05 583054
79140474 158280947 237421421| 111435 5.385.05 6.500.40 (72.46) (35017) (42263)] 79244663 150784535 2,380,20198
792,02034 158404067 237606101 | 103288 499227 6.025.15 000 000 000| 79305322 158903294 238208616
456517 911035 13,665 52 (109 15) (527 54) (636 69) 72.46) (35017) (422 63) 437356 823264 1260620
000 000 000 0.00 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
(789.83187) (1579.663.74) (2,369.49561)|  (92373)  (446473)  (5388.46) 72.46 35017 42263 | (79068314) (1583.778.30) (2,374,46144)
674364 1348728 2023092 0,00 000 000 000 000 000 674364 1348728 2023092
&0 Days (TSR 397654 006 B3
YTD Collections 789,653.43 1,578,801,36

8 of 58



Reunion Ranch W.C.I.D.
Collateral Analysis Schedule

June 30, 2022
Over/(Under
Funds Collateral Collateralized
First Citizens Bank

Operating Account $ 31,575.56
Bookkeeper's Account 58,118.80

Total Funds First Citizens Bank 89,694.36
FDIC Coverage 250,000.00
Pledged Collateral First Citizens Bank {Market Value) 135,559.91

Total Collateral 385,559.91

Total Collateral/Funds $ 89,694.36 $ 385,559.91 $ 295,865.55

9 of 58



"Jodaayales

geg ebed s,Jawosna ay) Aq papiaoid 8q pjnoys uojewlojul siyj ‘sbuipjoy pabips|d Jo/pue uoneoo| Buidesyajes Jo p10d3l
HOdSVd [eloueuld NHA [EIOIO By} S pasn aq 0] PAPUSJUI JoU SI )] "18WoIsNd au) AQ Sh 0} PajlILLGNS UOlELLIOU Sjoayal Hodal siyL
16'655'SEL ¥S€98'LEL
sexa]
81'8ZV'8EL 00'250'890'C 320y punoy QIDM YdUBY UOINSY - X1 - NNFY :pabpald [ejoL €
Ziver'sl S0°'6£8'81 ze8E IN 0000S'Z can obie s|loM - 4M zvsiiel
81'ETL'8) 00'000'0€ 2202/0€/9 3N sdv 090Z/91/01 av /v1-6L0Z ¥ND  €ZUVZEEBE
65ELL'LE £6°100'8¢ G1'ST IN 00000°€ LNO obieJ silam - 4M glezeeel
86'SEY'BE 00'925'281 220Z/0€/9 dN S4v 8102/SZ/E0 VL1 /S6F HHd  ZNSY4.ELE
02'296°08 9522018 S8l IN 00000°€ WO obied s(lsp - M 66v1¥01
ze'69zZ'L8 00'926'058'L 220Z/0€/9 VN Sdv L¥02/SZ/E0 VO L8OVLINNS  EXATVIELE
Sexs] 20y Punoy QIDM Uduey uounsy - X1 - N3y :pabpaid
an|eA 1oen Jed (JA) Auniey Apoopy uodno) dnoigy SWeN/3po) Uonedo 19301 L
anjeA yoog aoe4 |eulBuQ 1d 8oud Jeyien d9s s 1a papungay/Aunien uonduossg disnD

eje uely/sdiliyd N :day WNoodY

MMNW_M_UMN._%MM_WMMLMMM Svd 2202/0€/9 OL 220c/L/9 _m,_omn_
: ON ‘ybisjey
00659 @] Jswosny 0D Isnij 9 jueg susziiD-1si4

uoday Aiojuaauj abpajd

10 of 58



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 of 58



Reunion Ranch W.C.I1.D.
Accountant’s Compilation Report

June 30, 2022

The District is responsible for the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities of
Reunion Ranch W.C.I.D., as of and for the nine months ended June 30, 2022, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements - governmental funds in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have performed a
compilation engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not
audit or review the financial statements nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the
accuracy or completeness of the information provided by management. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on these financial statements.

The District has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis, the Statement of Net Assets, and
Statement of Activities that the Governmental Accounting Standards Board required to be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historic context.

In addition, the District has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures and the statement of
cash flows required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. If
the omitted disclosures and components required by GASB 34 were included in the financial
statements, they might influence the user's conclusions about the District's financial position, results
of operations, and cash flows. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who
are not informed about such matters.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that budgetary
comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and, although not a required part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting and for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. Such information is the responsibility of management.
The required supplementary information was subject to our compilation engagement. We have not
audited or reviewed the required supplementary information and do not express an opinion, a
conclusion, nor provide any assurance on such information.

Supplementary Information

The supplementary information contained in the schedules described in the Supplementary
Information Index is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements. This information is the representation of management. The information
was subject to our compilation engagement, however, we have not audited or reviewed the
supplementary information and, accordingly, do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any
form of assurance on such supplementary information.

We are not independent with respect to Reunion Ranch W.C.1.D.

Bodb Dt el e

BOTT & DOUTHITT, P.L.L.C.

August 9, 2022
Round Rock, TX

12 of 58



Reunion Ranch W.C.1.D.
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
June 30, 2022

Governmental Funds

Governmental
General Debt Service Capital Projects Funds
Fund Fund Fund Total
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents -
Cash - Operating $ 31,575.56 $ - $ - $ 31,575.56
Cash - Bookkeeper's Account 24,784.12 - - 24,784.12
Cash Equivalents 1,515,669.07 2,288,979.56 54,144.73 3,858,793.36
Receivables -
Property Taxes 6,743.64 13,487.28 - 20,230.92
Service Accounts, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts of $ - 110,936.97 - - 110,936.97
Prepaid Expense 2,740.62 - - 2,740.62
Accounts Receivable - Other 2,821.13 - = 2,821.13
Accrued Service Revenue 40,145.13 - - 40,145.13
Interfund 11,030.24 - - 11,030.24
Total Assets $ 1,746,446.48 $ 2,302,466.84 $ 54,144.73 $ 4,103,058.05
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 138,971.72 $ - $ - $ 138,971.72
Accrued Expenditures 30,491.76 - - 30,491.76
Impact Fees Payable 12,278.00 - - 12,278.00
Customer Deposits 74,320.00 - - 74,320.00
Builder Deposit 53,000.00 - - 53,000.00
Due to TCEQ 2,425.62 - - 2,425.62
Interfund - 11,030.24 - 11,030.24
Payroll Taxes Payable 344.24 - - 344.24
Total Liabilities 311,831.34 11,030.24 - 322,861.58
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Revenue - Property Taxes 6,743.64 13,487.28 - 20,230.92
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 6,743.64 13,487.28 - 20,230.92
Fund Balance
Fund Balances:
Restricted for
Debt Service - 2,277,949.32 & 2,277,949.32
Capital Projects - - 54,144.73 54,144.73
Unassigned 1,427,871.50 - - 1,427,871.50
Total Fund Balances 1,427,871.50 2,277,949.32 54,144.73 3,759,965.55
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances $ 1,746,446.48 $ 2,302,466.84 $ 54,144.73 $ 4,103,058.05

See Accountants' Report,

13 of 58



Reunion Ranch W.C.I.D.
Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balance-Governmental Funds
October 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

Governmental Funds

Governmental
General Debt Service Capital Projects Funds
Fund Fund Fund Totat
Revenues:
Property Tax Revenue 3 791,416.92 $ 1,582,868.41 $ - $ 2,374,285.33
Service Accounts
Water Revenue 452,182.81 - = 452,182.81
Wastewater Revenue 264,173.24 - - 264,173.24
Service Revenue Penalties 4,915.35 - - 4,915.35
Tap Fee Income 8,000.00 - - 8,000.00
Inspection Fee Income 6,400.00 - - 6,400.00
Interest and Other Income 136,861.20 4,263.87 1,348.52 142,473.59
Total Revenues 1,663,949.52 1,587,132.28 1,348.52 3,252,430.32
Expenditures:
Operating Expenses -
Reservation Fee 19,906.26 - - 19,906.26
Monthly Charges 117,288.45 - - 117,288.45
Water Purchases 142,934.69 - - 142,934.69
Operations & Management 70,963.11 - - 70,963.11
Utilities 18,103.50 - - 18,103.50
Lab Fees 18,036.69 . - 18,036.69
Inspections 14,451.59 = - 14,451.59
Chemicals 17,201.29 - - 17,201.29
Sludge Hauling 14,362.87 - - 14,362.87
Permit Fee 1,328.05 - - 1,328.05
Repairs & Maintenance (Routine) -
Water Repairs 50,129.38 - - 50,129.38
Sewer Repairs 169,475.65 - - 169,475.65
Irrigation Maintenance 2,500.00 - - 2,500.00
Pond Maintenance 14,140.57 - - 14,140.57
Landscape Maintenance 34,855.00 - - 34,855.00
Repairs & Maintenance (Non-Routine or One Time) -
Pond Maintenance (One Time) 6,256.80 - - 6,256.80
Pond Maintenance (Non-Routine) 8,877.18 - - 8,877.18
Sewer Maintenance 7,469.29 - - 7,469.29
Water Maintenance 7,800.00 - - 7,800.00
Administrative Services -
Director Fees, including payroll tax 6,459.02 - - 6,459.02
Director Reimbursements 401.30 = - 401.30
Insurance 18,661.15 - - 18,661.15
Tax Appraisal/Collection Fees 3,989.98 7,979.95 - 11,969.93
Website 4,314.00 - - 4,314.00
Miscellaneous Expense 2,216.49 - - 2,216.49
Professional Fees -
Legal Fees 74,441.84 - - 74,441 .84
Financial Advisor 1,000.00 2,000.00 - 3,000.00
Bookkeeping Fees 19,000.00 - - 19,000.00
Engineering Fees 32,156.10 - - 32,156.10
Engineering Fees - Special 32,075.00 - - 32,075.00
Audit Fees 12,500.00 - - 12,500.00
Debt Service -
Interest Expense - 444,056.89 53,137.00 497,193.89
Fiscal Agent Fees - 1,200.00 - 1,200.00
Bond Issuance Costs - - 5,000.00 5,000.00
Capital Outlay - - 2,152,979.00 2,152,979.00
Total Expenditures 943,295.25 455,236.84 2,211,116.00 3,609,648.09
E / (Defici y) of R
Over (Under) Expenditures 720,654.27 1,131,895.44 (2,209,767.48) (357,217.77)
Fund Balance, October 1, 2021 707,217.23 1,146,053.88 2,263,912.21 4,117,183.32
Fund Balance, June 30, 2022 $ 1,427,871.50 $ 2,277,949.32 $ 54,144.73 $ 3,759,965.55

See Accountanls’' Report,

14 of 58



Supplementary Information

Index

General Fund

-- Budgetary Comparison Schedule
-- Revenues & Expenses: Actual + Budgeted
-- Cash Account Reconciliations
-- A/P Aging Summary
-- Payroll Summary
Debt Service Fund

-- Debt Service Schedule

15 of 58



General Fund

16 of 58



Reunion Ranch W.C.I.D.
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
June 30, 2022

CURRENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE
Actual Budget Difference Actual Budget Difference
Revenves:
Property Tax Revenue $ 1,367.21 $ - $  1,367.21 $ 791,416.92 $ 778,917.00 $ 12,499.92
Service Accounts
Water Revenue 74,846.56 55,035.00 19.811.56 452,182.81 372,796.00 79.386.81
Wastewater Revenue 31,374.41 25,426.00 5,948.41 264,173.24 228,834.00 35,339.24
Service Revenue Penadlties 468.92 805.00 (336.08) 4,915.35 6,015.00 (1,099.65)
Tap Fees - - - 8.000.00 - 8,000.00
Inspection Fees 1.216.24 - 1.216.24 6,400.00 - 6,400.00
Interest and Other Income 100.00 500.00 {400.00) 136,861.20 4,500.00 132,361.20
Total Revenues 109,373.34 81,766.00 27,607.34 1,663,949.52 1,391,062.00 272,887.52
Expenditures:
Operating Expenses -
Reservation Fee 2,260.42 2,115.00 {145.42) 19.906.26 19,035.00 (871.2¢)
Monthly Charges 13,032.05 13,032.00 {0.05) 117,288.45 117,288.00 {0.45)
Water Purchases 26,462.21 23,264.00 (3.198.21) 142,934.69 127,342.00 (15,592.69)
Management and Operations 7.721.30 8,555.00 833.70 70,963.11 76,995.00 6,031.89
Utilities 2,123.87 2,800.00 676.13 18,103.50 25,200.00 7.096.50
Lab Fees 1,950.00 1,950.00 - 18,036.69 17.550.00 (486.69)
Inspection Fees 1,700.00 1,700.00 - 14,451.59 15,300.00 B48.41
Chemicals 2,500.00 2,500.00 - 17,201.29 22,500.00 5,298.71
Sludge Hauling 4,000.00 4,000.00 - 14,362.87 36,000.00 21,637.13
Permit Fees - - - 1,328.05 1,500.00 171.95
Repairs and Maintenance - Routine
Water Repairs and Maintenance 3,500.00 3,500.00 - 50,129.38 31,500.00 (18.629.38)
Sewer Repairs and Maintenance 11,000.00 11,000.00 - 169,475.65 99.000.00 (70,475.65)
Imigation Maintenance 2,500.00 2,500.00 - 2,500.00 22,500.00 20,000.00
Pond Maintenance 920.00 1,000.00 80.00 14,140.57 9,000.00 (5.140.57)
Landscape Maintenance 4,355.00 4,750.00 395.00 34,855.00 42,750.00 7.895.00
Repairs and Maintenance - One Time
Pond Maintenance - - - 6,256.80 6,200.00 {56.80)
Repairs and Maintenance - Non-Routine
Pond Maintenance - - - 8.877.18 9.000.00 122.82
Sewer Maintenance - - - 7.469.29 8,000.00 530.71
Water Maintenance - - - 7.800.00 8,000.00 200.00
Administrative Services -
Director Fees, incl payroli taxes 645.89 1,087.00 441,11 6,459.02 9.,783.00 3,323.98
Director Reimbursement - 65.00 65.00 401.30 585.00 183.70
Insurance - - - 18,661.15 20,000.00 1,338.85
Tax Appraisal/Collector Fees 1,320.55 1,000.00 (320.55}) 3,989.98 3,000.00 (989.98)
Website 500.00 1,200.00 700.00 4,314.00 10,800.00 6,486.00
Miscellaneous 230.00 100.00 {130.00) 2,216.49 900.00 (1,316.49)
Professional Fees -
Legal Fees 9,602.74 8,500.00 (1,102.74) 74,441.84 76,500.00 2,058.16
Financial Advisor Fees - - - 1,000.00 - {1,000.00)
Accounting Fees 2,000.00 2,000.00 - 19,000.00 18,750.00 {250.00)
Engineering Fees - General 4,310.45 3,500.00 (810.45) 32,156.10 31,500.00 (656.10)
Engineering Fees - Special 1,560.00 2,000.00 440.00 32,075.00 18,000.00 {14,075.00)
Audit Fees - - - 12,500.00 12,250.00 {250.00)
Total Expenditures 104,194.48 102,118.00 {2,076.48) 943,295.25 896,728.00 (46,567.25)
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures $ 5,178.86 $ (20,352.00) $ 25,530.86 $ 720,654.27 $ 494,334.00 $  224,320.27

See Accounlants' Report

17 of 58



oze'9Tz £E6'TRE ¢ (soo'sez) ¢ (eo9'sz) &  (mor’'ET) 6u's (sTe42) $ (09Z'€ET) &  9e6'sor POOR SUPERPIVISs  zrstzzr 4 oto‘eos $  svo'vs (o6b'sE) ET9'SST $
(e9s'or) ZT6E'RES'T 29v'08E £90°TTT £95°EOT PET'POT o26'92T +a0'06 ZEB'S0T vzL'60T 086'4L TIT'STT 1162 GLZ'EET PTR'IGY'T
(ect'eT) £LL'aTZ 009°sT a00'sT 000°9T €Lp'LT se2'aT bLLLT ¥BO'ET BLE’BT SE0'ET EL6’ET T9E'PT GYE'DT 009°'50Z
(os2) oos'et N . B B B - - - - 005'Z% - - 0sZ'2T
(000't) 009’7 oas - - - - - - - - o0o‘t - - 009
(szo'st) SL0°8E 000°'z oo’z 000°z 09S'T BLI'T azo'e 6169 610y 59901 o15't EET'T Ezo’t 000'¥T
(9s59) 959'zr 0os‘e 005°€ 00S’E (1034 TET'E TPE'E TE¥'S F14- 4 T05'2 a0z’ vze'y TES'E ooo‘ey
losz) 000'se 000°7 a00°z 000z o0o'z 000'z7 a6’z 0002 apo'z 000°E 000'z aoa‘c 0002 [ 7524
850z TOE'GE oos's 005’8 00s'8 £09'6 SCE'TT oL’ vEL'R vES'6 69d's (1744 s0o’z s62°L ooo’zot
9206 z60'TS (3 256%6 323 969°C 668" z0LT ST TSLT 186 ovsT (73 890°6T 27609
[C11=4] 9187 00T oot 00T (3 [i:3 SEZ yEZ zzr o€z zzT 602 (4 oaz't
o8v's PIG'L oor's 00z't ooz't 005 999 o0z ost L os osv 9Tz [ 1194 00p'rt
- 005°L - 00s’Z - - - - = - ¥ - - - oos'z
SEE'T T99'8T N B E E N - N - - - 766'T 699°9T oog'ez
(086 066'v 000’1 - - TZET - - TTET - - 6YE'T - - 000’y
T 9858 59 - I3 98 o 95 ss £ e osz
vZE'S »iL's ro'T w9 696 08 ver 209 srs 208 o8 BEO'ST
(zv'ie) £2L'99T°T STH'09E STT's8 Tezzser | Zowtz  vzrum | sese’ »96'Es ZESTY 90°66 90€°SZT'T
- ooo's oo0’s - - - - - - - - o - - ooo’s
0oz oon’'st ooo'zt - - N 008’z - N - - - - - ooa‘oz
TES 69925 oon'0s - - - o000’y - - &9b'E - - - - 00085
€zt 71511 ooo'e - - - y7i 3 . o - . O - - 000'zT
=] ogo’ot opo’ot - = = = - - - - T - - ooo’‘ox
- 00D’SET 000'SET . = - L4 - - g b - - - 000’SET
- 005z 00s°Z - - - - - - « & = = = 005’z
(25) £50'0T oow'e & = = - = goz't - - - - 250'S noa‘ot
S60'2 SOT'6v osz'y ose'y osz'y SSE'D SELE sEL'E SSE'Y STU'E seL'e SSE'P SEL'E SEL'E 000’25
(rer's) IVT'ZE 000’9t 000t ooo't 0z6 S£6 SSE'T 96'T syt o086 Ty k4 o4 556 000°27
©o00'0z 000°0T 005z 0os‘z 005z oSz . . . - = * - ] 000°'0E
(9zv'0L) 9Lv'sze 000'sE oea’rt 000'TT 000'TT (173 1] 669'ST 6sT'ZZ 190'v 299'6 zaL'ez (4 6E0'2C 000'95T
{6z9'91) 629°'SL. 005'aT a0s’e 005’ 0DS’E LEE'E ST wZE'Z £0S'TT 6€8 96SPT ZS'T 9s0's 000°LS
et L1191 = = = - H . * . - * wOL ozs oas't
LE9'TT E9E’'ST 000’y ooo'y ooa'y ooy 0T LT T E09'T ™wo'e e - r6'E aoo'sy
662'S T0L'vT 00s°z oos‘z 0O5’T oos’z . L't 61" £8b'S we seL't ToE'E C 000’0t
e TSS'6T oaz'v ooL's oozt oas't w6 66v°T £pE'T 9T »96'T 69E'T z9L't e 00’0z
tzom) £89'ET 0s6'T 0s6‘T os6't 0S6'T 6TH'S SHE'T 59T £00‘E 28T LEG'T E6Z'T ToT 0Or'ET
£80°2 v0s'9z ooa‘z ooa’z o0n'z vzI'e vsz'z 6261 t€z'z (1334 6L6'T wza‘t 6ELT 1061 009°EE
TED'D 9'96 sss‘B sss'8 SS5'% TTLe (1743 TSWL zB0'R ro'a £90°2 zew's 068'2 Ts's 099°Z0T
(ess'sT) szo'0Tz (47414 ETL'ST (27314 29v'az 0sT1Z ETS'9T £9SET ns’'s s£v'8 Eom'TT B0Z'PT 98'0T 28¥'voT
(o) EE'9ST ZEO'ET ZED'ET TEO'ET REO'ET ZE0°CT ZEO'CT ZEO'ET TEO'ET ZED'ET TED'ET TEQ'ET TEO'ET ¥BE'9ST
(1e@) TSZ'9Z sITZ SIT°Z STTZ 09z‘z [ 24 a9z'z 09z°z 09Z'T o9z'z sTT'T STT'T sT1? 0WE'SZ
988°ZLT STE'0Z6 65v'se 656'se €2E°60T s09cot vTe'9L FXTR373 T95°TTT €69°007 €Z1'819 9TZ'EER B8L'z6 I
TIETET TOE'BET 00S 0os 0os 9TE'T 1Ta’T e TOE'TET 160'T S6E 29 € oL 0G0’S
aor'a - - - . 009't oog N oor'z - B 009t - -
ooo'r - - - - 0oo'z oog't i oo’ N N 000z - B
(oot’t) cve ™e &9y ze9 e 80E z89 st 009 s05 w6 ors‘'s
6EE'SE BYLOVE €zv'se 9zy'sT VLE'TE oro'TE 6ZT'TE TZT'ez z09'9z ZEELT vav'sz 06v’5T BSS5'0E 601'50E
LOESL 25z'029 T69'8S z69'8s [l 473 oce'te ZET'aY ozv'or SZ6'YE SS6'LE PIS'ED oot'es oEE'SY 20'a5
0052t £1v't6e % - 1 - L - L9e'T eos'y . osep2 & sosTL T9R'eY +  1SS'WET & ov'ses & THK'oy 061 ae'aeL
T2/YI/E
wurpes lumay zz-das 2z-6ny 2zHne zz-unt zz-Aew zz-1dy zzew zz-q%4 zz-0er 1z-39a 1z-AON TZ-10 panmuddy
pasafasd pewRfosd 3abpna ae8png eBpng ooy sy 1wmoy 1ergoy oY mnpy mmoy 1oy (Ll 8png
2207 Ad

CCOT-TZTOT 1A |edsld
po31abpng + Sjenjoy :pung [eJoudD - SIINNPUIdXy pue SINUIAIY

"AQ°'I'D"M youey uolunay

Smmpusdxy Juns
sanunawy ju [AnRpyeg ) /ssag

sainypusdxy oL

g USIERjaI - TFIIANE
5994 3Py
408IAPY PR
repaedy - seay Gousauibey
#9334 BupaBulBuz
ey Bupunoaoy
3505 jebe
- £393 Feuo|a8%j0.d
SIAAIRS “UIPY-[QEIGNS
snoauRjROsIN
NEqem
ORON 31kand
_UNINSUT
w224 1qa3|ed/jesjesddy xey
FUB LAWY JEEANE
xm |josded puj ‘s9a4 Jmzaq
- S934AI3S IARROS|UWPY

B S PIENG-TROIERE
anowue|RonIN
wasAs JNwM

Jnemmee
SuEuEqUIEW Puod

- B3V P L|8AOY FUANCH-ON

tenuod 1apo
uoIIBAUOD OTZ
LY

spuoy

- BT ¥ Ry BunL-n

SrusuRNU|EN Sdespury
DURURUIeW PUGd
uonesLIT
Inemasem
wanshs JoIem
- asuwuaquey B SIRdBY BuRnoY
394 Juusy
Bujiney o8pnis
Lo
suopzadeuy

rereyAIng JmEm
9b4wy] ApJuoW YNdim
59 UOEAIIESY SRIEM NS VHIT
- sesudoxg Bunesado
:Eum|puadxy

EpnuvAdY 0L

SO SN0 PUT PRSI
o] 984 uBnsedm]
ouronuy 99y dey
BORIEURd WNOIDY BOAIGS
3334 AL FAMIG
334 INAIGE J2IEM
- QunoadY B3RS
sanuRAey xu) Auadoug

18 of 58



Reunion Ranch W.C.I1.D.
Cash Account Reconciliations
June 30, 2022

First First
Citizens Citizens
Operating Bookkeeper's Total
Beginning Bank Balance 6/1/2022 $ 120,431.57 ¢ 41,644.42 $ 162,075.99
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments (181,901.75) (113,035.52) (294,937.27)
Deposits and Credits 93,045.74 129,509.90 222,555.64
Total Cleared Transactions (88,856.01) 16,474.38 (72,381.63)
Ending Bank Balance 6/30/2022 31,575.56 58,118.80 89,694.36
Uncleared Transactions
Deposits in Transit = = =
Outstanding Checks - (33,334.68) (33,334.68)
Total Uncleared Transactions - (33,334.68) (33,334.68)
Register Balance as of 6/30/2022 $ 31,575.56 $ 24,784.12 $ 56,359.68

See Accountants' Report.

19 of 58



Reunion Ranch W.C.I.D.

A/P Aging
As of June 30, 2022
Current 1-30 31-60 61-90 >90 TOTAL

Aquatic Features Inc 920.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 920.00
- 54.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 54.27
67.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 67.34
Bott & Douthitt, P.L.L.C. 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00
- 20.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20.41
37.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 37.44
DSHS Central Lab 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 106.96 106.96
e 23.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23.32
Inframark LLC 7.721.30 57,107.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 64,828.64
LCRA 4,990.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,990.68
Murfee Engineering Company 5,870.45 5,369.91 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 12,740.36
* 96.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 96.73
Pedernales Electric Cooperative 1,739.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,739.65
Sommers Marketing + Public Relations 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00
Verizon Wireless 50.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.56
| 73.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 73.62
West Travis County PUA 36,764.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36,764.00
Willatt & Flickinger, P.L.L.C. 9,602.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,602.74
Zane Furr 4,355.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,355.00
TOTAL 74,887.51 62,477.25 0.00 1,500.00 106.96 138,971.72

See Accountants’ Report.

20 of 58



“Hoday] ,SjuejuNoIdy 39§

68'sY 00°0 FA ! G56'CZ Wil 000
0C'.E 000 0€'6 098l 0€e'6 000
69'8 000 Lz SE'Y JAN4 000
LL'vSS 000 £5°8€1L S0°222 €S'8EL 000
68'GY- 000 Ly S6'¢c- - 000
000 000 000 000 000 000
0Z'L¢- 000 0€°6- 09'8}- 0€'6- 000
69'8- 000 LLe SEY AN 000
000 000 000 000 000 000
00009 000 00°0SL 00°00€ 00°0S1 000
00°009 000 00°0S1 olo.oon 00051 000
000 000 000 000 000 000
00°009 000 00°0S1 00°00€ 00°0S} 000
TV10L Apind esaiay] Jafap pieuoy 12)u3g) 3 uyor mmm._0|o Aieg |s1ueQ suuag

suonnquuoy) pue saxe] sakojdwig [ejoL

Auedwo? Qjunoag jeidog
Auedwo? asesipapy
suojjnquiuo) pue saxe] Jakojdwg

Ked JoN
PIYYlim saxe] |ejo]

Xe] |ppy 99Aojdw3 aseaipapy

sakojdwz fHunoag |e1dog

9sakojdwg aied1papy

Buipjoyyum |esapay
PISYYylim saxe]

Aed ssoug pajsnipy
Aed ssoig) |ejo|

abeajin
saa4 Jojoalnqg
Aed ssoin
syuawsnfpy pue saxe] ‘sabepy aakojdwg

Zzoz 8unp
Aewwng ||0JAed

"d’1"D’M Yyouey uoiunay

21 of 58



Debt Service Fund

22 of 58



Jioday SJUDJUNCDOY 835

Cl040CSI  § O000000E & (0280t  § 0000s0/  §  Zeieloz  § 0000ODS  §  vBLZSBZ 0000005 & /LISOST & 00008 § 0§l § 00000/ 6 SSEEZIT ¢ 00000SE f oL
eV VT 0000801 £ovvE 000 0E0'L - - : T - - = = - : SVOZ Ad
1ez21 000'0ET'L \£TZL 000 0£0°L . . % . . v = = Svoz/siie
18221 = 1441 - s : . - . : > . SY0z/SLIT
7695 000 562 L 608y 000566 0078 000062 > - - = ¥ . YOz Ad
16882 000's8e | wove 000546 05ey 000062 . - - v - 7 - : yroz/sL/e
L8E ST - 270V - 0SEY B - . . : = £ rOz/5 LT
20001 O00'SES | 01/ 000596 001 £ 000 082 000 06Z. - - - - 2 : 0T Ad
88008 000'SES | 905 5€ 000596 0558 000'08C 000'06% - - : . - - £Y0z/51/8
8£005 - 905 SE - 0558 B - * s - - e EYOZ/SL/T
055 6v 1 W0OVEZ 29 /8 000'C0L 00z 52 000022 000082 00EEL 000060°L : . : . 0z Al
STEVL 0000VE T SIBER 000004 00¥ Z1L 00002 000'08Z 0599 000'040°L - - . Zroz/sL/e
Szave - L1BEY = 00921 - = 0599 - - - - 5 RIS
88A'Z07 000SEE | 52586 000 05V 000 €€ 000 092 000042 52092 - BEB 01 000552 > z WOz Ad
(A 000°SEZ | £706F 0000 005 91 000052 000022 BEOEL = slvs 000552 . : 1902/51/8
yvv 101 - £RL 6y - 005 91 - - BEOEL = e - - . WYOz/S\IT
€10 452 SO0l 600'00Z 057 0% 000552 000052 05LBE - Si66L QODSLT 000552 [
905°GZ 1 FES LG 000002 STE0T 000'S5Z 000052 5L061 = 9866 000512 000552 ooz/sL/e
90582 = 86515 S STE0Z - i 50061 - 2066 - - woz/sLZ
896 60F 0005402 528 /01 000007 000 8% 00057 OO0 00/ 6k 000556 00682 o00DLZ 0005YZ AEZ Ad
[ 0005402 ELEES 000002 00092 000SvC 000052 0S8YZ 000'556 05yl 0000(2 0005YZ se0zisus
[a! - £16€5 . 000'7% = Z 0582 - 0spyL B - E0Z/SLIT
00[45E 000'C0L” /52l 000007 000'0FZ 00605 - ELTZE 000507, 000'CET. 900z Ad
055 6£1 00001t 86T95 000002 000'0EZ 05708 B 90881 00050z 000'0ET. 802/S1/8
055'4/1 = 882 95 5 - 0S¥'0E. - 50881 B - BE0Z/SLIT
Siy 107 000540 Seelil 000002 056'19 000 0T £9721 000522 S/517 - £985% 000002 000 GZZ. 2802 Ad
§€LE0C 000501 €99 85 00000z 5260E 000 0ET 18E'9E 000522 L5E - [C323 000002 000 022 160T/SL/8
$€£€07 . £99'85 : SL6°0E - (BEPE - 28/ 58 - LE6TT B - LEGZ/S 1T
95865y 000517 L 5207281 000002 05589 000022 €951 00002 ET 0000/ S04°E5 000681 0000(Z. 900 Ad
26 92C 0005151 BE0 (9 00000Z SLTVE 000022 (8L0v 000022 189°0% 000048 €565 000561 000012 FEazISLIE
824 927 - $£0'L9 B SLTVE S 1820% - 1B9°Y E £56'97 - - 9E0TI5|/T
EAT 0005101 528921 00000z £95VL 000S 1T €91°06 00051 €1808 = Wwils 000061 000561 5002 A
E006VT. 0005 10°C EIPER 000002 [€2LE 000512 180°SY 0005(Z FOV'SY - TI80E 000061 000'SA1 SE0Z/S1/8
01477 - EIVES B 343 - 1805¥ 5 L4512 E 2808 = - SEaz/S1/T
956 6€5 G00°005"L STELEL 000'00Z 00L 08 000502 £9E 86 000’50z 52v 6k 0007028 vy 169 000581 000'SBL ¥E0Z Ad
816697 000 005 [ 9959 000007 000502 B3 000705 TUSHE 000581 000581 YRQZ/5 /8
B/6697 - £9959 E - - 5 YE0Z/5L/Z
61085 000556 SZBSEL 000'GOZ 000502 000541 000 /L €00z Ad
260067 000556 EL&29 000002 000'50T 000841 00051 TEOZ/SL/E
160067 - £1679 = - = : £R02/S11T
BC/ 815 000011 SzE oVl 000'C0Z 000002 0000Z1 00057L 26002 M
69E'60F 00001 9107 00000z 000 00 0000z 1 000’551 ROT/S1/8
676°60€ - €901 = - . B ZR02/517T
SL5¥5P 0005z L' ey vv 00 B 000002 000051 00005 L 150 Ad
88C Z2€ 000SZ'L Weel 000581 000002 000071 000 091 (E02/51/8
862 /7€ - WZTL = = d - 1802/ L/T
00z 689 000580 | Szy eyl 000521 000'00Z 000°S5 000 051 otoz A
007 7VE 000’580 L SIZVL 000521 000002 000551 600051 0e0z/5L/8
009'Y¥E - E1ZYL B - - - 0R0Z/SLIT
005022 060000 L SZE 051 000 el 000007 0005w L 000'S¥ L s A
05 05€. 000'000°( B 000 0zl 00000 000w 000571 &u/slie
057 05¢. - £19'52 - - B - &20z/sL1z
182052 000'056 Szl est 000511 000'00Z 00007 000 SEL BZUZ AJ
bhUSZE 000054 9592 000°S LI 000'00Z 0000v | 000 SEL F0z/S\1/8
VLS - €959/ B - H - RO/S|/Z
HEE7 000'0E6 STESSL 0000L1 000 002 000 SEL GODOEL 120 M
90 688 00006 €99LL 000011 000'C0Z 000561 000l 0000E £20t/5118
90'48€ - £99'LL B - S : - £20CIS\ /T
V60 v08 000 548 Szr 51 000 501 000561 000Dl 000 9EL 000 02L Y2z M
Iy 000568 €18, 000°S01 000551 000541 000061 000 0EL 000 (L 5202/51/8
PO 20V - ELLBL d l - - = - 9z0L/5 LT
¥ve (28 000578 SZv651 00000t 000051 C00SAL 000051 0005z 1 000511 ST0E A
(73 000 578 EIL8L 000001 00005 000541 0000R 000521 000511 SCOz/S IR
ey - s - - - - = - s202/511Z
¥55 036 0005€8 g7 191 000001 0005k L 000561 000°0Z1 000'S 0000LL YZ0Z A4
eser 000SES €108 000001 000 S¥L 000561 0007021 0005 000011 YZoz/sLig
1Ty - £1£08 - = 2 - = - vZ0z/5 11T
VSA0/E 000518 STV E9L 0001001 000 OrC 000541 000571 000508 £20Z M
117 587 000518 €18 000 001 0000v L 000561 000'S91 000'50L £202/51/8
LL7'SEY = 118 - - = - S = S20Z/SL1T
viles8 000 067 SZr 9L - 000 SEL 000'SéL 000551 000501 FETCI 000001 7207 A
1507 000069 BYat] = 000'SE( 00561 000°S5 | 000’501 08065 000°G0% ww/se
507wy - Pat) - - - B = 08065 - wOzISUIT O2SIIT
L2&'8vE 000047 Zv0 801 = 000 OEL 000561 000051 000001 SE5 021 00054 1202 Ad
905 BLr 000049 Zr0 801 B 0000EL 000561 000051 000001 89209 00056 LZ0z/5t78 1Z02/51/8
Y9y'0LE = : C = - = = B9Z09 = \z0z/5t 1z 1202/51/T
Eve£0L 000518 000581 - 000°Sv L 00056 095 2t 00008 ozoz A
165 968 000515 000 581 = 0005 L 00056 0BT 00006 020z/5 118 0z0z/S /8
ol - - - . . - - B 08z'19 - 0Z0Z/S 17T ®OTISI /T
0v0'E5S 00002 = - : : = 0000rL 00058 [AzAY C005E B10Z Ad
S 000 0% ] - . . OEEEe! B 0000v | 00056 0ELZ 00056 5102/51/8 s10z/51/8
SSE41T - . C . . : . = 0E1Z9 - 10215112 610215112
€85 B6E 000021 . - - C 00004 099521 00008 9107 A
9EL95C 00001 - . C : 00006 0E8Z9 00008 810z/51/8 2102/51/8
9 ZEL - - . - S 0889 - SL0T/5L/T B102/51/%
PLLSIT = - - . 2 = - - 099'6Z| = 2002 M
rrézsL - 4 [ Y 4 v 3 q 0£8Z9 - £10z/51/8 2402/51/8
05873 - J : : £ : s ’ 06829 - 210275172 210TIS\T
SL0E8 - - - . x - = - = : S/0°¢8 - 107 Ad
SL0E8 - - - : - - - - - - - 5/0€8 - F102/51/8 9102/51/8
- $ - $ . L S 1 . L B 3 . L 5 ] 1 " s T 5 » | $ s $102/51/2
[ TEaa Waaedid WS ed [ T aEjedisa TN oy F LI ) 34og pIBd 34pg ang
%USLET - %00T 59I0W 13919)u] %00 - %00 Z S {38iaju] %STLY - %042 S9IDN Posal %SE - %00 T S9IDY [10:84u[ %STIE - %00 € SH0N 19294 00 - %SL | T9I0N §50a4ul
e10L 020z s3uas 410 21198 80T tapss £10Z sdU95 910z sapag §10Z saua§

3)NpPayds 9o1AISS 1qad

PILSIq JusWaA0IdW]| § [OJUOD) 19jDM YouDy Uolunay

23 of 68



Expenditures to be Approved

24 of 58



Reunion Ranch W.C.I.D.

Director Fees
August 16, 2022

Date

08/16/2022

08/16/2022

08/16/2022

08/16/2022

08/16/2022

08/16/2022

08/16/2022

TOTAL

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

2099

2100

Num

Source Name

Gary C Grass
Gary C Grass
Gary C Grass

Theresa Purdy
Theresa Purdy
Theresa Purdy

Dennis Daniel
Dennis Daniel
Dennis Daniel
Dennis Daniel

Gary C Grass
Gary C Grass
Gary C Grass

John E Genter
John E Genter
John E Genter

Ronald Meyer
Ronald Meyer
Ronald Meyer
Ronald Meyer

Theresa Purdy
Theresa Purdy
Theresa Purdy

Payroll Item

Amount

Director Fees
Social Security Employee
Medicare Employee

Director Fees
Social Security Employee
Medicare Employee

Director Fees

Mileage

Social Security Employee
Medicare Employee

Director Fees
Social Security Employee
Medicare Employee

Director Fees
Social Security Employee
Medicare Employee

Director Fees

Mileage

Social Security Employee
Medicare Employee

Director Fees
Social Security Employee
Medicare Employee

150.00
(9.30)
(2.17)

138.53

150.00
(9.30)
(2.17)

138.53

150.00
20.00
(9.30)
(2.17)

158.53

150.00
(9.30)
(2.18)

138.52

150.00
(9.30)
(2.18)

138.52

150.00
20.63
(9.30)
(2.18)

159.16

150.00
(9.30)
(2.18)

138.52
1,010.30

25 of 58



Aquatic Features, Inc.

Invoice

6611 Burnet Lane )
Austin, TX 78757 Dats Invoice #
8/5/2022 202208422
Bill To Info
Reunion Ranch MUD
c/o Inframark
14050 Summit Drive
Austin TX 78728
P.O. No. Terms Project
Quantity Description Rate Amount
1| Professional Service Lake: Invoice is for work done in preceding 680.00 680.00
month from invoice date.
1 | Lake Chemical budget: growth inhibitors: Sonar One 95.00 95.00
6| Pond dye 15.00 90.00
1 | Beneficial-engineered microbes to help digest sulfur smell, digestion 15.00 15.00
of leaf/ plant material reduce sludge.
Travis sales tax 8.25% 0.00
Total $880.00
Phone # E-mail Web Site

(512) 301-3199

scott@aquaticfeaturesinc.com

aquaticfealuresinc.com

26 of 58



Invoice

"’P Date Invoice #
D o uth 'tt @ 7/31/2022 12309
PLLC
Bill To

Reunion Ranch WCID

PO Box 2445

Round Rock, TX 78680

Description Amount

Monthly Accounting Services - Meeting 2,000.00

By/Date Racej

By/Date Poste

Hand Delivere
Maited By/Dat
GL#: (2337

e WR-B20D
g AN -9

Approved for [Payment:

d to:

W

Thank you for your business!

Total

$2,000.00

PO Box 2445 « Round Rock, TX < 78680
Phone (512) 733-0700 « Fax (512) 733-0704

27 of 58




@INFRAMARK

Inframark LLC

2002 West Grand Parkway North
Suite 100

Katy, TX 77449

Bill To:

Reunion Ranch WCID

Bott & Douthitt

PO Box 2445

Round Rock TX 78680

United States

Services provided for the Month of: July 2022

SALES DESCRIPTION

Operations Charges

Wastewater Treatment Plant(s) and Sub-Surface Drip
Irigation Facilities.

Lift Stations

Stormwater System
Management

Connections - Residential
Connections - Gommercial Units
Total Operations Charges
Administration Charges
Postage

Stationary

Delinquent Letters

Service Transfers

Total Administration Charges

QUANTITY

511
17

o

UNITS

Ea

Ea
Ea
Ea
Ea
Ea

Ea
Ea
Ea
Ea

J‘% 8:
A 39

G130

Invoice:
Invoice Date:
Due Date:
Terms;
Project ID:
PO #:
RATE
$3,000.00
$500.00
$500.00
$500.00
$5.00
$5.00
$309.51
$93.63
$7.50
$9.50
Subtotal
Tax (0%)
Total Due

81015
8/3/2022
9/2/2022
Net 30
RRWCID

AMOUNT

$3,000.00

$500.00
$500.00
$500.00
$2,555.00
$85.00
$7,140.00

$309.51
$93.63
$60.00
$76.00
$539.14

$7,679.14
$0.00

$7,679.14

1 0f2

28 of 58



Ll

Lower Colorado River Authority

Quostions for firm raw water service, call (512) 730-6757
www.lcra.org Previous Balance $9,672.47
ENERGY » WATER » COMMUNITY SERVICES Payments $(0,672.47)
By /Date Recelved: A 99 Cradits / AdJustments $0.00
o Balance Forward $0.00
By/Date Posted: ___J 1) 3~ J- R
REUNION RANCH WCID Approved for Payment: Current Charges $5,701.78
C/O BOTT & DOUTHITT, PLLC Hand Deli . Account Balance $5,701.78
ATTN: LISA WALD and Delivered to:
PO BOX 2445 Mailed By/Date:
ROUND ROCK TX 78680-2445
ale:_ 0305 3wkl 30
6,50 QQOO'L‘Q Page 1 of 2
Service Address: Account Customer Statement Date Due Date
Account Type: Raw Firm (PUA) 00548605 00602793 07/29/22 08/28/22
- © 777 Contract:” ~800-018-8425B ~— < T =i
Service From Service to Meter Days Previous Read Current Read Use (Gal)
06/08/22 07/01/22 66514301 23 282038.00 296421.00 14,383,000.00
06/08/22 07/01/22 LOSS-RR 23 282038.00 286421.00 86,298.00
BILLING DETAILS MAQ = 350.00 AF
Transaction Description Consumption Rate Amount Consumption History
Month Use (AF)
Previous Balance $9,672.47 Jan 2022 19.09
Payment - Thank You o Sf724n) Feb 2022 13.00
Balance Forward $0.00 Mar 2022 12.67
Raw Water Apr 2022 2355
Monthly Reservation Fee 2017 $77.50 $2,260.42 May 2022 31.24
Raw Water - Firm 44.40 $77.50 $3,441.36 duniZ022 35.23
.................................................................. Jul 2022 44.40
Current Charges $5,701.78 TOTAL i e
Account Balance $5,701.78 1 AF = 325,851 gallons

LCRA is offering water conservation rebates, including mulch/compost, rainwater harvesting and irrigation evaluations. To get more
detailed information and see how to apply, check out WaterSmart.org.

PAYMENT OPTIONS
l:sllé 201589 e ] Online: Scan QR In Person: ACH:
! A code or visit Local HEB
Dallas, TX 75303-1589 ra.orq/ Il (HEBchargesafee)  ABA#111-000.614

JPMorgan Chase Bank of Texas
Account #09922872675

Wire:

JPMorgan Chase Bank of Texas
ABA #021-000-021
Accoun| #09922872675 _

Accounts may be subject to penaity charges if payment Is not recelved by the due date.
LCRA is not affillated with any third party bill
At

Ll

ENERGY » WATER « COMMUNITY SERVICES

REUNION RANCH WCID

C/0 BOTT & DOUTHITT, PLLC
ATTN: LISA WALD

PO BOX 2446

ROUND ROCK TX 78680-2445

Page 1 0of 2

yment services and can only control the t_lgnjgfl of payments made directly toLCRA,
Hetum s porllan wilki yoir payment. Alfow 5'days by mail.” """ """""""""""

Account Customer Statement Date Due Date Account Balance
00548605 00602793 07/29/22 08/28/22 $5,701.78
Remit To:
LCRA
PO Box 301589

Dallas, TX 75303-1589

00548L0500602793000570L785
29 of 58



Murfee €ngln¢er|ng Compony_ i

Murfee Engineering

1101 Capital of Texas Hwy South
Building D

Austin, TX 78746

Reunion Ranch WCID Invoice number 46472

VIA EMAIL Date 06/13/2022
c/o Bott and Douthitt

PO BOX 2445 Project 12002 REUNION RANCH

Round Rock, TX 78680

Professional Engineering Services Rendered Through March 31, 2022
$1,500 per month

Contract Prior Current
Description Amount Billed Billed
12002-119 District Engineering 2021-2022 18,000.00 9,000.00 1,500.00
Board Meeting and Prep.

Total 18,000.00 9,000.00 1,500.00
Invoice total 1,500.00

it 5 JR _g_f,a__bf_aq_,__
Reunion Ranch WCID invoice number 46472 Invoice date 06/13/2022

30 of 58



T T

eering Company

Murfee Engineering
1101 Capital of Texas Hwy South
Building D
Austin, TX 78746

Reunion Ranch WCID Invoice number 46840

VIA EMAIL Date 08/09/2022
c/o Bott and Douthitt

PO BOX 2445 Project 12002 Reunion Ranch

Round Rock, TX 78680

Professional Engineering Services Rendered Through July 31, 2022

PROFESSIONAL FEES
12002-117 Design & Construction Phase 210 Conversion Pump Skid Installation
Billed
Hours Rate Amount
Project Manager
Andrea Wyatt 4.50 175.00 787.50
PROFESSIONAL FEES subtotal 4.50 787.50
Invoice total 787.50

Page 1

31 of 58



_ 1 T e ———
i s e i e P L] e

Murfee €nglneering Company

Murfee Engineering

1101 Capital of Texas Hwy South
Building D

Austin, TX 78746

Reunion Ranch WCID Invoice number 46841

VIA EMAIL Date 08/09/2022
c/o Bott and Douthitt

PO BOX 2445 Project 12002 REUNION RANCH

Round Rock, TX 78680

Professional Engineering Services Rendered Through July 31, 2022
Board meeting and prep; Engineering Service Agreement update and presentation to board.

$1,500 per month

Contract Prior Current

Description Amount Billed Billed

12002-119 District Engineering 2021-2022 18,000.00 13,500.00 1,500.00
Board Meeting and Prep.

Total 18,000.00 13,500.00 1,500.00

Invoice total 1,500.00

Reunlon Ranch WCID Invoice number 48841 Invoice date 08/08/2022

32 of 68



Murfee Engineering
1101 Capital of Texas Hwy South
Building D
Austin, TX 78746

Reunion Ranch WCID Invoice number 46842

VIA EMAIL Date 08/09/2022
c/o Bott and Douthitt

PO BOX 2445 Project 12002 Reunion Ranch

Round Rock, TX 78680

Professional Engineering Services Rendered Through July 31, 2022
Dewatered solids conveyance system bidding and site visits with bidders; DCP updates, noise and odor site
visits; turbidity/BOD/Ecoli data

PROFESSIONAL FEES
12002-120 District Engineering Additional Services 2021-2022
Billed
Hours Rate Amount
Project Manager
Andrea Wyatt 40.00 175.00 7.000.00
Engineering Technician Il
Philip E. Parker 12.00 115.00 1,380.00
PROFESSIONAL FEES subtotal 52.00 8,380.00
REIMBURSABLES
12002-120 District Engineering Additional Services 2021-2022
Billed
Amount
Mileage Allowances 74.63
REIMBURSABLES subtotal 74.63
Invoice total 8,454.63

B9

B8N

Page 1

33 of 58



SOMMERS

MARKETING

5900 Southwest Parkway
Suite 5-520
Austin, TX 78735
Reunion Ranch
Jeniffer Concienne
Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC
12912 Hill Country Blvd., Suite F-232
Austin, TX 78738
Job Code Invoice # Terms
8330 Net 30
Description Amount
July Website Edits 650.00
Edits to site to add status report for June 30
Edits to site to add new Stage 3 Watering Restrictions guidelines
Edits to site to update Stage 2 to Stage 3 Walering Restrictions on status bar on Home page
Edits to site to update headline wording for What Not to Flush and to separate link from other status
updates
Edits to site to add new 2021 Audit under Finance section
Edits to site to add agenda for July 19 Board meeting
Edits to site to add agenda packets for July 19 Board meeting
Edits to site to add May 17 Board meeting minutes
Edits to site to add new link to the Board of Directors section with the Committee Assignments PDF
Edits to site to add emergency phone number to footer and Contact page
Sales Tax - 8.25% 0.00

=

UL90

The stated price includes Texas sales or use taxes, if applicable

Please remit payment to:

Sommers Marketing + Public Relations
5900 Southwest Parkway, Suite 5-520
Austin, TX 78735

Total $650.00
Payments/Credits $0.00
Balance Due $650.00

34 of 58



WEST TRAVIS COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY AGENCY

13215 BEE CAVE PKWY
BLDG B, STE 110 Account Number AMOUNT DUE
BEE CAVE, TX 78738
(512) 263-0125 O www.wicpua.org 260523-00061-00 $38,212.70
Plaase meke chacks payable 1o WTCPUA Due Date After Due Date Pay
8/30/2022 $40,505.46
Service Address
136 JACKSAW Dr

Amount Enclosed

REUNION RANCH WCID
C/OBOTT & DOUTHITT,PLLC

ATTN: LISA WALD WTCPUA
P.O. BOX 2445 13215 BEE CAVE PKWY
ROUND ROCK, TX 78680 BLDG B, STE 110

BEE CAVE, TX 78738

There will be a charge on all retumed checks.
Please return this portion with your payment.
When paying in person, please bring both partions of this bill.

CUSTOMER ACCOUNT INFORMATION - RETAIN FOR YOUR RECORDS

Name Service Address Account Number
REUNION RANCH WCID 136 JACKSAW Dr 250523-00061-00
Status From Sentir:.a____b%gs_s #Days Bill Date Due Date Penalty Date
Actlve 711/2022 8/1/2022 3 &3/2022 8/30/2022 8/31/2022
PREVIOUS BALANCE $36,764.00
PAYMENTS ($36,764.00)
ADJUSTMENTS $0.00
PENALTIES $0.00
PAST DUE AMOUNT $0.00
METER # CURRENT PREVIOUS  USAGE
READING READING  0n 000 Gallons)
66514301 311,682 296,421 15261  Wholessle Water $25,180.65
Monthly Charge $13,032.05
CURRENT BILL $38,212.70
AMOUNT DUE $38,212.70
AMOUNT DUE AFTER 08/30/2022 $40,505.46
16000 — -— — - ey
14000 i
12000 o
10000 E E
8000 -
‘r._lll‘. 5
6000 - SH
4000 - _,. .
2000 - B
0 - I3l &

BB 3-29
. J50-9N

Sep 2020 to Aug 2021 o5 Sep 2021 to Aug 2022

Hours of Operation - 8:00-12:00, 1:00-5:00 Mon-Frl

N . Lo
e bte

o158 BB

35 of 68



WILLATT & FLICKINGER, PLLC
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

12912 HILL COUNTRY BLVD., SUITE F-232 - AUSTIN, TEXAS 78738 * (512) 476-6604 - FAX (512) 469-9148
July 31,2022
Bott & Douthitt, PLLC

P.O. Box 2445
Round Rock, Texas 78680-2445

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED since the date of last billing in connection with
Reunion Ranch WCID:

BILL FLICKINGER
07/05/22 Continue revising draft agenda for next board meeting. (0.2 Hours).

07/06/22 Review drought stages, District drought contingency plan, WTCPUA current
drought contingency plan, communications from WTCPUA and District website.
Facilitate proper notice on website for Stage 3. Emails with Dennis Daniel on
ame. (1.5 Hours).

07/07/22 Continue revising effluent disposal agreement with the HOA. (1.6 Hours).

07/12/22 Continue revising agenda for next board meeting. Review emails from John
Genter and Dennis Daniel on same. (0.5 Hours). Continue preparation for next
board meeting. (0.5 Hours).

07/14/22 Continue preparation for today's conference with Dennis Daniel and Terri Purdy.
(0.5 Hours). Complete preparation for and attend conference with Dennis Daniel
and Terri Purdy to review draft agenda and prepare for next board meeting. (0.9
Hours). Finalize agenda for next board meeting. (0.3 Hours).

07/15/22 Continue review of agenda packet for next board meeting. (0.3 Hours). Continue
preparation for next board meeting. (0.7 Hours).

07/18/22 Continue preparation for tomorrow's board meeting. (0.9 Hours). Emails with
Andrea Wyatt on amendment to drought contingency plan. (0.2 Hours).

07/19/22 Continue preparation for today's board meeting. (2.6 Hours). Complete
preparation for and attend board meetmg (39Hours) J‘S 8 [ QQ

07/20/22 Review action items from yesterday s board meetmg (0 7-1.'1;3'“5) Jb B q .?;)

(330

36 of 58



WILLATT & FLICKINGER, PLLC

July 31, 2022
Page 2

07/21/22

07/22/22

07/27/22

07/28/22

Review action items from last board meeting. (0.5 Hours).

Emails with Andrea Wyatt on revisions to drought contingency plan and continue
to review proposed changes to drought contingency plan. (0.5 Hours).

Review proposed website and email blast with information on various topics
addressed at the last board meeting. (0.3 Hours). Continue review of criteria for
modifications to common areas. (0.3 Hours).

Continue revising draft agenda for next board meeting. (0.5 Hours).

Attorney BF: 17.4 Hours

HUNTER HUDSON

07/01/22

07/11/22

07/12/22

07/13/22

07/15/22

07/19/22

07/21/22

07/22/22

07/27/22

Draft open records request extension letter. (0.5 Hours).

Email from resident on constructing pool during Stage 3 restrictions. (0.3 Hours).
Continue marshalling responsive documents and final review of confidential
information for open records request. Call to Save Our Springs on same. (0.7

Hours).

Finish marshalling evidence and review of confidential information needing
redacting for open records request. (0.5 Hours).

Monitor information under 210 authorization permit for open records request and
send responsive documents to requestor. (1.5 Hours).

Prepare for meeting by reviewing agenda packet and other items to be discussed at
the meeting. (1.2 Hours).

Review action items for next board meeting. (0.3 Hours).

Drought contingency plan communication with engineers and review stages. (0.4
Hours).

Drought contingency email from engineer on PUA changes. (0.2 Hours).

Attomey HH: 5.6 Hours

37 of 58



WILLATT & FLICKINGER, PLLC

July 31, 2022
Page 3

GREG SZUMAN

07/12/22

07/21/22

Receive and review email from board members regarding cybersecurity training.
Forward to Jeniffer Concienne and update checklist. (0.3 Hours). Review
Governor's Drought Disaster Declaration and its implications. (0.3 Hours).

Review action items from board meeting. (0.3 Hours). Draft and send letter to
Reunion Ranch HOA regarding approval of common area improvements. (0.7
Hours).

Attorney GS: 1.6 Hours

JENIFFER CONCIENNE

07/12/22

07/13/22

07/14/22

Receive and review email from Kristen Merz on copy of audit. Send same to her.
(0.2 Hours). Review email from Secretary of State and complete Annual Systems
Voting Report as required. (0.5 Hours). Review various emails on compliance
of WTCPUA contract and current watering restrictions. (0.5 Hours). Receive
and review annual audit engagement letter from Jimmy Romell. Create Form
1295 tracking number and send same to him. Add item to agenda. (0.5 Hours).
Review Drought Contingency Plan amendments and add same to agenda. (0.3
Hours). Review email from Dennis Daniel on new format for agendas. (0.2
Hours). Review latest Effluent Disposal Contract. (0.2 Hours). Review
proposed amendment to engineering contract from Bryce Canady. Add item to
agenda per Board President. (0.2 Hours). Receive and review email from John
Genter on agenda item related to TCEQ NOVs and DRVs from builders. Respond
to same. (0.4 Hours). Review committee assignments. (0.2 Hours). Receive
and review confirmation of cybersecurity training by Dennis Daniel; send same for
per diem. (0.2 Hours). Review District Rules on violations. (0.3 Hours).
Begin drafting letter to WTCPUA on notification of amendment to DCP. (0.3
Hours). Receive and review confirmation of cybersecurity training from Ron
Meyer; send same to Jessica Benson. (0.2 Hours).

Review information for Open Records Request from Save Our Springs. (0.5
Hours). Continue preparing for next week’s board meeting. Receive, review and
respond to Ronja Keyes on manager’ s report. (0.9 Hours).

Receive and review bookkeeper's report. Receive and review manager's report.
Continue preparing agenda package for next week's meeting. (1.1 Hours).
Prepare for and attend committee meeting with Dennis Daniel and Terri Purdy.
Finalize agenda in accordance with same. Arrange to post agenda with Hays
County Clerk. Send agenda to Inframark for posting within the District. Send
email to Ron Meyer on submission of information for agenda package. (1.4

38 of 58



WILLATT & FLICKINGER, PLLC

July 31, 2022
Page 4

07/15/22

07/19/22

07/20/22

07/21/22

07/22/22

Hours). Send email to Dennis Daniel on LCRA water conservation cost-sharing
grant. Telephone conference with him on same. (0.2 Hours). Send email to
Board on quorum check. (0.2 Hours).

Continue preparing agenda package. Receive, review and respond to Ron Meyer
on debris cleanup estimate. Telephone phone conference with Andrea Wyatt on
proposal. Receive meeting attendance confirmations. Complete agenda package
and send to all parties and arrange to post agenda package on website. (3.5 Hours).

Receive and review email from HCAD on next board meeting. (0.2 Hours).
Receive, review and respond to emails Dennis Daniel on today's board meeting.
(0.3 Hours). Receive and review construction notice of termination from Taylor
Morrison in connection with MS4 permit. (0.2 Hours). Receive and review
training confirmation form Terri Purdy; send same to Jessica Benson. (0.2
Hours). Review emails from Andrea Wyatt on Drought Contingency Plan.
Continue preparing for today’s board meeting. (1.9 Hours). Complete
preparation for and attend board meeting. (4.2 Hours).

Review action items from yesterday’s board meeting and begin processing
paperwork on same. Send video link and approved Minutes for posting on
website. Mail per diem to Gary Grass. Send approved audit engagement letter
to Jimmy Romell. Telephone conference with Allen Douthitt on yesterday’'s
board meeting and next meeting. Receive and review emails from Dennis Daniel
on actions from yesterday’s board meeting. Send information to committee on
same. Arrange to post committee assignments on website. (2.3 Hours).

Send email to Steven Van Landingham on status of Agreed Final Order. (0.2
Hours). Continue review of Drought Contingency Plan and revisions to same.
(0.5 Hours). Begin drafting newly formatted agenda for August meeting. (0.4
Hours). Review approvals for common area improvements. (0.5 Hours).
Receive, review and respond to Ronja Keyes on contact information. (0.2 Hours).
Receive, review and respond to Steven Van Landingham on status of Final Agreed
Order. (0.2 Hours). Send email to committee on new LCRA program. (0.2
Hours).

Receive and review TCEQ notification on public interactive water features.
Telephone conferences with staff on same to update contact information. Send
same to Inframark. (0.5 Hours). Receive, review and respond to Kara Wagner
on website postings. (0.2 Hours). Finalize criteria for improvements to common
area. Send same to Ron Meyer. Review reply and forward information to the
HOA. (0.5 Hours). Continue preparing newly formatted agenda for next board
meeting. (0.3 Hours).

39 of 58



WILLATT & FLICKINGER, PLLC

July 31, 2022
Page 5

07/26/22

07/27/22

07/28/22

07/29/22

Draft and send letter to Matt Bland forwarding approved Effluent Disposal Contract
for signature by the HOA. Receive and review emails from Dennis Daniel on
same. (0.7 Hours). Receive and review certifications for budget/tax rate
preparation. (0.8 Hours). Receive and review documentation from Andrea
Wyatt for submission to the TCEQ in regard to the Final Agreed Order. (0.7
Hours). Send finalized criteria to Ron Meyer for review. (0.2 Hours). Receive
and review email from Jenifer O' Kane on certified values. Telephone conference
with her on same. (0.3 Hours).

Receive and review email from Terri Purdy on information for watering restrictions
and other action items from last board meeting. Review website for all references
to watering restrictions. Send email to Terri Purdy on same. Review response.
Arrange to post on District website and provide for eblast. (1.5 Hours). Receive,
review and respond to email from Mike Moyer on director lot documentation for
conveyance to HOA. (0.4 Hours). Receive and review email from Garry
Kimball on tax calculations. (0.2 Hours). Begin preparing documentation for
budget/tax rate. (0.8 Hours).

Retrieve final election reports and send email to Dennis Daniel, John Genter and
Gary Grass on final election reports. (0.4 Hours). Continue working on new
agenda format and begin drafting minutes of last board meeting. Continue prepare
budget and tax documentation. (1.0 Hours). Receive and review email from
Karen Lockett on corrected tax worksheets; send same to Garry Kimball. (0.2
Hours). Receive and review email from Andrea Wyatt on PUC DCP stages. (0.2
Hours). Send email to Terri Purdy on comments to documents for publishing to
website. (0.2 Hours). Receive and review Form 1295 from Maxwell Locke &
Ritter. Acknowledge same with Texas Ethics Commission and update database.
(0.4 Hours).

Receive and review email from Dennis Daniel on committees. (0.2 Hours). Send
proposed agenda to all parties for review and comment. (0.2 Hours). Receive
and review copy of final enforcement order and upcoming deadlines. (0.4 Hours).
Receive and review emails from Terri Purdy and Dennis Daniel on documents
posted to website. Arrange for same. Schedule committee meeting to review
draft agenda. (0.5 Hours). Receive, review and respond to Mike Moyer on draft
agenda. (0.2 Hours).

Legal Assistant JC: 34.5 Hours

ALLISON NIX

07/06/22

Send draft agenda to all for review and comment. (0.3 Hours). Review District's
website. Draft and send emails to website manager and Ronja Keyes regarding

40 of 58



WILLATT & FLICKINGER, PLLC

July 31, 2022

Page 6
mandatory Stage 3 watering restrictions. Receive responses on same. (0.6
Hours).

07/07/22 Draft and send email to Ronja Keyes to confirm notice of mandatory watering
restrictions has been sent to the TCEQ and LCRA. Receive response from her on
same. (0.2 Hours). Draft and send email to the Board providing draft Effluent
Disposal Contract with the HOA for review. (0.2 Hours).

07/11/22 Receive and review emails from Dennis Daniel on proposed committees. Forward

document on proposed committees to Board with cover email. (0.2 Hours).
Legal Assistant AN: 1.5 Hours
CHANCE MURDOCK
07/07/22 Continue revising effluent contract with HOA. (0.8 Hours).

Legal Assistant CM: 0.8 Hours

Attomey BF: 17.4 Hours @ $325.00 per hour $5,655.00
Attomey HH: 5.6 Hours @ $325.00 per hour $1,820.00
Attomey GS: 1.6 Hours @ $325.00 per hour $520.00
Legal Assistant JC: 34.5 Hours @ $115.00 per hour $3,967.50
Legal Assistant AN: 1.5 Hours @ $115.00 per hour $172.50
Legal Assistant CM: 0.8 Hours @ $115.00 per hour $92.00
CLIENT EXPENSES

1,356 Photocopies @ $0.20 each $271.20
439 Color Photocopies @ $0.50 each  $219.50
Hays County Clerk $3.00
Diligent Delivery Systems $40.98
Total Client Expenses $534.68

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE  $12,761.68

g\bills\RRanch-2022.7
731122

41 of 58



PLEASE REMIT TO:

Zane Furr
806 Madrone Drive
Georgetown, Tx 78628
(512) 825-7162
Involce Date
1 8/1/2022
Reunion Ranch MUD
P.O. Box 2445 Invelce #
Round Rock, Texas 78681 ZF2022-RR-July
ATTN: Mary Bott
_] Customer ID #
RR
Service
Date Description
71612022 Reunion Ranch $620.00
Mow Drip lrrigation Fields
717712022 Reunion Ranch $85.00
Mow WWTP
711112022 Reunion Ranch $620.00
Mow Drip Imigation Fields
7/14/2022 Reunion Ranch $25.00
Mow Lift Station #1
711412022 Reunion Ranch $26.00
Mow Lift Station #2
711412022 Reunion Ranch $65.00
Dralnage Easement
Mow 341 Adam Court
711412022 Reunion Ranch $65.00
Drainage Easement
Mow 158 Denise Cove
711412022 Reunion Ranch $150,00
Mow Titfanie Water Detention Pond
7/14/2022 Reunion Ranch $150.00
Mow Katie Drive Walter Detention Pond
] ! i
711912022 Reunion Ranch $620.00 l {1 | ¢
Mow Drip Irrigation Fletds i I| i } :
! 1 i
71912022 Reunion Ranch $250.00 8‘ o b
Mow Reunion Blvd Water Datenton Pond Y| i o !'
L b i
712012022 Reunion Ranch $150.00 ~ " .
Mow Mary Elise Water Detention Pond N ‘ !
1 H
712012022 Reunion Ranch $620.00 eo ! ' b
Mow Drip Irvigation Fields O f S
) ) :E: ! i -
712012022 Reunion Ranch $250.00 . 2 s
Mow Jacksdaw Water Detention Pond oo , O
(.; N 5 3 b ¥
TOTAL DUE UPON RECEIPT $3,735.00 S L - i
Al Pay Due Upon pt. Late P, Ponaity of 8% Applied to Unpald Balance After 8/31/2022 ” o
2 i

42 of 58



Bookkeeper's Account Expenditures

43 of 58



8G 10 ¥v
£995¢56 (Q1nyonie] pueneass

008 S|I0Y Xel LZ0Z ayoog - suaznd isiid
008 junowy 33yod
00°.8 00°.8 008 Lcoe g  c¢eoc/iiL
Juawied unoosIg anQ aduejeg RuY [eulbuQ aouassyay adf aeq
cecociviiL J0JO3||0D-10SS8sSSY XB ] Auno)) sAeH

180¢ LNNODIV SHIAIIWNO0O0E [ “GTI'M HONVY NOINNIY



JULY 1%, 2022

Hays County Tax Assessor-Collector
Jenifer One. PCC

W et

712 S. Stagecoach Trail
Suite 1120
San Marcos, TX 78666
(512) 393-5545

INVOICE

REUNION RANCH WCID

P.O. BOX 2445

ROUND ROCK TX 78680

RE: ASSESSING AND COLLECTING FEES

ASSESSING-COLLECTING FEES FOR 2021 TAX ROLLS

TOTAL DUE

580 @ $0.15/parcel $87.00
0 @ $0.85/parcel $ o
$87.00

$87.00

By/Date Raceivad: % -2
By/Date Posted: WiH-27
Approved for Payment: |
Hand Detivered to: __
Mailed By/Date: 119" N
a1 b4 ~ -

/i,/:") ’:J 3" 45 of 58



8G 10 9y
£995£55 a1 Wred1 8] pueness

89'0€C

G9'0€C

G9'0¢C
JuswAed

6802

Junowy %98Yo

Junoosiq
2¢0¢/0ciL

g9'0ce
anQ aouejeg

$9'0€C
Jwy [euibuo

ccoz Aine - auoydsja L. aypoog - suazniD isid

¢c/L0 LP9S-882-21S g [AAVA[ %))
aoualgjey adi] aeqg

181V
ANNOJJV SUILIAIMI00E / "QT"I'M HONVY NOINN3Y



REUNION RANCH
PO BOX 2445
ROUNO ROCK TX 78680 - 2445

Monthly Statement

Bill-At-A-Glance

Previous Bill 238.39
Payment Received 6-27 Thank you! 238.39CR
Adjustments .00
Balance .00
Current Charges 230.685
Total Amount Due $230.65
Amount Due in Full By Jul 28, 2022

Billing Summary

Online: att. com/myatt Page

Plans and Services 1
1 800 321-2000

Service Changes:
1 800 321-2000

Repair Services:
1 800 286-8313

Total Current Charges

News You Can Use Summary

* PREVENT DISCONNECT

¢ RATE INCREASE

e COST ASSESSMENT CHRG
See "News You Can Use™ for additional informaticn

Roturn bottom portion with your check in the endosed envelope.

230.65

230.85

« LONG DIST. PROVIDERS
* EMAIL MY INVOICE
= STILL GETTING PAPER?

Page 1of2
Billing Date Jul 3 2022

Web Sita att.com

Accourt Number 512 283-5641 322 9

Expand your AT&T i
Get internet, wireless and other premium services from
AT&T. We're eager to help you find the best deals possible.
Call 800.516.9368. Business customers: 800.321.2000
Maoathly Service - Jul 3thru Aup 2
1. Bus Local Calling Unlimited B 180.00
Business Line (Measured Rate)
Caller |0 Name Delivery
Caller |0 Number Delivery
Expanded Local Calling Service
Touchtone
Unlimited Local Usage
Additjons and Changes to Service
This section of your bill reflects charges and credits resulting
from account activity.
Item Monthly Amount
No._ Description uantity _Rate Billed
Activityon Jul 1,
{Monthly Charges are Prorated from —_—
Jul 1, 2022 through Jul 2, 2022)
2 Federo! Universal Service Fee = = t- 04
3. Federal Subscriber Line Charge 1 00
Total Additions acd Changes to Service o4
Campany Fees and Surcharges
4. Federa! Subscriber Line Charge 8.18
5. 911 Fee .50
8. State Cost Recovery Charge 50
1. Federal Universal Service Fee 2,03
8. Texas Universal Service 8.47
9. Cost Assessment Charge 8.12
Total Campany Feas and Surcharges .18
Savernment Fees and Taxes
10. Federal 4.57
1. State and Lacal 14.26
Total Govemment Fees and Taxes 18.89
Total Plans and Services 230.85

Amount Subject to Sales Tax: 211.28

y/Cate Received:
s

ate Posted: _d.bj

App;’:vgd for Payment: —4
H.ad Deiivaredto:

TBalad

1.,ci2d By/Date:

C-;l #: (’130

Lacel Servicas grovided by ATET Arkansas, ATAT Kantas, ATAT Misacuri,
AT&T Oldahomn, or AT&T Taxas based upan the servico address location.

QO GREEN - Enrall in paperiess billing.

47 of 58



8G JO 8y
£995£56 [RINPO0LE] PueRaD

1NNOJJV SUIJIINN008 / 'AT"O'M HONVYH NOINNZNH

G9'6EL'L axpjooq - suaznto s
c96el’L Junowy %93yo
£5°LS €5°LS €56°'1S CT/90 SEYELELO0E I8  2202/0€/9
£8'vov'l £8°'vor'L €8'voP’L ¢c/90 vePeELELO0E II'd  2202/0€/9
8l'ed 8lec g8L'ec ¢2/o0 0CrveELEL00E  llg  ¢20¢c/oer9
L1002 L1002 11°00¢ CC/90 9EYELELOOE il 2202/0¢/9
ucw_.:»mn_ unNo3sIq anQ aduejeg Ty _w:_a_..o SURIBBY wg.r a3jeq

¢20¢/0ciL anqesadoo) ouosl] ssjeusspad



e T bW T chmmms T i T

._.szm.P(._.m JYILNT Qz_mm szxmn NI Ozc.(n_ zw:..s ._.zm2><n M:Oc. HLIM NOILYOd WOLLO8 zxomm OZ( Io<._.mn 3svad

86 JO 6%

e i
:eleq/ig pejren

SQYO0O3M ¥NOA HOd INIWILVLS STHL 433N

yjuow n.ﬁ nES pue Jseak nmu_ 5.._2: sy
asn Ajiep eBeieay osn ABiaue |ejoL

yuow yse| uow sjy}
asn ABiaua |8jo0) asn ABJsue [Bjo

uosuedwod ABidug.

"Inoy-ysru-semod;dood-oad je asow ween "w-d

“abed spy Jo doeq ey uo punoj yerep ebieyd
"ZZ0230/L0 Joye sjusuAed 126y6. Jou S0P (1|q SIUL

€¢0¢/90/10 -eled g

b aomsiqg Jopaig

QIOM HONVY NOINN3Y  ‘eweN aquap
9EvELEL00E #Jnoddy

jyosd-104-J0N
8£61 99UIS paumo-iaquisyy

T

pp..%,ﬂﬂ“’. b

ESFEIAEGIELLS

jovedsy ejqey s  dooosroed
6.c£-£98-898 :ebejno ue podey
wrd 0£:6 — "w'e g ‘ABpu ybnoiys Aepuop
CELP-955-888 lleD LSUojsend

ANNX



*Z202/90/L0 1836 syuewded joeyel Jou saop (g SIUL

QIOM HONYY NOINNIY -OWEN Jequiaiy

LNIWILVLS THLINS ONIEE NOSYHId NI ONIAVA NIHM - LNGWAV MNOA HLIM NOLLHOd WOLLO8 NENLIY ONY HOVL3Q 3SVId
fovaliTatatel SQHO0I3M MNOA NOJ AINIWALVLS SIHL 433N

GGG c.,nmrc #1O
:83eQ/Aa peiizi

1—\@9@ erpereaTS TPt

*Jnoy-ysni-remod;dood-oad je alow wes ‘w-d
£-Z W} JnoH ms%.&&.mman %Es@mmaz&&u aBiej asn Ajuo pus Aep i@ ABieus 8ABSUCD _u_._o.aon ocw JoWWNS Sy} eres u:w yus |

DO, 3.3 ERIECIVE

yjuow u__a nEo. pue JIeoA }se ..==oE S|y
asn Ajjep eBesoay esn ABisus [ejo) sv

173

TN

£:m.._..m }se| 5.._.....:_ ...w_._-
osn ABssus |Bj0) osn ABiaue |BJ0)

uosuedwod Abisu3z

ebied sju) 4O %9eq ey} uo punoj irep ebueyd

2202/90/10 eeq g
b 2oMsIq Joj0aiq
0ZvELE1L00E # WUNoddYy joyeds3z ejqey eg  doodded
6.c£-c08-088 :ebejno ue podoy
3yo4d-Jof1ON ‘wd pg:6 — ‘w'e g ‘Aepud ybnoiy Aepuopy

8£61 90UIS peumo-Joquiajy ZELY-SS-888 118D {Suoysend




8540 |G

ANIW3LVLS 3HLINT ONIRIS NOSYId NI ONIAVY NIHM - INSWAV HNOA HLIM NOLLY

C _.m.‘ E -w 1O
:2e5/Ag pejren

— — —  — — — — E— s e— e— o—

Od WOLLOS NHN13Y ONV HOVL3Q ASVIT
SQHOOIY YNOA HO4 INIWILVLS SIHL 33N

"Jnoy-ysnu-remod;dooa-sed je alow wee ‘w-d

4 e5'0L68 \

Yjuow sj . ..LES pue Jeek am,m_ :..:oE sy}
osn Ajjep sBesoay asn ABuaue |20l

yiuow 388 Wuow sy
asn ABieus jej0) asn ABiaue |ejol
uosnedwod AbBiau3:

g

0000t

= 0005

00341
08

‘eBed siy) Jo 3oeq 8Yy) o punoy ejep ebieyd
“Z202/90/L0 Jo)e muowhed 10aa1 jou s30p 1119 SIYL

2202/90/20 :21eq wa

p Z0MISIq J00211Q

QIDM HONVY NOINNTY  :eweN Jaquepy
PZYELELOOE :#IUNO2DY

jyosd-104-J0N
861 82U|S pauMO-JoGWSN

WIS GATE HOY NOINDNSN:esaIppyBojAe &hm,

joyeds3g ejqey o  dood-sed
6.£¢-£88-888 :eBejno ue yoday
‘wrd pg:g - "we g ‘Aepud yBnouy) Aepuopy
CeL-¥55-888 lleD Lsuoysend

ANNX



INSWILYLS MILND ONIME NOSHId NI ONIAVA NSHM - INTWAVC NNOA HLIM NOLLHOd WOL108 NNNL3Y ANV HOV13a 3sv3d
SQUOIIY UNOA ¥OJ AINIWALVLS SIHL 4T

0Tt #19

2C 10 7¢

-aleqQ/hg pejre

*Jnoy-ysni-1amod;dood-sad je esow wes “w'd

uow m_.-l.man pue JeeA }se] yjuow sy}
esn Ajiep sbeseay esn ABiaue 2301 S

9%

asn ABuaus [gj0) osn AB1ous [e30L dwe] ﬁo Mo Aoy © YBIH aﬁ.__@ m-lﬁ.as wewun) § dsyuoy snomesd ) UM

uosuedwos Abiaug!

asn ABiaua Ajyjuop’

‘sbed si Jo ¥0eq ey) uo puno} |IE1ep ebreyd
‘2202/90/L0 Jeye sjuswAed joeye. Jou £00P |i1q SIYL

ENEREISG I EENTERETE

=

€2¢02/90/.0 9jeq g

¥ ousig o30a4Q

AIOM HONYH NOINN3Y 9WeN Jequieiy
SEPELELOOE ‘# UNOddY joyedsg ejgey ag  dooo-aad

. e 6.££-£88-808 :eBejno ue pyodey
3401d-J05-}ON ‘wd op:g - "w'e g ‘Aepud ybnosy Aepuop

8£61 9oul8 peumo-Jequisiy ZEL-pSS-888 118D ZsuonsanDd

ANRX



eEhr LG

8G 10 €9
£995€56 [ALN$90181] puepeasD

ve e ¢8CEL90-LL doog - suszniH isiid

0G'6el aafojdwy Aunoaeg |e1ooS

0g'6¢l Auedwon AQuUNoag [e1oos

[A° XA aafojdwig asedipsi

c9ce Auedwon alesipe
BuipjoyulAn [esepad

€c0¢/9¢/L Anseal) sn . -

160¢ INNODDV SHIdIINN00E / “A'1'0'M HONVY NOINNIY



rom 941 for 2022: Employer’'s QUARTERLY Federal Tax Return

950122

{Rev. June 2022) Depariment of the Ti y — Intemnal | Service OMB No. 1545-0029
Report for this Quarter of 2022
Employer tdentification number (EIN) I 77-0673282 I (Chock one.)
Name (ot your trade name) I Reunion Ranch W.C.I.D. | ] 1: January, February, March
| | 2: April, May, June
Trade name (if any)
L—_] 3: July, August, September
Address I P. O. Box 2445 I [] 4: October, November, December
N T SR a—— Go to www.irs.gov/Form941 for
[ Round Rock | X | [ 78680 I instructions ard the latest information.
City State ZIP codo REV 08/30722 QBDT
Foreign country name Forelgn pravinca/county Foreign postal codo
Read the separate instructions before you complete Form 941. Type or print within the boxes.
Answer these questions for this quarter.
1 Number of employees who received wages, tips, or other compensation for the pay perlod
including: June 12 (Quarter 2), Sept. 12 (Quarter 3), or Dec. 12 (Quarter4) . . . . 1 S I
2 Wages, tips, and othercompensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2| 2,250.00 |
3  Federal income tax withheld from wages, tips, and othercompensation . . . . . . 3 | |
4 i no wages, tips, and other compensation are subject to soclal security or Medicare tax D Check and go to line 6.
Cotlumn 1 Column 2
5a Taxable soclal security wages®. . [ 2,250.00 | % 0.124 = | 279.00 ] *Include taxable qualified sick and
famnily leave wages paid in this
- _ quarter of 2022 for leave taken
Sa ()} Qualifled sick leave wages' . | ] x 0.062 = [ | after March 31, 2021, and before
Oclober 1, 2021, on line 5a. Ut
5a (i) Qualified famlly leave wages* . | | x0062= | | Gee 5a6) ad Saii) only for taxable
qualified sick and family leave
&b Taxable social security tips . ) ‘ ] x0.124 = | | wages paid In this quarter of 2022
for leave taken after March 31,
5c Taxable Medicare wages &tips. . [ 2,250.00 Ix0.029=l 65.25 | 2020, and bafore April 1, 2021.
5d Taxable wages & tips subject to
Additional Medicare Tax withholding [ I x 0.009 = | I

5e Total social security and Medicare taxes. Add Column 2 from lines Sa, 5aj), 5afli), Sb, 5c, and 5d 5el 344.25 I
5f Section 3121(q) Notice and Demand—Tax due on unreported tips (ses instructions) . . 5f | |
6 Total taxes before adjustments. Add lines 3,5¢,and5 . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 [ 344.25 l
7  Current quarter’s adjustment for fractfionsofcents . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 | -0.01 I
8 Current quarter's adjustmentforsickpay . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . B8 | I
9  Current quarter's adjustments for tips and group-term lifelnsurance . . . . . . . 9 | }
10  Total taxes after adjustments, Combine lines 6 through® . . . . . . . . . , . 10| 344.24 l

11a Qualified small business payroll tax credit for increasing research activities. Attach Form 8974 tial

11b Nonrefundable portion of credit for qualified sick and family leave wages for leave taken
beforeApdl1,2021.......................1‘!bl

11cResorvedforMureuse......................11c|

» You MUST complete all three 2 pages of Form 941 and SIGN it.

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the back of the Payment Voucher. BAA cat No. 170012

Form 941 (Rev. 6-2022)

54 of 68



8G 0 GG
£995€56 [ALWY0187] puepeaso

95°0S

9G°0S
9G°0S
Juswied

¢60¢

Junowy ¥29y)

Junoosiqg
TAANTAVRAVA

Zzoz aunp - uawdinb3 pue sabiey) SSajalAN - Y00g - SuszijD) s

96'0S
anQ souejeg

9505
Jwy jeuibuo

¢c/90 Ov.LeEvey9 Il  2202/0€/9
aoualsley adA) ajeq

SSSjalIM UOZUBA
INNODJIV SHUIALIINMO08 / "A'1'O’'M HONVY NOINNIY



_ 3UOY"NOA-WOI) L L9, 10 ¥020"2e6/008 T/ Q0SS! aqzq (89/EFLNGE |
890 9G 'suofisenpd Qo oL bo Aed | suoyd woyy Aed
@ €C .V #19
Ce-QC-L G ewaiaperen
:0} peJaAijeq pueH
N ‘JuswAed 10} psaciddy
CC-LC ‘peisod areq/Ag

QAQPN_ < u ‘peAleosy syeq/Ag

95'05$ 2202 ‘1€ Ainr Aq eng sefieyy |ejo)
99'03$ sefsyg Juaung jej01
08'v% 8954 '® 8851BYDINS [EJUSWILLISAOD ‘SOXBL
99'c$ s)pal) % sebiey) Jeyo pue
sebieyoIng
008 8310\
seflieys sseyaing pue efesn
00'0¥$ sebiey? AiLpuoly
00'$ pieMuIo4 eouB[Bg
2z ehe- NOA Yuey) — JuewAhed
ceers (sife1ep Jo} %oBq ees) adue[eg snoineld
80 Inr - 60 unp Arewwing j1g oI

802Z8Y90166 JaquinN 2ojonu)

ang ejeq

| 22e/L0: 1H0000- OV LEEHTYY 1

wo2asyid1ojusuozyienoss//:dyy
je ssaippe 1nof ebueyy

| W09 SS3[@NMUOZIIDNGZC),

JUn029y Inoj sfieue

18982 XL “»OO0H GNNOY

9014 y1€ 31S YA 3qIHMYY 0E6 1

96251000 QI9M HONVYH NOINN3H
(TR LR YU R TR Y SO R L 1 [T [ B R L TR

68¥0~101.20 I'N “HevAMaN

68b X08 0d

AUOZJIOA



8G 10 /G
£995€56 [81Wr901871) puepeaio

L1266 220z AInr - 1suisjuj  @yyoog - suszyi) sl
LC'S6 junowy »o8yd
LC'S6 LT'S6 LC'G6 CC/L0 LL¥8L8YYPL NG C20C/LElL
juswied JunoosIq anQ souejeg Wy [eulbuO aoualsey adAl aleq
¢coe/s/8 121V

€60¢ LNNODOV SHIJIINN00E / ‘A 1"0'M HONVY NOINNIY



RUINION RANCH WATER CONTROL Page: 1of2

PO BOX 2445 Issue Date: Jul 12, 2022
A & ROUN| K TX 78680-2445 !
T T GONREOS Account Number: 144878477

(¢

AutoPay: Set up automatic payments that you can update whenever yau want. Go to
attcom/autopay today.

Total due

$95.27

Managing your AT&T bills, products, and services on the go? It's a snap with myAT&T. Go to
att.com/myatt to sign in or sign up.

Please pay by:
Aug 03, 2022

Account summary
Your last bill $95.27
Payment, Jun 29 - Thank you! -$95.27
Remaining balance $0.00
Service summary
[2, Account charges Page2 $20.00
@ Internet Poge2 $75.27
Total services $95.27
Total due $95.27
Please pay by Aug 03, 2022

Ways to pay and manage your account:

D myATET app L att.com/pay J Ordering, billing or support
iPhone and Androld 800,321.2000
TTY:BO0ESISIN
T, Return this portion with your check in the endlosed envelope. Payments may take 7 days to post.
‘-ﬁ
N RUINION RANCH WATER CONTROL Please pay $95.27 by Aug 03, 2022
gAT&T PO BOX 2445 pay $ y Aug O3,
ROUND ROCK TX 786802445
Account number; 144878477
Please include account number on your check
Make check payable to:
O CHECK FOR AUTOPAY ATaT
(SEE REVERSE) PO BOX 5014

CAROL STREAM, (L 60197-5014

410040330001448784773000000009527000000009527000004

58 of 58



REUNION RANCH WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

ORDER SETTING THE DISTRICT'S
PROPOSED TAX RATE FOR 2022 AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION
OF NOTICE THEREOF

WHEREAS, Section 49.236, Water Code requires that, before the Board of Directors of
the District adopts an ad valorem tax rate for the District, it shall give notice of each meeting of
the Board at which the adoption of a tax rate is considered. The notice must, among other things,
give notice of the proposed tax rate, the names of all Board members and an indication of how
each voted on the proposed tax rate, and an indication of any absences.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors have determined that it is necessary to levy and collect
ad valorem taxes for the 2022 tax year.

WHEREAS, the District will hold a public hearing on a proposed tax rate for the tax year
2022 on September 13, 2022 at 3:00 p.m. at 12912 Hill Country Boulevard, Suite F-232, Austin,
Texas 78738.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
REUNION RANCH WCID THAT:

1. The following proposed tax rate shall be levied for the 2022 tax year:
$0. per $100 of taxable value for the purposes
of maintenance and operation
$0._ per $100 of taxable value for debt service
$0. total tax rate per $100 of taxable value

2. The notice required by Section 49.236, Water Code shall be published in the Hays
Free Press newspaper in the form and at the time required by Section 49.236, Water Code.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 16" day of August, 2022.

Dennis B. Daniel, President
ATTEST:

Ronald F. Meyer, Secretary

[SEAL]

I\ReunionRanch\order-tr-proposed-2022
8/11/22



August 5, 2022 Draft

AMENDED
DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN

for

Reunion Ranch WCID
Firm Water Contract

August 16, 2022

Prepared for:

Reunion Ranch WCID
c/o Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC
12912 Hill Country Boulevard, Suite F-232
Austin, Texas 78738

Prepared by:

Murfee Engineering Company, Inc.
1101 Capital of Texas Hwy., South, Building D
Austin, Texas 78746
Texas Registered Engineering Firm No. F-353



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

1.0

20

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

Table of Contents

Declaration of Policy, Purpose, and INtent ............ccccvieiiieeciieciiiciiese i senessenaessnaeans 2

AUthorization .....cwessscmn s mmam b S S el s n s rsin 2

PUDBIIC EQUCEEION. ...ttt te et et se e s e e e s e s e nnnanaanas 2
Coordination with Regional Planning Groups and Wholesale Water Supplier ............. 2
D INIIONS ..ttt sttt ne bt et n et neseneeaenbenanenn 2
NOLICE REGQUITEMENTS... .ottt s res e st s e e s e a s s b e b s nr st e sas b 4
Permanent Use ReStriCtions ...ttt 4
Initiation and Termination of RESPONSE StAGES......cccveerireveeceeier e er st 5

8.1 Triggering Criteria for Initiation and Termination of Drought Response Stages.....6

Drought RESPONSE MEASUIES ....cc.eeiciericiiiieecereen e eie e ceeeseseseesae et e seareesaneeenseessennneens 8
9.1 Targets for Water-Use REAUCLIONS .........ccccvociiiiiiievieiie e isersreesses e enensseeens 8
9.2 Retail CUSTOMErS IMEASUIES .....ccuvrrieeeirieercereenecseneresrnersseeseesesessessasesssessssensnsnnans 9
ENTOPCOMENT wmivavwinimss oo aaisniss s ik i s ¥ s aO MG S maF AR WS AT 15
10.1ENfOrcement ProViSions ........c.ciiiiiiiiii et a s sbae s e s e e anssmaeas 15

10.2 VarianCes i swssiasinmsstimss i e i i s i srvssisiaise. 19

10.3Plan Updates . susensssmaminmsmsasiminmmnsinanisaand i shmmaaaiss i 17
APPENAICES. ... ccreceeerecer it erenreee st res et sese st e smesaes e o bGisRRS SRR S SRR SRS SRRSO SR S 18
Appendix A — Watering SChedUIes ... sses s reere s 18
Appendix B — Enforcement ProviSioNns ............ccccirieiinieicieiesisiiscsseevssessssssssssssasesssessees 20

Appendix C— Drought Response Retail Enforcement..........cooeeeveeeecveeeieceecreeeerneennns 22



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

1.0 Declaration of Policy, Purpose, and Intent

In order to conserve the available water supply and/or to protect the integrity of water supply
facilities, with particular regard for domestic water use, sanitation, and fire protection, and
to protect and preserve public health, welfare, and safety and minimize the adverse impacts
of water supply shortage or other water supply emergency conditions, Reunion Ranch WCID
(the “District”) adopts the following Drought Contingency Plan (the “Plan”).

2.0 Authorization

The designated manager or official of the District is hereby authorized and directed to
implement the applicable provisions of this Plan upon determination that such
implementation is necessary to protect public health, safety, and welfare. The designated
manager or official of the District shall have the authority to initiate or terminate drought or
other water supply emergency response measures as described in this Plan. This
authorization was designated as part of the plan’s approval by the District’'s Board of
Directors.

3.0 Public Education

The District will periodically provide its contractors, members, and the general public with
information about this Plan, including the importance of the Plan, information about the
conditions under which each stage of the Plan is to be initiated, processes used to reduce
water use, and impending or current drought conditions.

4.0 Coordination with Regional Planning Groups and Wholesale Water
Supplier

The water service area of the District is located within Region K — Lower Colorado River
Authority (“LCRA”) and the District has provided a copy of the Plan to Region K — LCRA. The
District will comply with the LCRA Drought Contingency Plan and the requirements of the
West Travis County PUA (“WTCPUA”), the provider of wholesale water to the District, by
adopting and enforcing the District’s Drought Contingency Plan.

5.0 Definitions

For the purposes of this Plan, the following definitions shall apply:

Aesthetic water use: water use for ornamental or decorative features such as fountains,
reflecting pools and water gardens.



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

Agriculture water use: water use for fruit and vegetable gardens.

Conservation: those practices, techniques, and technologies that reduce water
consumption; reduce the loss or waste of water; improve the efficiency in water
use;
and increase the recycling and reuse of water so that supply is conserved and made
available for future use.

Customer: any person, company, or organization using water supplied by the District.

Domestic water use: use of water by an individual or a household to support its
domestic activity. Such use may include consumption, washing, or cooking;
irrigation of lawns, family garden or orchard; consumption by animals; and
recreation including fishing, swimming, and boating. If the water is diverted, it must
be diverted solely through the efforts of the user. Domestic use does not include
water used to support activities for which consideration is given or received or for
which the product of the activity is sold.

Landscape irrigation use: water used for the irrigation and maintenance of landscaped
areas, whether publicly or privately owned, including residential and commercial
lawns, gardens, golf courses, parks, and rights-of-way and medians.

“New landscape” means:

a. Installed during construction of a new house, multi-family building, or
commercial building.

b. Installed as part of a governmental entity’s capital improvement project; or

c. Alters more than one-half of the area of an existing landscape.

Non-essential water use:; water uses that are not essential or are not required for the
protection of public health, safety, and weifare, such as:

a. Irrigating landscape areas, including parks, athletic fields, and golf courses,
except for as otherwise provided under this Plan;

b. Washing any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat trailer, airplane, or other
vehicle;

¢. Washing any sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking lots, tennis courts, or
other hard-surfaced areas;



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

d. Washing buildings or structures for purposes other than immediate fire
protection;

e. Flushing gutters or permitting water to run or accumulate in any gutter or
street;

f. Filling, refilling, or adding to any indoor or outdoor swimming pools or
Jacuzzi-type pools;

g. Filling a fountain or pond for aesthetic or scenic purposes except when
necessary to support aquatic life;

h. Failure to repair a controllable leak within a reasonable period after having
been directed to do so by formal notice; and

i. Drawing from hydrants for construction purposes or any other purposes
other than firefighting or protecting public drinking water supplies.

Use of water for agriculture or livestock is not included in the definition of “non-
essential water use.”

Retail Water Customer: an individual or entity that purchases water from an LCRA
water utility for its consumption.

6.0 Notice Requirements

The District shall notify the executive director of the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality and the LCRA General Manager in writing within five (5) business days of the
implementation of any mandatory provisions of the Drought Contingency Plan.

7.0 Permanent Water Use Restrictions

The following restrictions apply to all of the District’s water utility system on a year-round
basis, regardless of water supply or water treatment plant production conditions.
According to the restrictions, a water user must not:

1. Fail to repair a controllable leak, including:
a. a broken sprinkler head,
b. aleaking valve,

c. leaking or broken pipes, or



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

d. aleaking faucet;
2. Operate an irrigation system with:
a. abroken head;

b. ahead that is out of adjustment and the arc of the spray head is over a street
or parking area; or

c. ahead thatis fogging or misting because of excessive water pressure.
3. During irrigation, allow water:

a. torun off a property and form a stream of water in a street for a distance of
50 feet or greater; or

b. to poolin a street or parking lot to a depth greater than one-quarter of an
inch.

Additionally, as customers of the District, water users may irrigate outdoors using an in-
ground irrigation system or hose-end sprinkler no more than twice per week and only
during scheduled days and times as indicated below:

Residential Customers are allowed to use water for outside irrigation only on the
following days, based upon their address:

Addresses ending in 0,1,2,3: Monday and Thursday.

Addresses ending in 4,5,6: Tuesday andFriday

Addresses ending in 7,8,9: Wednesday and Saturday

No outdoor watering allowed on Sundays

Commercial Customers (includinglarge landscapes such as HOA common areas) are
allowed to use water for outside irrigation only on the following days:

Tuesday and Friday — all Commercial and HOAs may water landscapes

No outdoor watering allowed on Sundays

Watering times are midnight to 10 a.m. and/or 7 p.m. to midnight

8.0 Initiation and Termination of Response Stages

The Board of the District or its designee, shall monitor water supply and demand conditions
on a regular basis and shall determine when conditions warrant initiation and termination of
each stage of this Plan in accordance with LCRA’s Water Management Plan and the West
Travis County PUA’s Drought Contingency Plan. Water supply conditions will be determined
by the source of supply, system capacity, and weather conditions. Water demand will be
measured by the peak daily demands on the system.

5



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

Public notification of the initiation or termination of drought response stages shall be by a
variety of ways, examples include: website postings, bill inserts, e-mail and automated
telephone calls, signs posted at entry points to the service area or a combination of these
methods.

The following triggering criteria shall apply to Reunion Ranch WCID’s water utility system(s)
and customer service area:

8.1 Triggering Criteria for Initiation and Termination of Drought Response
Stages

(1) STAGE 1 - Mild Water Shortage Conditions (Permanent Voluntary Measures)

A. Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be requested to adhere to
the Permanent Water Restrictions set forth above on a year-round basis
unless Stage 2 Drought Measures are initiated.

(2) STAGE 2 - Moderate Water Shortage Conditions (Mandatory Measures)

A. Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to adhere to the
Stage 2 Drought Response Measures when the WTCPUA declares a Stage
2 Drought.

B. Requirements for termination - Stage 2 of the Plan may be rescinded
when the WTCPUA rescinds the Stage 2 Drought Declaration or the LCRA
announces that curtailment of water supplies to firm water customers is
no longer required under the drought contingency measures of the LCRA
DCP

Upon termination of Stage 2, Stage 1 becomes operative.

(3) STAGE 3 - Severe Water Shortage Conditions (Additional Mandatory
Measures)

A. Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to adhere to
the Stage 3 Drought Response Measures when the WTCPUA declares a
Stage 3 Drought or The LCRA Board declares a drought worse than the
Drought of Record or other water supply emergency and orders the
mandatory curtailment of firm water supplies.

B. Requirements for termination - Stage 3 of the Plan may be rescinded
when the WTCPUA rescinds the Stage 3 Drought declaration or LCRA

6



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

announces that curtailment of water supplies to firm water customers is
no longer required under drought contingency measures of the LCRA
DCP.

Upon termination of Stage 3, Stage 2 becomes operative, as applicable at that time.

(4) STAGE 4 - Severe Water Shortage (Additional Mandatory Measures)

A.  Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to adhere to
the Stage 4 Drought Response Measures when the WTCPUA declares a
Stage 4 Drought.

B. Requirements for termination - Stage 4 of the Plan may be rescinded
when the WTCPUA rescinds the Stage 4 Drought declaration or LCRA
announces that curtailment of water supplies to firm water customers is
no longer required under drought contingency measures of the LCRA
DCP.

Upon termination of Stage 4, Stage 3 becomes operative, as applicable at that time.

(5) STAGE 5- Emergency Water Conditions (Additional Mandatory Measures)

A. Requirements for initiation - Customers shall be required to adhere to the
Stage 5 Drought Response Measures when one or a combination of such
triggering criteria occurs:

1. Treatment Capacity:
e Major water line breaks, loss of distribution pressure, or pump
system failures that cause substantial loss in the WTCPUA’s or the
District’s ability to provide water service.

2.  Water Supply:
e Contamination of the water supply source; or
e Any other emergency water supply or demand conditions that the
District manager, or designee, determines to constitute a water
supply emergency more severe than that contemplated in the
triggers contained in the LCRA Water Management Plan.

B. Requirements for termination - Upon declaration of Stage 5—Emergency
Water Conditions, water use restrictions outlined in Stage 5 Emergency



Reunion Ranch WCID

Response Measures shall immediately apply and be in effect until lifted by
the District.

Upon termination of Stage 5, the prior Stage in effect becomes operative.

9.0 Drought Response Measures

The District shall monitor reports of water supply and demand conditions and, in accordance
with the triggering criteria set forth in Section 8.1 of this Plan, shall determine that a mild,
moderate, severe, or emergency condition exists and shall implement the following
measures.

9.1 Targets for Water-Use Reductions

(1)

()

@)

(4)

(5)

STAGE 1 - Mild Water Shortage Conditions (Voluntary Measures)

Water Supply Reduction Target: Achieve a 5% reduction in water use.

STAGE 2 - Moderate Water Shortage Conditions (Mandatory Measures)

Water Supply Reduction Target: Achieve a 10-20% reduction in water use.

STAGE 3 - Severe Water Shortage Conditions (Mandatory Measures)

Water Supply Reduction Target: Achieve a minimum 20% reduction in water
use.

STAGE 4 - Severe Water Shortage (Additional Mandatory Measures)

Water Supply Reduction Target: Achieve a minimum 30% reduction in water

use.
STAGE 5 — Emergency Conditions (Additional Mandatory Measures)

Water Supply Reduction Target: As determined by the WTCPUA Board or the
District Board.

Amended Drought Contingency Plan



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

9.2 Retail Customers Measures

(1) STAGE 1 - Mild Water Shortage Conditions (Voluntary Measures)

A. Supply Management Measures: Reunion Ranch WCID will review system
operations and identify ways to improve system efficiency and
accountability.

B. Demand Management Measures:

Water Supply Reduction Target: Achieve a 5% reduction in water use.

1. Provide consumer information and materials on water conservation
measures and practices to retail customers

2. Request that customers voluntarily comply with the Permanent Water
Use Restrictions in this plan.

(2) STAGE 2 - Moderate Water Shortage Conditions (Mandatory Measures)

A. Supply Management Measures:

1. Apply all water-use restrictions prescribed for Stage 2 of the plan for
the District’s facilities and properties;

2. Discontinue water main and line flushing unless necessary for public
health reasons; and

3. Keep customers informed about issues regarding current and
projected water supply and demand conditions.

B. Demand Management Measures: Under threat of penalty, the following
water-use restrictions shall apply to all retail water customers:

Water Supply Reduction Target: Achieve a 10-20% reduction in water use.

1. lrrigation of Landscaped Areas:

Irrigation of landscaped areas with hose-end sprinklers or in-
ground irrigation systems shall be limited to a no more than a twice
weekly watering schedule as determined by the District and based
on the nature of the current drought or water emergency. See



Reunion Ranch WCID

Amended Drought Contingency Plan

Appendix A - Reunion Ranch WCID Water System - Watering
Schedules.

Outdoor watering hours will be limited to between midnight and
10 a.m. and between 7 p.m. and midnight on designhated days. This
prohibition does not apply to irrigation of landscaped areas if it is
by means of:

i. ahand-held hose; or

ii. afaucet-filled bucket or watering can of five gallons or less.

New landscapes may be installed and re-vegetation seeding
performed under these specific criteria:

i. A completed variance form for new landscapes has been
submitted to the District and has been approved prior to the
installation of the landscape, or re-vegetation seed
application

ii. Irrigation of the new landscape or application follows the
schedule identified in the new landscape variance:

1. once a day before 10 a.m. and after 7 p.m. for the
10 days after installation;

2. once every other day before 10 a.m. and after 7 p.m.
for days 11 through 20 after installation;

3. once every third day before 10 a.m. and after 7 p.m.
for day 21 through 30 after installation.

iii. Areas being re-vegetated for soil stabilization must also
comply with the (i) and (ii) specific criteria above. Options
for re-vegetation may be available in times of low water
supply. Specific information regarding options is available in
the LCRA Highland Lakes Watershed Ordinance Technical
Manual (sec 3.2.8).

iv. Variances for new landscapes and re-vegetation may be issued
for the shortest period necessary to reasonably assure the
landscape’s survival. A variance is not an exemption from
compliance with the permanent water use restrictions.
Variances will not be granted for seasonal “color bed” or
temporary grass installation (overseeding).

Vehicle Washing:

Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, such as a motorbike, boat,
trailer, or airplane is prohibited except on designated watering days
between the hours of midnight and 10 a.m. and between 7 p.m. and
midnight. Such activity, when allowed, shall be done with a hand-held

10



Reunion Ranch WCID

Amended Drought Contingency Plan

5.

bucket or a hand-held hose equipped with a positive shutoff nozzie. A
vehicle may be washed any time at a commercial car wash facility or
commercial service station. Further, this activity is exempt from these
regulations if the health, safety, and welfare of the public are served
by washing the vehicle, such as a truck used to collect garbage or used
to transport food and perishables.

Pools:

a. Filling of all new and existing swimming pools, hot tubs, wading
pools, shall be discouraged and shall require a variance.
Replenishing to maintenance level is permitted. Draining is
permitted only onto pervious surfaces or onto a surface where
water will be transmitted directly to a pervious surface, and only if:

i. Draining excess water from pool due to rain in order to lower
water to maintenance level;

ii. Repairing, maintaining or replacing pool components that
have become hazardous; or

iii. Repair of a pool leak.

b. Refilling of HOA or public/community swimming pools permitted
only if pool has been drained for repairs, maintenance, or
replacement as outlined in items above.

Qutside Water Features:

Operation of outside water features, such as, but not limited to,
fountains, splash pad type fountains or outdoor misting systems, is
prohibited, except where such features are used to sustain aquatic life
or maintain water quality. (This provision includes fountains associated
with aesthetic ponds and swimming pools).

Ponds:

Ponds used for aesthetic, amenity, and/or storm water purposes may
maintain water levels only necessary to preserve the integrity of the
liner and operating system. Reunion Ranch WCID may request specific
design documentation regarding a pond and the intended purpose.

Events:

Events involving the use of water such as: car washes, festivals, parties,
water slides, and other activities involving the use of water are
permitted, if the water being used drains to a recirculating device, or

11



Reunion Ranch WCID

Amended Drought Contingency Plan

10.

are used for a beneficial purpose such as watering landscaping to
prevent water waste.

Fire Hydrants:

Use of water from fire hydrants shall be limited to firefighting and
activities necessary to maintain public health, safety, and welfare. Use
of water from designated fire hydrants for construction purposes may
be allowed under special conditions and requires a meter; a variance
application must be submitted with an explanation of the special
conditions, before a hydrant meter will be provided.

Recreational areas (includes parks and athletic fields):

The areas can only be used for designated or scheduled events or
activities. Unnecessary foot traffic must be discouraged. Watering
must follow irrigation of landscaped areas schedule. A variance can be
obtained if watering cannot be completed on the designated schedule.

Water Waste:

The following non-essential uses of water are prohibited at all times
during periods in which restrictions have gone into effect:

a. Washing sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking lots, street,
tennis courts, and other impervious surfaces is prohibited except
for immediate health and safety;

b. Washing buildings, houses or structures with a pressure washer or
garden hose is prohibited for aesthetic purposes but allowable for
surface preparation of maintenance work to be performed;

c. Flushing gutters or allowing a substantial amount of water to run
off a property and accumulate in a gutter, street or parking lot to a
depth greater than one-fourth of an inch is prohibited except for
immediate health and safety; and

d. Controlling dust is prohibited, unless there is a demonstrated need

to do so for reasons of public health and safety, or as part of a
construction plan approved by a governmental entity.

12



Reunion Ranch WCID

Amended Drought Contingency Plan

(3)

Measures)

STAGE 3 - Severe Water Shortage Conditions (Additional Mandatory

Supply Management Measures: In addition to measures implemented in the

preceding stages of the plan, affected District water utility systems will
explore additional emergency water supply options.

Demand Management Measures: Under threat of penalty, all retail

customers are required to further reduce non-essential water uses as
follows. All requirements of Stage 2 shall remain in effect during Stage 3,
with the following modifications and additions.

Water Supply Reduction Target: Achieve a 20% reduction in water use.

1.

2,

3.

Irrigation of Landscaped Areas:

a. OQutdoor watering hours will be limited to between midnight and 6
a.m. on designated days. This prohibition does not apply to
irrigation of landscaped areas with hand-held hoses or faucet-filled
hand-held buckets or watering cans of five gallons or less.

b. No new landscapes may be installed unless a prior variance was
received.

Vehicle Washing:

Use of water to wash any motor vehicle, motorbike, boat, trailer,
airplane, or other vehicle is prohibited. A vehicle can be washed at any
time at a commercial car wash facility or commercial service station
that recycles its water. Further, this activity is exempt from these
regulations if the health, safety, and welfare of the public are served
by washing the vehicle, such as a truck used to collect garbage or used
to transport food and perishables.

Pools:

Installation of swimming pools is prohibited unless a prior variance was
received. The filling or replenishing of water to swimming pools, hot
tubs, wading pools, and other types of pools is prohibited.
Public/community swimming pools may be exempt from this
prohibition to maintain safe levels of water quality for human contact.

13



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

4. Events:
Events involving the use of water such as: car washes; festivals;
parties; water slides; and other activities involving the use of water

are prohibited.

5. Recreational areas (includes parks and athletic fields):

The areas can only be used for designated or scheduled events or
activities. Unnecessary foot traffic must be discouraged. Watering is
prohibited except with a hand-held hose.

(4) STAGE 4 - Severe Water Shortage ~ (Additional Mandatory Measures)

Water Supply Reduction Target: Achieve a minimum 30% reduction in water
use.

Demand Management Measures: In addition to measures implemented in the
preceding stages of the Plan, the District will implement additional water control
options to limit water to only critical use for protection of health and safety and
maintenance of treatment quality.

Under threat of penalty for violation, all retail customers are required to comply
with the Stage 4 restrictions. All requirements of Stages 1 through 3 are also in
effect during stage 4, with the following modifications and additions:

1. Irrigation of Landscaped Areas

Outdoor watering days will be restricted to once a week in accordance
with the following schedule:

Addresses ending in:

Monday 1,3
Tuesday 2,4
Wednesday 5,7
Thursday 6,8
Friday 9,0
Saturday All commercial and HOAs

Hours will be limited to between midnight and 6 a.m. on designated days.

2. No new landscapes may be installed unless a prior variance was received.

14



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

3. Use of water from fire hydrants shall be limited to firefighting and activities
necessary to maintain public health, safety, and welfare only.

4. No applications for new, additional, expanded, or larger water service
connections, meters, service lines, pipeline extensions, mains, or water
service facilities of any kind shall be allowed or approved.

Upon declaration of Stage 4 — Severe Water Shortage water use restrictions
outlined in Stage 4 Severe Water Shortage shall immediately apply.

(5) STAGE 5- Emergency Measures — (Additional Mandatory Measures)

Under threat of penalty for violation, all retail customers are required to
eliminate nonessential water uses during an emergency. This includes, but is not
limited to the following measures:

A. Irrigation of landscaped areas is prohibited. This prohibition does not apply
to irrigation of landscaped areas using reclaimed water.

B. Use of water from fire hydrants shall be limited to firefighting and activities

necessary to maintain public health, safety, and welfare only.
.

C. No applications for new, additional, expanded, or larger water service
connections, meters, service lines, pipeline extensions, mains, or water
service facilities of any kind shall be allowed or approved.

Upon declaration of Stage 5 - Emergency Water Conditions, water use restrictions
outlined in Stage 5 Emergency Response Measures shall immediately apply.

10.0 Enforcement

10.1 Enforcement Provisions

Appendices B and C contain the enforcement provisions applicable to all Reunion Ranch WCID
potable water (drinking water) customers.

10.2 Variances

(1) The Board of the District or its designee may grant variances:

A. From specific applications of the outdoor water schedule, providing that the
variances do not increase the time allowed for watering but rather alter the
schedule for watering; and

15



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

B. Allowing the use of alternative water sources (i.e., ground water, reclaimed
wastewater, or delivered water not from the District system) that do not
increase demand on potable water sources for outdoor use. Variance
requests may be submitted to the Board or its designee and need not meet
the requirements of subsection (2) below.

(2) The Board of the District or its designee, may grant in writing temporary
variances for existing water uses otherwise prohibited under this Plan if it is
determined that failure to do so would cause an emergency adversely affecting
the public health, sanitation, or fire protection, and if one or more of the
following conditions are met:

A. Compliance with this Plan cannot be accomplished during the duration of
the time the Plan is in effect; or

B. Alternative methods can be implemented that will achieve the same level
of reduction in water use.

(3) Personsrequesting a variance from the provisions of this Plan shall file a petition
for variance with the Board of the District or its designee any time the Plan or a
particular drought response stage is in effect. Board of the District or its designee
will review petitions for variances. The petitions shall include the following:

Name and address of the petitioner

Purpose of water use

Specific provision of the Plan from which the petitioner is requesting relief.

Detailed statement as to how the specific provision of the Plan adversely

affects the petitioner or what damage or harm the petitioner or others will

sustain if petitioner complies with this Plan

e Description of the relief requested

e Period of time for which the variance is sought

e Alternative water use restrictions or other measures the petitioner is

taking or proposes to take to meet the intent of this plan and the
compliance date

e Other pertinent information

If the District has provided a form for variance requests, the petitioner must
complete the form.

(4) Variances granted by the District shall be subject to the following conditions,
unless waived or modified by the Board of the District or its designee:

A. Variances granted shall include a timetable for compliance.

16



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

B. Variances granted shall expire when the Plan, or its requirements, is no
longer in effect, unless the petitioner has failed to meet specified
requirements.

(5) No variance shall be retroactive or otherwise excuse any violation occurring
before the variance was issued.

10.3 Plan Updates

This Plan will be reviewed and updated as needed to meet both TCEQ and WTCPUA drought
contingency plan rules.

17



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

11.0 Appendices

Appendix A — Watering Schedules (Note: This Plan and the watering
schedules in this Appendix A apply only to users of potable water (drinking
water) and do not apply to irrigation using reclaimed water (treated
effluent).

Permanent Watering Restrictions, Stage 1 and Stage 2

Irrigate outdoors using an in-ground irrigation system or hose-end sprinkler no more than
TWICE per week and only during scheduled days and times as indicated below:

Residential

Monday & Thursday — Addresses ending in 0, 1, 2, 3
Tuesday & Friday — Addresses endingin 4,5, 6
Wednesday & Saturday — Addresses ending in 7, 8, 9

**NO OUTDOOR WATERING ALLOWED ON SUNDAYS

Commercial (including large landscapes such as HOA common
areas) Tuesday & Friday

**NO OUTDOOR WATERING ALLOWED ON SUNDAYS

Watering Hours:
Midnight to 10 a.m. and 7 p.m. to midnight

Stage 3
Same as Stages 1 and 2 except Watering Hours limited to midnight and 6 a.m.

Stage 4

Irrigate outdoors using an in-ground irrigation system or hose-end sprinkler no more than
ONCE per week and only during scheduled days and times as indicated below:

Residential
Monday 1,3
Tuesday 2,4

Wednesday 5,7
Thursday 6,8
Friday 9,0

18



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

Commercial (including large landscapes such as HOA common
areas) Saturday

Watering Hours:
Midnight to 6 a.m.

Stage 5

All outdoor irrigation is prohibited.

19



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

Appendix B — Enforcement Provisions
Enforcement for Retail Potable Water Customers

The following enforcement provisions shall apply to all District potable water (drinking water)
customers:

(1) No person shall knowingly or intentionally allow the use of potable water (drinking
water) from a District water utility system for residential, commercial, industrial,
agricultural, governmental, or any other purpose in a manner contrary to any
provision of this Plan, or in an amount in excess of that permitted by the drought
response stage in effect at the time.

(2) Any person who violates this plan shall be subject to the following surcharges and
conditions of service:

A. Following the first documented violation, the violator shall be given a notice
specifying the type of violation and the date and time it was observed; and
surcharges and restrictions on service that may result from additional violations;
however, in the case of significant violations, as determined by the District Board
or its designee and including filling a swimming pool during a drought stage
when such use is prohibited, no such notice shall be given, and the violator will
be sent the notice described in 2B below and assessed the surcharges described
below. In those cases, the first documented violation shall be treated as a
second documented violation.

B. Following the second documented violation, the violator shall be sent by
certified mail a notice of violation and shall be assessed a surcharge of $500.00.
This amount increases to an amount up to $2,000 if operating under Stages 3, 4
or 5 of the Plan.

C. Following the third documented violation, the violator shall be sent by certified
mail a notice of violation and shall be assessed a surcharge of $750.00. This
amount increases to an amount up to $10,000 if operating under Stages 3, 4 or
5 of the Plan.

D. Following the fourth documented violation, the District shall, upon due notice
to the customer, discontinue water service to the premises where such
violations occur. Services discontinued under such circumstances shall be
restored only upon payment of a reconnection charge, as established in the
District’s Rate Order, as amended from time to time, and any outstanding
charges including late payment fees or penalties. In addition, suitable assurance
must be given to the District so that the same action shall not be repeated while

20



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

the plan is in effect. The District may apply the deposit to any surcharges or
penalties subsequently assessed under this plan against a customer. The
deposit, if any, shall be returned to the customer at the time of the customer’s
voluntary disconnection from the utility system.

E. Compliance with this Plan also may be sought through injunctive relief in district
court.

(2) Each day that one or more of the provisions in this Plan is violated shall constitute
a separate violation. Any person, including one classified as a water customer of
the District in apparent control of the property where a violation occurs or
originates, shall be presumed to be the violator. Any such person, however, shall
have the right to show that he did not commit the violation. See enforcement
process diagram in Appendix C - Drought Response Retail Enforcement Process.

Legal Authority applicable to Water Districts in Regard to Drought Contingency Plan
Enforcement

Please note that the following list is not intended to be exhaustive and statutes listed below
may not apply to all Water Districts. Citations below may change following the publication
date of this Drought Contingency Plan Model. Each Water District is encouraged to consult
with legal counsel in regard to enforcement of drought contingency plans and specific
enforcement authority available to each Water District.

Texas Water Code sec. 49.004
Texas Water Code sec. 49.212
Texas Water Code sec. 51.122
Texas Water Code sec. 54.205
Texas Water Code sec. 65.205

21



Reunion Ranch WCID Amended Drought Contingency Plan

Appendix C — Drought Response Retail Enforcement

Violation witnessed by staff
type of violation date and time
3
First documented Notice of violation issued
violation Customer is notified of actions to
be taken if violations continue
y
Second documented Issue surcharge No. 1
violation $500.00
Up to $2,000 if in Stages 3.4 or 5
4
Third documented Issue surcharge No. 2
violation $750.00
Up to $10,000 if in Stages 3, 4 or 5
J
Fourth documented Cut-off service
violation reconnection fee (per Rate Order)

22



MURFEE ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.
Texas Registered Firm No. F-353

1101 Capital of Texas Hwy., South, Bldg, D

Austin, Texas 78746

(512) 327-9204

M E M OR A ND U M

DATE:  August 11™, 2022

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS — REUNION RANCH WCID
FROM: Andrea Wyatt, P.E.

RE: Agenda Item 9: Engineer’s Report — August 2022

CC: Bill Flickinger — Willatt & Flickinger

MEC File No.: 12002.110

a. Wastewater Treatment Plant

i. Wastewater Flows and Trends
Attached is an updated figure tracking wastewater flows to the existing WWTP vs. projections and
permit milestones. This figure includes calculated wastewater flow values produced per household.

ii. Record Drawings Update
Final record drawings are complete.

iii. Odor Control Update and Recommended Improvements
The odor at the WWTP has been minimal since the new treatment system became operational. MEC has
made regular site visits to evaluate odors.

A quote was provided to Inframark for a DumpsterGuard cover in the amount of $1,890. Inframark
indicated that the dumpsters provided by WWTS have roll-up covers included on them, so the
DumpsterGuard cover may not be necessary. MEC recommends testing the functionality of the roll-up
cover during/after rain events to determine the effectiveness.

MEC has received one estimate for installing a concrete slab for the dumpster. The contractor stated
that the 8” concrete slab would cost approximately $8,500 and each bollard would cost $900. Seven
bollards would provide the protection desired and help guide the dumpster onto the pad. The total
estimate is $14,800. MEC is waiting for additional estimates.

Page 1 of 4



iv. Noise Issues and Abatement Options
A “drop over” enclosure package was provided by a sound enclosure manufacturer, however it doesn’t
offer the required access to the equipment for regular maintenance. The odor control system
manufacturer is providing a recommendation regarding additional sound abatement options.

v. Effluent Irrigation Improvements and Authorizations
The effluent sampling for turbidity has been started, and MEC is coordinating with Inframark to obtain
the E. Coli samples.

Table 1. Type | Quality Requirements

Parameter July Average Limit Limit Type

Turbidity 1.95 3 NTUs 30-day average

BODs 4.45 5 mg/l 30-day average

E. coli ND 20/100 ml 30-day geometric mean {MPN or CFU)

E. coli ND 75/100 ml Maximum single grab sample (MPN or CFU)

MEC has been in communication with a new skid manufacturer in an attempt to get the information
needed for the bidding documents. That manufacture has requested a site visit prior to completing their
proposal.

b. Emergency Management Plan(s)

Texas Senate Bill No. 3 — Emergency Preparedness Plan

MEC submitted the EPP on February 22", 2022, to the TCEQ. MEC is still waiting on TCEQ to respond
with comments, questions, or requests for information. The 90-day review and comment period has
expired.

Wastewater System Emergency Response Plan

Inframark has provided comments and input to the ERP. MEC is editing the plan to align with the
information that Inframark has provided. We expect to treat this emergency plan as a “living document”
and to make changes to it as contacts, procedures, equipment, etc. changes. MEC plans to schedule a
meeting with the committee by the end of the month.

c. Long-Term Improvements and Asset Management Plan
Several items were included in the budget for this year, a table of the projects is included on the
following page.

d. Approvals Related to Ongoing Construction Contracts
Currently no ongoing contracts.

e. Approvals Related to Upcoming Construction Contracts
No outstanding items.

Page 2 of 4



f. Miscellaneous Items
There are currently no additional items that will not be discussed under a separate agenda item

Page3of 4



40 ¥ a8ed

‘|BAOLLAI SPI|OS INOQE UOIIEPUIUIWOISI B 3)ew pue spuod

JUBUISSASSY

‘1utod S1Y 18 SpIjOS IAOWRJ 0 paau ON 7z-8ny eInr 00°002'1S 00°00T°2S 19M 3Y] U] SPI|OS JO 3WN|OA dY) IIBN|EAD [|IM S3UN1B34 J13enby  SpIOS Spuod 19

WANsAs adueidAUL0I Splios B3 “Upseas Jopo yead Y} Suunp dLAMM 34i uopaadsuy

d0y el o3 paEcafha oq A yaiprd L -3y i 00'000'0T$ | PURGJE PUE 3L JOPO 343 Bjeniens 03 WeYRISUO3 Jopo Aued pug 351 | 19P0 dIMM
*1019RI1U0D *13yieam wouy Juawdinba ayj 10a30.d

. Emclﬁmﬁ%zlmﬁ_:ouk mlc_ul_m@ | zT-Aein 7934 00'SEY'8S 00°000'S$ 01 PDIS SQQVS 243 J3A0 J3A0J € ||ejsul 0] JOIDBIIUDD S jJBWEIU|  J3A0] PDIS SAAVS
ESTL]TE)

‘Budeds pur uoneIng|uod Suua3ujdus pIeosse SUIPNPIU] ‘PUISI 34} Ul sease uoeSul  UOREYEISU| PPIS

_Aguan p1s30n13einuett PHjs M SUBLOM | ze-das | zz-hew 00'000'0£Z$ snoLreA By3 o] uanyys Suipaoad Jo sjgeded pijs dwnd e yesu; | uonediu 012
',€ INOQE JO YIpIM B JOJ SALIP
ay3 Jo Jajuad ay3 umop deu du 8y punoJe sadeds ay3 ul (|1 01

‘Bulwoaynoy s |oneJd Jojjews ui uiduilig aq auop aq A|3)1] PINOM SIY] JUIWISED  §53IIY UBIIISIPAJ

H0y3 sIlj3 10§ UONEWIOMUI 3502 [PUOIUPPY z-AeN ZC-1eN 0000525 553728 3IUBUAIUIEW BY] U] 3dBLNS Bupj|em JoNaq e ||elsu| puod asi|3 Arey

"2202 "PTT Aetn jo se pajferst usaq aey “Aepp asy3 Asepy iggeIay

siajeise pasamod 4e|0s 1ey] UORBULYUC) cZ-ar zz-hey 00'TSELS 00°'ISE'ZS  00°000'01% 3J6 puod ) 1e wasAs uogesse puod pasamod-1ej0S B [j1Sl | puod Bsi3 AR

uons|dwod uels 150D | 133png
S3JON |euolMppYy  PalBWllS] pajewnsj  ajeq 03 1s0) PeIIU) [ENDY |lewSI0 uonduasaqg paloid



Murfee Engineering Company, inc.
Texas Registered Firm No. F-353

1101 Capital of Texas Hwy., S., Bldg. D
Austin, Texas 78746

0.100

Reunion Ranch WCID

Wastewater Flow Projections

0.090 2014 Average = 4.2
2015 Average = 2.5
2016 Average =7.7
0.080 2017 Average =5.3
2018 Average = 3.8
2019 Average = 8.7
2020 Average = 6.0
0.070 2021 Average =2.7

0.060

0.050

Projected Flow (MGD)

0.040

0.030

0.020

0.010 \.\(r\

0.000

Original Treatment Capacity

Connection Growth {connections per month

3-Month Average Flow (actual)

Adjusted flows and projection

A

Upgraded Treatment Capacity

90% of Permitted Capacity

- e s o e = = e ==

75% of Permitted Capacity _

3-Month Average Flow
Original Treatment Capacity

seeeeees Projected Fiow

Adjusted Flow

100% Permitted Flow

- = =90% Permitted Flow

75% Permitted Flow

Aug-13 Dec-14

May-16 Sep-17

Feb-19
Month

Jun-20

Oct-21 Mar-23 Jul-24



Murfee Engineering Company, Inc.
Texas Registered Firm No. F-353
1101 Capital of Texas Hwy., S., Bldg. D

Austin, Texas 78746

Unit Usage (gpd/ESFC)

160

140

120

100

80

60

40

20

Aug-13

Reunion Ranch WCID
WWTP Unit Usage Analysis

Permitting Design Basis - 150 gpd/ESFC

Maximum - 131 gpd/ESFC Bond Feasibility Basis - 130 gpd/ESFC

Average + 1 Std Dev - 116 gpd/ESFC >

.|:| -‘li -

) > Average - 108 gpd/ESFC >> A _—%d‘-’ e
Il Lo A-a

= Adjusted Per LUE Use
Per LUE Use

Dec-14 May-16 Sep-17 Feb-19 Jun-20 Oct-21 Mar-23 Jul-24
Month



Murfee Engineering Company, Inc.
Texas Registered Firm No. F-353

1101 Capital of Texas Hwy., S., Bldg. D
Austin, Texas 78746

30-Day Average Turbidity

35
Permit limit (3 NTU)

2.5

15

Turbidity (NTU)

0.5

Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22

30-Day Average BOD

Permit Limit (5 mg/L)

Jul-22

BOD (mg/L)

Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22

Jul-22



()INFRAMARK

WATER & iNFRASTRUCTYRE SERVICLS

Reunion Ranch WCID
General Manager Reports for the month of

July 2022
Board Meeting: August 16th, 2022

Reviewed By: Ronja Keyes
Date: 8/08/2022



I N F R A M A R K 14050 Summit Dr, Ste 103
Austin, TX 78728

T) 512.246.0498
WATER & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES (
(F) 512.716.0024

www.inframark.com

Memorandum for: Board of Directors Reunion Ranch WCID
From: Ronja Keyes
Date: 08/16/2022

Subject: Operations and Maintenance Report

Below is a summary of activities since the last Board Meeting:

Agenda Item 11

A. Administrative

e Nothing significant to report.

B. Wastewater treatment plant & effluent subsurface irrigation

¢ All facilities are in compliance for the month of July;

- Plant's capacity is at 68%; total flows are 1.69 MG; average flows are 54,600
GPD

e SBR control upgrade
- Recent power outage caused several SBR failures
- Installed battery backups to SBR 1 & 2 control panel
e Conducted monthly inspection of irrigation fields.
- No leaks reported
e Winter Rye pricing overview;
- 12 acres (200lbs) / $595 per acre
- Total cost is $7,140 (price may fluctuate depending on fuel cost once
shipped)
- Limited quantities

C. Wastewater collection system

e Nothing significant to report.



D. Water distribution system
e Water accountability is at 93% for the month of July.

e Meter leak;
- Small leak located on District side during move out/move in request.

e 2" Irrigation Meter Reunion Bivd;
- Billing Department requested re-reads due to low usage trend
- Requested meter replacement

e TCEQ lead & copper rule;
- TCEQ notice received July 29t
- Lead & copper rule fact sheets enclosed
- Sampling has been completed, lab results are forthcoming
- Database of service lines/material due by October 2024

E. Stormwater Conveyance & Pond maintenance
« Inframark conducted pond inspections on July 20t". Reports are enclosed.
e Agquatic Features Pond maintenance Reports are enclosed.

e No additional Proposal received for the Mary Elise walking trail.

F. Customer matters, complaints reports & updates

e Nothing significant to report.

G. Customer billing & delinquencies
e No inquires received.

e Mailed 22 Delinquent Letters; 9 Hung; 0 Red Tags as of now

H. Authorization for expenditures related to contracts, repairs, replacements,
operations improvements & maintenance

¢ Refer to recommendations below.

Construction
e Erosion control report attached for review.

Current Items for Board consideration:

Vendor Amount Description Work Order #

Zane Furr $7,200 Perennial rye seed




Jon Niermann, Chairman PWS_1050175_C0_20220729_LCR
Emily Lindley, Commissioner
Babby Janecka, Commissioner

Toby Baker, Executive Director

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution

July 29, 2022
NATHAN NEESE
REUNION RANCH WCID
12912 HILL COUNTRY BLVD STE F-232
AUSTIN, TX 78738-6328
Subject: LEAD AND COPPER TAP SAMPLE MONITORING

REUNION RANCH WCID - PWS ID NO. 1050175
HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

Attention: Public Water System Owner / Official / Manager

Title 30 of the Texas Administrative Code (30 TAC), Chapter 290, Section 290.117, Regulation of
Lead and Copper and Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations (40 CFR), Chapter I,
Subchapter D, Part 141, Subpart 1, Control of Lead and Copper, establishes requirements for
public water systems (PWS) to monitor for and meet designated lead and copper levels.

Based on the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality’s (TCEQ) records, your PWS is
scheduled to conduct lead and copper tap sampling for the reduced monitoring period June
1 - September 30, 2022. Please disregard this letter if your PWS has completed both
monitoring and lead consumer notice requirements. Please be aware that failure to complete
the required sampling is a monitoring or reporting violation and may lead to a return to initial
monitoring or enforcement action.

TCEQ’s Texas Drinking Water Watch is available to view and confirm your PWS's Lead and
Copper Rule sampling requirements, sample results, sampling schedules, violations, points of
contact, and more, located at:

< www.tceq.texas.gov/goto/dww >

The TCEQ provides necessary compliance guidance, forms, laboratory information, sampling
instructions, and monitoring schedules on the TCEQ Drinking Water Lead and Copper Rule
(LCR) webpage, located at:

< https:/ /www.tceq.texas.gov/drinkingwater/chemicals/lead_copper/lead-copper.html >

If you have questions or require additional assistance concerning lead and copper monitoring
requirements for your PWS, please contact the TCEQ Lead and Copper Monitoring Team at (512)
239-4691 or PWSLCR@tceq.texas.gov.

P.0. Box 13087 + Austin, Texas 78711-3087 * 512-239-1000 * tceq.texas.gov

How is our customer service? rceq.texas.gov/customersurvey
prinied on recyeled piper



NATHAN NEESE

PAGE 2

July 29, 2022

Please note the following steps for sampling under the LCR:

Complete TCEQ Form 20467 (a) or (b), Lead and Copper Sample Site Selection Pool
and Material Survey, if needed. All PWSs are required to have an updated sampling
pool of addresses. If you have not completed this form in the past or do not have a
complete sampling pool with an updated Materials Survey, you are required to update
your sampling pool prior to sampling. Instructions for identifying suitable sample taps,
including targeted tier requirements within the sampling pool can be found in 30 TAC
Chapter 290, Section 290.117(c)(1)(C) and the TCEQ Drinking Water LCR Program
webpage. Enclosed please find the sample sites currently approved and on file with the
TCEQ.

Locate a NELAP laboratory that is accredited for methods associated with the LCR.
The laboratory you choose can provide the required laboratory grade one-liter bottles
for sampling, including the EPA-recommended wide-mouth bottles. The list of
accredited laboratories can be found on the TCEQ Drinking Water LCR Program
webpage.

Complete TCEQ Form 20683, the Lead and Copper Rule Manitoring Form. This is your
chain of custody (COC) which accompanies your bottles to the laboratory. The LCR COC
can be found on the TCEQ Drinking Water Lead and Copper Program webpage. Please
note that sample collection sites must be matched to their corresponding LCR numbers
(LCR###) on all paperwork and sample bottles when submitted to the laboratory.
Instructions to complete the COC are included on the form.

Complete TCEQ Form 20680 (a) or (b), Lead Consumer Notice (LCN). Requirements for
the LCN can be found in 30 TAC Chapter 290, Section 290.117(j). All forms including the
LCN can be found on the TCEQ Drinking Water LCR Program webpage. Once sampling is
complete and results are received, this form can also be submitted to
PWSLCRetepgLtexas.gov, Instructions to complete and submit the LCN are included on
the forms,.

Sincerely,

e

Michele Risko, Manager

Drinking Water Standards Section (MC-155)
Water Supply Division

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

CcC:

TCEQ Region 11
VANESSA CHAPA, 2002 W GRAND PKWY N STE 10, KATY TX 77449-1963



PWS_1050175_C0_20220713_LCR

Public Water System: TX1050175 REUNION RANCH WCID

SAMPLE SITE SITE STATUS TIER LOCATION

LCROO1 A N EMMA LOOP
LCR0OO2 A N EMMA LOOP
LCROO3 A N EMMA LOOP
LCROO4 A N EMMA LOQOP
LCROO6 A N EMMA LOOP
LCROO7 A N MARGARET CIR
LCROO8 A N MARGARET CIR
"LCR009 A N MARGARET CIR
LCRO10 A N MARGARET CIR
LCROI1 A N MARGARETE CIRCLE
LCRO12 A N JAYNE COVE
LCRO13 A N KATIE DR
LCRO14 A N KATIE DR
LCRO15 A N REUNION BLVD
LCRO16 A N JAYNE CV
LCRO17 A N JAYNE CV
LCRO18 A N EMMA LOOP
LCRO19 A N KATIE DR
LCRO20 A N JASKSDAW DR
LCRO21 A N ANGELA ROSE CT
LCRO22 A N MARY ELISE WAY
LCRO23 A N MARY ELISE WAY
LCRO24 A N KATIE DR
LCRO25 A N ADAM CT
LCRO26 A N ADAM CT
LCRO27 A N WILLIAM CT



Understanding the Lead and Copper Rule

EPA established the Lead and Copper Rule (LCR) in 1991 to protect public health and
reduce exposure to lead in drinking water. The most common sources of lead in
drinking water are lead pipes and brass or bronze faucets and fixtures.

MAXIMUM CONTAMINANT LEVEL GOAL

The Lead and Copper Rule established a
Maximum Contaminant Level Goal (MCLG) of
zero for lead. The MCLG is zero because there
is no level of exposure to lead that is without
risk. The Safe Drinking Water Act requires
that EPA establish a treatment technique for
contaminants like lead and copper that
prevents known or anticipated health effects to
the extent feasible,

Since implementation, the Lead

and Copper Rule action level

exceedances have decreased by
over 90%

TREATMENT TECHNIQUE

Lead is rarely found in significant quantities in
naturally occurring sources of water, such as
streams, lakes, rivers, or ground water. Lead
from lead pipes, faucets, and fixtures can
dissolve into water or sometimes can enter as
flakes or small particles. To keep lead from
entering the water, EPA requires some
systems, including those that are having
difficulty controlling lead, to treat water using
certain chemicals that keep the lead in place
by reducing corrosion. This treatment is called
corrosion control. When corrosion control
alone is not sufficient to control lead exposure,
EPA requires systems to educate the public
about risks of lead in drinking water and to
replace lead service lines.

()

OFFICE OF GROUND WATER
ANDY DRINKING WATER




EPA OGWDW | Understanding the Lead and Copper Rule EPA September 2020

EPA'S LEAD ACTION LEVEL

The lead action level is a measure of the
effectiveness of the corrosion control treatment
in water systems. The action level is not a
standard for establishing a safe level of lead in a
home.

To check if corrosion control is working, EPA
requires water systems to test for lead at the
tap in certain homes, including those with lead
service lines. Systems compare sample results
from homes to EPA’s action level of 0.015 mg/L
(15 ppb). If 10 percent of the samples from
these homes have water concentrations that are
greater than the action level, then the system
must perform actions such as public education IMPLEMENTATION AND NEXT STEPS
and lead service line replacement.,

Implementation of the LCR over the past twenty-
five years has resulted in major improvements in
LCR VIOLATIONS public health. The number of the nation’s large
drinking water systems that have exceeded the
LCR action level has decreased by over 90 percent
since the initial implementation of the rule. Based

perform certain required actions (e.g., public on June 2019 SDWIS data, about 97 percent of
educat|.on or Ieaq service line replace‘mentc) after the systems have not reported an action level
the action level is exceeded. Other violations exceedance in the last 3 years

may also be assessed under the rule. For

Exceeding the action level is not a violation.
Violations can be assessed if a system does not

example, if samples are collected improperly, EPA is continuing to work with primacy agencies to
samples are not reported, or if treatment is ClSUIE that the LCR is being properly
done incorrectly. implemented.

EPA has recently released the proposed rule for
public comment. To learn more visit:
www.epa.gov/safewater/lcrproposal.

QD For more information, visit; epa.gov/safewater




<EPA

United States
Environmental Protection
Agency

¢

o ]

o i ‘ 5
F'ﬂ' 1¥a .It.*' -~
W 7

e o3

1This document provides a
summary of federal drinking
water requirements; to ensure
full compliance, please constult

= the federal regulations at 40 CFR
141 and any approved state
requirements.

2 The June 1991 LCR was revised
with the following Technical
Amendments: 56 FR 32112, July
15, 1991; 57 FR 28785, June 29,
; 959;5; 59 FR 33860, June 30,

994,

the LCR Minor Revisions, 65 FR
| 1950, January 12, 2000; and the
"~ LCR Short-Term Revisions, 72 FR
57782, October 10, 2007.

=

ﬂ It was subsequently revised by:

Lead and Copper Rule: A Quick Reference Guide

Title' Lead and Copper Rule (LCR)Z. 56 FR 26460 - 26564, June 7, 1991

Purpose Protect public health by minimizing lead (Pb) and copper (Cu) levels in drinking water, primarily by reducing
water corrosivity. Pb and Cu enter drinking water mainly from corrosion of Pb and Cu containing plumbing
materials.

General Establishes action level (AL) of 0.015 mg/L for Pb and 1.3 mg/L for Cu based on 90th percentile level of tap

Description | water samples. An AL exceedance is not a violation but can trigger other requirements that include water
quality parameter {(WQP) monitoring, corrosion control treatment (CCT), source water monitoring/treatment,
public education, and lead service line replacement (LSLR).

Utilities All community water systems (CWSs) and non-transient non-community water systems (NTNCWSs) are
Covered subject to the LCR requirements.

Public Health Benefits

Implementation |» Reduction in risk of exposure to Pb that can cause damage to brain, red blood cells, and kidneys,

of the LCR has especially for young children and pregnant women.

resulted in » Reduction in risk of exposure to Cu that can cause stomach and intestinal distress, liver or kidney
damage, and complications of Wilson's disease in genetically predisposed people.

Major Monitoring Provisions

Lead and Copper Tap
Applicability |» All CWSs and NTNCWSs.

Standard » CWSs and NTNCWSs must collect first-draw samples at taps in homes/buildings that are at high risk of
Pb/Cu contamination as identified in 40 CFR 141.86(a).

» Number of samples is based on system size (see Table 1).
» Systems must conduct monitoring every 6 months unless they qualify for reduced monitoring.
Reduced » See Table 1 for sample number and Table 2 for criteria.

Water Quality Parameter (\WQP)

Applicability |» Systems serving > 50,000 people.

Systems serving < 50,000 during monitoring periods in which either AL is exceeded.
WQP samples at taps are collected every 6 months.

WQPs at entry points to distribution system (EPTDS) are collected every 6 months prior to CCT
installation, then every 2 weeks.

Reduced » See Table 1 for sample number and page 2 for criteria. Does not apply to EPTDS WQP monitoring.

Standard

vv|v

. ‘ ' . o Number of Pb/Cu Tap Sample sites® | Number éJf-V\'IQP"i'a;;'Sar'nple S‘it-es:‘ .....
Size Category System Size
Standard Reduced Standard Reduced
> 100K 100 50 25 10
Large

50,001 - 100K 60 30 10 7

10,001 - 50K 60 30 10 7

Medium

3,301 - 10K 40 20 3 3

501 - 3,300 20 10 2 2

Small 101 - 500 10 5 1 1
<100 5 5 1 1

Annual 1. PWS serves < 50,000 people and is < both ALs for 2 consecutive 6-month monitoring periods; or
2. Any PWS that meets optimal WQPs (OWQPs) and is < Pb AL for 2 consecutive 6-month monitoring
periods.
Triennial 1. PWS serves < 50,000 people and is < both ALs for 3 consecutive years of monitoring; or

Any PWS that meets OWQP specifications and is < Pb AL for 3 consecutive years of monitoring; or

3. Any PWS with goth percentile Pb and Cu levels < 0.005 mg/L and < 0.65 mg/L, respectively, for 2
consecutive 6-month monitoring periods (i.e., accelerated reduced Pb/Cu tap monitoring).

Every 9 years | PWS serves < 3,300 people and meets monitoring waiver criteria found at 40 CFR 141.86(g).

Lead Consumer Notice

Within 30 days of learning the results, all systems must provide individual Pb tap results to people who receive water from
sites that were sampled, regardless of whether the results exceed the Pb AL, as required by 40 CFR 141.85(d).

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR)

All CWSs, irrespective of their lead levels, must provide an educational statement about lead in drinking water in their
CCRs as required by 40 CFR 141.154. Must be in 2008 CCR (due July 1, 2009) if EPA is Primacy Agency, State adopts the
rult1e t;y reference automatically, or adopts during 2008. Otherwise, this statement is required in the 2009 CCR (due July 1,
2010).




Treatment Technique and Sampling Requirements if the AL is Exceeded?®

5 Based on 90th percentile level. Muitiply number of valid samples bhy 0.9 (e.g., 10 samples x 0.9 = 9; thus, use gth highest
Pb and Cu test result to compare to AL). For 5 samples, average 41" and 5th highest results. For < 5 samples, use highest

result.

Water Quality Parameter (\WQP)

Applicability Refer to page 1.

Parameters » pH, alkalinity, calcium (initial only, unless calcium carbonate stabilization is used), conductivity (initial
monitoring only), orthophosphate (if inhibitor is phosphate-based); silica (if inhibitor is silicate-based),
and temperature (initial monitoring only).

Frequency » Systems installing CCT, must conduct follow-up monitoring for 2 consecutive 6-month periods.

» WAQP tap monitoring is conducted every 6 months, EPTDS monitoring increases to every 2 weeks.
» After follow-up monitoring, State sets OWQP specifications that define optimal CCT.
Reduced Tap » Collect reduced number of sampling sites (see Table 1) if meet OWQPs for 2 consecutive 6-month
Monitoring periods.
» Collect reduced number of sampling sites at reduced frequency if meet OWQPs for:

- 6 consecutive 6-month monitoring periods can monitor annually;
- 3 consecutive years of annual monitoring can monitor triennially.

Public Education (PE)
Applicability » Systems that exceed the Pb AL (not required if only the Cu AL is exceeded).

Purpose » Educates consumers about lead health effects, sources, and steps to minimize exposure.

Delivery Method |» CWSs: deliver materials to bill-paying customers and post lead information on water bills, work in
concert with local health agencies to reach at-risk populations (children, pregnant woman), deliver
to other organizations serving “at-risk” populations, provide press releases, include new outreach
activities from list in 40 CFR 141.85(a)(2)(vi), and post to Web site (CWSs serving > 100,000 only).

» NTNCWSs: posting and distribution to all consumers (can be electronic with State permission). Can
apply to CWSs such as hospitals and prisons where population cannot make improvements.

Timing > Witl'(\iin 60 days after end of monitoring period in which Pb AL was exceeded if not already delivering
PE.
d » Repeat annually except: water bill inserts - quarterly; press releases - 2x/year, and Web posting -
N continuous.

» Can discontinue whenever < Pb AL but must recommence if subsequently exceed Pb AL.

5State may allow extension in some situations. Also, State may require approval of message content prior to delivery.

Source Water Monitoring and Source Water Treatment (SOWT)

Applicability » Systems that exceed Pb or Cu AL.
f Purpose » Determine contribution from source water to total tap water Pb and Cu levels and need for SOWT,
Timing » One set of samples at each EPTDS is due within 6 months of first AL exceedance.
» System has 24 months to install any required SOWT.
: » State sets maximum permissible levels (MPLs) for Pb and Cu in source water based on initial and
follow-up source water monitoring.
Standard » Ground water PWSs monitor once during 3-year compliance periods; surface water PWSs monitor
annually.
Reduced » Monitor every 9 years if MPLs are not exceeded during 3 consecutive compliance periods for ground
/ water PWSs or 3 consecutive years for surface water PWSs.

Corrosion Control Treatment (CCT)
Applicability » All large systems except those meeting requirements of 40 CFR 141.81(b)(2) or (b)(3).

» Medium and small systems that exceed either AL; may stop CCT steps if < both ALs for 2 consecutive
" et A 6-month periods but must recommence CCT if subsequently exceed either AL.

\

~ pr . - < Study » All large systems except as noted above.
; e L - 4 ~ » If State requires study for small or medium systems, it must be completed within 18 months.
i vh o ’ Treatment » Once State determines type of CCT to be installed, PWS has 24 months to install.
{ AR » Systems installing CCT must conduct 2 consecutive 6 months of follow-up tap and WQP monitoring.
- < OWQPs » After follow-up Pb/Cu tap and WQP monitoring, State sets OWQPs. Refer to WQP section above.
Lead Service Line Replacement (LSLR)
For additional Applicability » Systems that continue to exceed the Pb AL after installing CCT and/or SOWT.
information on the LCR » Can discontinue LSLR whenever < Pb AL in tap samples for 2 consecutive 6-month monitoring
My periods; must recommence if subsequently exceed.

gzui:‘heeasﬁteagéﬂggi%itsr Monitoring » Optional: Sample from LSL to determine if line must be replaced. If all samples are < 0.015 mg/L,
visit the EPA Web site at : line is(;:ogsidered “replaced through testing”; must reconsider these lines if Pb AL is subsequently
http://water.epa.govidrink; SECESOE: o
or contact your State drinking » Required: Sample from any LSLs not completely replaced to determine impact on Pb levels.
water representative. Replacement » Must replace at least 7% of LSLs annually; State can require accelerated schedule.

» If only portion of LSL is replaced, PWS must:
- Notify customers at least 45 days prior to replacement about potential for increased Pb levels.
\ - Collect samples within 72 hours of replacement and provide results within 3 days of receipt.

Hzer (4806M) EPA 816-F-08-018 http://water.epa.qov/drink June 2008
|




December 2021

Stronger Protections from Lead in Drinking Water:
Next Steps for the Lead and Copper Rule

The science on lead has been settled for decades. There is no safe level of lead exposure. In drinking
water, the primary source of lead is from pipes, which can present a risk to the health of children and
adults. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is committed to using every tool available—
statutory authority under the Safe Drinking Water Act, technical assistance, funding for lead service
line removal, and more—to protect all Americans from lead in drinking water. The agency will
collaboratively work with local, state, and federal partners to make rapid progress on President Biden’s
vision to remove 100% of lead service lines, with a focus on prioritizing communities that are
disproportionately impacted by lead contamination.

On December 16, 2021, EPA announced next steps to strengthen the regulatory framework on lead in
drinking water. Following the agency’s review of the Lead and Copper Rule Revisions (LCRR) under
Executive Order 13990, EPA has concluded that there are significant opportunities to improve

the rule to support the overarching goal of proactively removing lead service lines and more equitably
protecting public health. A critical component of EPA’s review of the LCRR was robust public
engagement. The agency hosted a series of engagements from April to August of 2021 to obtain public
input. The engagement meetings included two days of public listening sessions, 10 community
roundtables, a Tribal roundtable, a national stakeholder association roundtable, a national co-regulator
meeting, and a meeting with organizations representing elected officials.

In a Federal Register Notice, EPA announced that the LCRR will go into effect to support near-

term development of actions to reduce lead in drinking water. At the same time, EPA will develop a
new proposed rulemaking to strengthen key elements of the rule. The agency anticipates finalizing
the forthcoming Lead and Copper Rule Improvements (LCRI) prior to October 16, 2024, the initial
compliance date in the LCRR.

Implementation of the Lead and Copper Rule Revisions

The agency has determined that there are advancements in the LCRR. Specifically, lead service line
inventories that will be developed under the LCRR are necessary to achieve 100% removal of lead
service lines. EPA intends to maintain the requirements for information to be submitted in the

initial lead service line inventory by the current October 16, 2024 compliance date. Maintaining this
compliance deadline ensures water systems will make continued progress to identify lead service lines,
which is integral to lead reduction efforts.

To assist local water systems, state primacy agencies, and other partners, EPA is committed to issuing
new guidance for the LCRR. EPA will issue guidance on developing lead service line inventories,

Page10f3



December 2021

including best practices, case studies, and templates. EPA is also updating the Safe Drinking Water
Information System to support state and Tribal data management needs for inventories.

New Rulemaking Action: Lead and Copper Rule Improvements

EPA intends to immediately begin to develop a proposed National Primary Drinking Water Regulation:
Lead and Copper Rule Improvements to address key issues and opportunities identified in our review.
EPA intends to promulgate the LCRI prior to October 16, 2024.

Focus Areas for the Proposed Rulemaking

Replacing all Lead Service Lines. Replacing all lead service lines is an important public

health goal. EPA intends to propose requirements that, along with other actions, would replace
all lead service lines as quickly as feasible. EPA’s proposal will fully consider the agency’s
statutory authority and required analyses, including an economic analysis.

Compliance Tap Sampling. EPA intends to assess data to consider opportunities to strengthen
compliance tap sampling requirements. Robust tap sampling methods are essential to
identifying locations with elevated lead, whether the source of the lead is a lead service line or
leaded plumbing materials within a residence.

Action and Trigger Levels. For the proposed rule, the agency plans to explore options to reduce
the complexity and confusion associated with these levels with a focus on reducing health risks
in more communities. The agency will also evaluate whether the trigger level requirements of
the LCRR are still necessary with a proactive lead service line replacement and more protective
action level.

Prioritizing Historically Underserved Communities. EPA intends to explore how to replace lead
service lines in a manner that prioritizes underserved communities. EPA will evaluate options to
prioritize the removal of lead service lines in communities disproportionately impacted by lead
in drinking water. The goal of these potential lead service line replacement regulatory
improvements—coupled with non-regulatory actions—is to more equitable protect public
health.

Additional Actions to Reduce Lead in Drinking Water
EPA concluded that there are additional actions outside of the SDWA regulatory framework for the
Lead and Copper Rule that can further reduce lead in drinking water. They include:

Additional Infrastructure Funds. EPA announced that it will allocate $2.9 billion in Bipartisan
Infrastructure Law funding to states, Tribes, and territories to remove lead service lines. This
2022 allocation is the first of five allotments that will provide $15 billion in dedicated funding
for lead serve line replacements. In addition to the dedicated investment in lead service lines,
the Law provides an additional $11.7 billion in general funding through the DWSRF, which can
also be utilized for lead removal projects.

Equity in the Distribution of Funds. EPA will seek opportunities to provide technical assistance
to small and disadvantaged communities, promote awareness of the availability of

Page 2 of 3



December 2021

these funding programs to address lead in drinking water and highlight case studies from
communities that have successfully addressed concerns regarding the use of public funds for
private-side lead service line replacements. Two EPA programs central to EPA’s goal to
accelerate lead service line replacements are pilot programs under the Justice 40 Initiative:
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) and the Water Infrastructure Improvements for
the Nation Act (WIIN) Reducing Lead in Drinking Water Grant. EPA is engaging with
stakeholders to explore opportunities to maximize the benefits of these programs in
disadvantaged communities, including their specific application to lead service line replacement
projects.

Federal Collaboration to Address School and Child-Care Lead in Drinking Water. EPA will
explore collaborations with other federal agencies to remediate lead in drinking water in
schools and child-care facilities, with a particular focus on communities at risk of multiple forms
of lead exposure.

Targeted Technical Assistance to Communities with High Drinking Water Lead Levels. EPA will
collaborate with states and Tribes that have primary enforcement responsibility for public
water systems to provide oversight as well as assistance to communities experiencing high
levels of lead in their drinking water.

Improving Risk Communication Tools. EPA intends to develop guidance and templates to
assist states, Tribes, and water systems in the communication of lead risk to households and
communities.

Discourage Partial Lead Service Line Replacements and Encourage Full Replacements. EPA will
provide training, guidance, and tools on developing lead service line replacement programs,
including how to ensure equitable implementation of removal projects. EPA will provide
guidance on available methods for replacing full lead service lines as safely and efficiently as
possible.

Page3of3



:T4%:1% 65S0°LPL £€6°201 S8|qeAl8day [ejol
1s0'c LVE'S 962'E s9|qeAlao9y paby |ejol
G20'0E ZL2'GEL 1£9'66 palig iejoL
699'G 19'090'82 ¥L'16£'22 Pal|ig S)unoddy ioj asn JjeM Bay
- - - pawiepay
000'9l 0009} 3 Bupoel ]
00S = = JUBIPAH
= 881G/ 621'661 VOH - [el2Jawwo)
160'6 609'92 81521 |enuspisay
uoijdwnsuo) sbeiaay
000°56L'E 000'9L8'p1 000°L29°L1 pawnsuo) suojies [BjoL
¥ = - pawiepay
000°9L 000°9L - Buoel|
az z 2 JueipAH
(000°685'}) 000°€02’L 000'26.°2 VOH - [el2J3wuo)
000'89.'v 000°265°El 000'628'8 |ejuapisay
uondwnsuo)
6 8Z6 6LS Pajlig Sjunoady jo JaquinN [ejo]
& - pawiepay
= L L Bupoell
= - = uBIPpAH
9l Pl VOH - [elaJswuio)
L LIS 705 [enuapisay
ze-inr Lz-inr
aguelep SuoI}93uuo0) uonduasag

MUYINYYANID)

Aieunung buijig




2zji

zzfa z2fS Tz,

"

BNUINIY JDIBMIISEAA 1 SNUIAIY IS1EAA B

(1413 27§z zzfT 1z/TT ThT

Tz/oT

12/6

/g

Tyl

00°0%

00°000'0T$

00°000'0%S

00°000'09%

00°000’0g%

00°000'00TS

00°000'0ZT$

Kiobaje) Aq enuaasy AuoisiH yjuol buling zi




VIN juswAed UON Jo} S}08UU0SI]

6 . Buny sbe] juanbuisg

(44 paliep 1apa7 Juanbulag

0008 SuONDJY|0) UoheISPISUO) pleoyd

0008 4O S1IM 0} UojEISPISUCD pJeol

€0'€eL') $|960L2 $ | ¥8°299 $ [ CLBEE'S $ | 92°850'L¥1 $ {4473
gv'e8s'lL b | 98/ $ | 09916 $ | 20162} $ | G2962'041 $ 22/9
29'6£9'C B | 25'¥0€ $ | 19Est $ | 98'GL6'S $ | €2°056'00L $ z2/S
G1'€29'L $1€eei60)L $ | ¥6°06¢ $ | 6e'662'L $ | B8'ESL'96 $ t4414
87°000°L $ | 29229 $ | €2'G6L'L $ | S¥'G9E'L $ | /¥'8l6'eL $ [4413
29'LSL $ | ov'62L $ [ L¥v98 $ | 8gcLo'e $ | 91'v26'S9 g [4dt4
18'612 $ | L2°LSL $ | 02'9G5€ $ |eeovi'y $ |927251°€L (441’
€4°882'C $ | 80'GET'L $ 19216 $ | Zv'ESy's $ | BZ'2Z62'08 L2ich
56'9%0'2 $|v29L2 $ | €o0g6'e $ | 29'96¥'S $ | 26°190'¥6 $ 1/t
8/.°v8¢2'L $ | 6976 $|2Cvi8 $ | 2¥'lE0'9 $ | Zo'zeL'E0L $ 12/0)
¥2'€88 $ | 9€'GLS $|91'265'2 $ | 2z2298'S $[oLGL6L2) $ L2/6]
00°0S) $|8ese $1€97291'L $ | 86'LL6'Y $ | 'ee6'20l $ LZ/8
00°0S1 $| 8258 $[€9491°}) $ | 86'LL6'F $ | 2¥'€€6'20L $ Vel
00°05L $]46'CL $ | 6°'8€EF $ | SS'COE'Y $110v82'22 $ 12/9
+02t [elol Aeg 06 Ie10L[Aeqg 09 1e101 Aeq o€ |ejoL 9]qeAladay |ejol ajeq

o [} B =}
— |
= —" — =
= |
= = == -
—— —_— | _—

|

poday Su01399]]09 pue |qeAIddaYy SJUNOIJY YIUOW Z1L




EHN SUMO[YD QUOIN BAy 213 e 0.0 91°¢ aL'e cc-inr
G.°0 GZ'¢c 00'¢ cec-unr
zz-nr zZ-un( zT-ARIN TT-1dY TT-IR TT-q34 TT-Ue[ TZ-23(] TZ-AON TZ-120 TZ-das tz-bny tz-jnr 080 861 v8°Z NN|>m_>_
oS0 #9°0 6C'¢C 66'¢C Zz-dy
89°0 LA c0'E cc-1eN
oot 850 18'l S¥'e 22-9°4
05T €20 18l 00¢ ccuer
00z 960 el G6°'L }¢-98Q
oSz AN V'L 6’ L Z-AON
- 91’0 Go'L Ll L2 10
Y0 (494 ¥9'C lg-des
o5t 220 122 95 \z-Bny
A4 8e'¢C 6C'¢C le-inrt
€HN - 2ulojyd ouoN-bay 27D €HN Suuolyy Ouo\y bAy 210 9jed

05" @A0Qy 2 1SNy sluswannbay alelg

_H_ BAY [enuuy Juaing

Buuojyiuoy Ayjenp i13yep

Aylenp pue uoionpo.d J3jem V_ m < 2 < m m Z _ @ ]




000~

I-Isso7sEOW a5 paliig = SIBIN JRIseIN =
& $ : .,v : \
.w%%o & & %.;woroo&. %. e%, & § s%o k.u% .%p. S
& SR S £ 00 &
Wha P —ze.. & & -zea —z%o @ &P a%p & oﬁ o

- - - = - = 0
000
{

L 000

000'9

000'8
000°0T
000°ZT

000'vT

00091

000°8T

yoday AJljiqejunoosoy Isjepn




%G9 L6 %GE 8- (09g°1) Ll 0Z6'vl  |L62'9l 8¢S 2ci6lll zz Ainp
%ZE'€6 %899~ (928) 6 0eS'LL  |g9g'ZL 8289 2e/9L/9 gc aunr
%E/'88 %l2 L= [(161°L) Ll ¥9€'6 99501 8¢S 2e/8LIS zz AeN
%0226 %08'2-  |(224) 6 v/1°6 096'6 8¢S ze/i8lly |2z ludy
%1198 %ETEL-  |(¥LL) 6 ¥90°G 1¥8'S 8¢S ce/lLie  |2g yole
%2S'Z6 %8yl |(s62) Ll 9€9'c  [z¥6'S 825 ge/lViz  |gg Aenuged
%.G°G6 %er - |(G22) €1 Z¥8'y  |080's 82S zz/8L/L |2z Aenuer
%66°26 %10 2" (62%) 6 089°'G 8LL'9 828 V2/LLizL  [Lg 1equisds(g
%SGE 68 %G9°0L- [(000°L) [Pl 9/£'8 06€'6 125 L2/8L/LL  [Lg JoquanoN
%90'88 %y6 LL-  |(Zv¥'L)  |0L 899°0L |szZl'CZ) 92S 12/8L/0L  [Lg 1990100
%2626 %80°Z- (8L0°1) Ll rA*150 S A [ 1o 41 ¥es L2ILLI6 L2 Jequisydag
%/.9°06 %ee6- (01’ |2 8v/'LL  [596°2) €z8 L2/6L/8 |1z isnbny
%ZL 00} %ZL°0 Sl L zLlby [pos'LL 6LS Le/6LiL |1z Ainr
%9.°06 %YZ 6- (889) l z5L'9 v’ alLg L2/8L/19 g aunp
%GS5 €6 %S'9- (815) 0 z1s'. 0£0'8 90S 12/02/S Lg Aey
%ZlL 06 %88"6- (z06) g 122'8 vEL'6 90S L2/6L1Y 12 ludy
%6%°901 %679 ove Gl 026'c G69'C ¥0S L2/6L/E LZ Udten
%0126 %06 L- (¥P) 0 G/L'S 619'G FAV] 1¢/0z/e Lz Aenige4
%S¢’ .6 %S.°Z- (€L1) . 866°C 8LL'Y 86V L2/SL/L 1z Aenuer
%S 66 %8 0" (02) 0 869'G 989'G 961 0z2//LizL |0z JequsdeQ
%¥E 004 %Ye 0 Le 8 62L'6 90L‘6 681 02/8L/LL |0 JequaAoN
%69'86 %LE L (sv1) b 9G6'0L  [80L°LL G8Yy 02/61/0L  |0Z 1990100
%SG0°201 %S0'C ¥Se 8 vv9'cl  [86E£'CL 18y 02/8L/6 |0z Jequeides
%2CL LOL %ZlL ) vil 8 ¥G.'SlL  [885'SL 17774 0z/gL/8  |0Z Isnbny
%8%° 001 %80 29 ) 956'CL  [568°CL 89Y 0z/ZLiL |0z Aine

Jo4 S$S07 % (-) sso 12410/ asn SI3)J3IN | sSuol}ddaUU0) ajeq peay yjuon

pajunoldy s'len [Buiysni4| pajng Ja)seiN J0 JaquinN




PRI SN
P P S P
& AT A SR o

&

T

oe0Q

oto'n

oho'e

as00

0g0°0

aLo0

0go'a

Ainr jo YluoW ayj 1oj SMO[J JAJEMaISEM |

S ARIT JRALINRISYS4k: § H1IVA

T P T Ve NIVIAVYEINTY 3



%2Z89

SBA
SBA
Sap
Sap
SaA

SOA

SN PIS LG2

SN PIS LS2
6wz}
Bw gy
1bw 0y
QoW §50°0

SHUN PIS 0'6

sWun PIS 0'9
bw 07}
/6w 0z
Bw oz
QoN 80°0

(xeW) Hd

(un) Hd

(uw) |enpisay aulolyd
(6Ay) sSL

(6av) aog

('Bay) d1LMM Mol

AInr jo yuol ay3 104




%96 _me 19'166'20 | 000°828°210 STV.LOL
%ZL g 000'9€E 000'62L°4 ozv Oz-uer
%08 £6 0000 000°9SL'L ZE¥ 0z-94
%98 16 000'EY 000'VVE'L (24 0zZ-1e
%L [ 000°9% 000°ZZE'L EGY 0z-1dy
%001 g0} 008'6Y 000'GHS'L BSY 0z-Aep
%901 51 00L'ES 000765 L £9¥ oz-unr
%001 201 000°0S 000°Z¥S 't 89% ozinr
%801 Ll 000'%S 000°199'L [2%2 0z-bny
%001 0L 000°05 000°L15} 18v 0z-dsg
%001 [ 000°0S5 000'EYS'L S8Y 02100
%86 00l 0006V 000'99%°L 58Y 0Z-AON
%01 L il 000°55 000612} 967 0z-%9Q
%98 €6 ££'680'ab | 002'255°21 SIVIiOoL
%901 [soL 000'eS 000'0v9'L 867 Lz-uer
%88 [T 000t 000'%E2°} 205 Lz-9e4
%96 S6 000'8% 00027’} ¥05 LZ-eN
%08 BL 000'0% 000'684°} 908 1g-1dy
%88 /8 000'F7 000°0Z€'L 905 LZz-ReN
%26 B8 000'9% 000Z8€'L alG Lz-unr
%06 28 000'Sy 000'LEE'L 615 \e-nr
%6 06 000'2¥ 000°25¥'L £25 Lz-bny
%b8 08 000°Zy 000+.2'L ves Lg-dog
%69 501 000'SS 008689 L 925 12100
%LL 801 00025 00v'8LL L |2z 1Z-AON
%0. 90l 000'95 000°982°L 1825 1z-9eg
1%0L 901 12'261'9s | ooo'ges'rl | STV.LOL
%.9 Z0L 008'€S 005'899'L [8es zz-uer
%EL 1l 0£5'85 008'9€9'L |ezs Z29°4
%89 £01 LIV'YS 005'69'L [8zs ZZ-eW
%2 60} 06245 009812t [szs Zz1dy
%L 60L 269'25 009'882°} B82S zz-Aen
%LL 80L 0L0°ZS 00E0LL'L B82S zZz-unr
%89 £0L 00975 002°1L69'F 825 ze-inr
% nﬂﬁmo LMM_H_M_.“_:MMC abesary SMO|4 [e}Jo] | Ssuoposuuo)

G0 DAY 10 MDY JNEAA o

|2oLI0)ISIH MO]d JaJEMaISEM AIDM YdUBYy uoiunay

=




@INFRAMARK

WATER INFRASTRUCTURE OPERATIONS

Open Work Orders for Pond maintenance & repair:

WOit:

Location:

Work scheduled:

No open WO's at
this time




@INFRAMARK

Completed Work Orders for Pond maintenance and repair:

WOi#t: Location: Work scheduled:

1701893 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2 Add grass seed around Pond area

1701898 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2 Clean silt out of Inlet structure

2053455 5918 Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Replace rock that washed out on
road to Pond

2135542 Jacksdaw Dr, DP 3-1 Erosion issue at outfall/spillway,
area around erosion control fabric
and French drain s eroding

2155301 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2 Clean Inlet

2155305 Reunion Blvd, DP 2-3 Clean Inlet

2276034 Jacksdaw Dr, DP 3-1 Clean Inlet — full of silt

2276039 Reunion Blvd, DP 2-3 Clean Inlet — full of vegetation
and silt

2319072 591B Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Replace broken stack located in the
sand basin

2319078 591B Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Clean Inlet by fence on far right,
clean deep ditch inlet in back

2315098 Jacksdaw Dr, DP 3-1 Clean Inlet

2367082 5918 Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Clean silt out of sand bay area so it will
drain, clean splitter box — clean silt so it
won't hold water, grade in front of
splitter box in front of inlet

2387972 RRWCID District Area Clean all storm outlets as identified
on TCEQ Inspection

2466755 5918 Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Replaced lock on gate

2483580 591B Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Reset No Trespassing sign

2483622 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2 Safety issue on trail, Metal edging
above ground, replace missing
red/white striped gate arm

2396347 Jacksdaw Dr, DP 3-1 Cleansilt from inlet— holding
water

2543838 Jayne CV .
Needs cleaning, remove leaves

2546492 Reunion Blvd, DP 2-3

Clean Inlet




2617180

Reunion Ranch Blvd, DP 2-3

Weld Ring onto end of gate to
secure chain, clean inlets

2619039 Denise Cove Storm Drain
Clear vegetation from Bull Rock,
remove sediment from inlet
2396357 ise Way, DP 2-2
Mary Elise Way, DP Clean silt & vegetation
from inlet — holding water — work
has started
2275994 591B Katie Dr, DP 2-4
Investigate deep trench, remove
vegetation — work has started
2646427 Reunion Ranch DP 2-3 . . ) L
Re-investigate if loop is still welded
to gate to attach chain
2722342 591B Katie Dr, DP 2-4 ] .
Clean sediment from inlet
2723264 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2
Brush removal
2751630 Reunion Blvd DP 2-3 ) .
Clean sediment from inlet
2461680 M i DP 2-2
ary Elise Way, Small Erosion issue, hole forming by
Inlet — work has started
2461783 Jacksdaw Dr, DP 3-3 Erosion issue at embankment of
Pond — work has started
2751858 Jacksdaw Dr, DP 3-1 Investigate/repair washout in Bull
rock, remove damaged silt fencing
2828530 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2 Remove dirt pile from
embankment
2828597 Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Repair ruts and erosion, clear
vegetation from outfall pipe
2847803 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2 Clear vegetation around outfall
2847842 Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Erosion along embankment
2848067 Jacksdaw Dr, DP 3-3 Add lock gate togate at pond
entrance
2848095 Denise Cove Storm Drain Clean inlet
2848096 Jane Cove Storm Drain Clean inlet




2873609 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2 Locate and clear vegetation around
outfall

2873620 591B Katie Dr DP 2-4 Clear vegetation around outfall pipe

2522386 Mary Elise Way DP 2-2 Clean inlet, erosion present at

shoreline & inlet/outlet structures




Loty POA\FT BER) ¢ g .

ST S AT T
W

V/N LIUSWIPaS PUB SLIGEp JO JES]D BaJe Ul SI9jul |je aly
V/N feuoijesado pue paso|d aAjeA ssedAq Aouabiawg
Y/N jeuonesado uado aajea abieyasiq
Y/N &("9)@ ‘sjjem ueigeb ‘sjjem Buiuie)al ‘abeulelp a1asouoa ‘sadid) sjuswiaja jesnjaons o) abewep Auy
V/IN 329y2 pue sdoj Jno ueajo uado aroway ¢ Buidid ujelp J3puUn SYY Ul PUNO) JUSUIPIS SEM
V/IN adid ey no ay} punoue uoneabaa jo uonipuoy
V/N 2e|paw ayj Jo uoyipuod
YIN ¢BaJE UISE] U] PUNO) Ysniq Jo Saal]
VIN 2Wbiay uy g1 mojaq uoejaBan s
V/N ¢S JB punoj yselj
VIN seae Jayj pues ay) uj yidep Juswipas
Y/N ¢Aequo} ayy ul yidap jJuawipasg
V/IN 2sinoy gp uyum ujelp puod ay) seoq
YIN |aA?] 131eM puod

NIVda WHOLS - IA0D 3SINIA

uonEes0] puod

VHNVEA ANNYL “HO3L

rolec # OM

zzozioziL  3Lva

HONVY NOINNZY *LORILSIG

1371N0 NIvia
NOILD3dSNI ANOd ¥3LVMINYHOLS

SNOILVYYIJO IYNLODONYLSYIINI Y3 LVYM

AdVINVAIANI




woday puogiint 23 ¥ puo, QIO ouey IOV NSOV

SLINIAWOD

V/N 2IUSLIIPas puUe S1Iqap JO 1832 Bale Ul Siajul [je a1y
V/IN jeuonesado pue paso|d aAjea ssedAq Aouabiowg
VIN {euoneiado uado aAjea sbieyasiqg
YIN 2("939 ‘sjem ueigeb ‘sjjem Buiugejas ‘abeuleip 3)a1ou0d ‘sadid) syuswojs [einjonss o3 abewep Auy)|
Y/N )}23yo pue sdoj Jno ues|d uado arowady ¢Huidid ulelp 19pun 3y} U) PUNoj JUBWIPAS SBA
VYIN adid |je} In0 2Yy3 punodse uoieaBan 0 UCIHIPUOD)
V/N Zelpawl ay} Jo uolIpuo)
VYIN 2B3Je UISEeq U] PUNOy YSniq JO S3al)
Y/N Zybiay ur 8| mojaq uonejabaa s
VYIN £3YIS Je punoj ysei)
YIN 2eale 13)|y pues ey} ul Yidap Juawipag
Y/N LKeqioy ay Uy yidep Juawipss
YN 2sinoy g ulyym uiesp puod ayj saoq
Y/N |2A3] Jajem puod

NIVYd WHOLS - IAOD INVF

uo|jeaon puod

VHNVEA AWNYL THO3L
VhoL6Z # OM
720210212 :a1va

HONVY NOINN3Y  :LORILSIA

NOILO3dSNI ANOd ¥3LVMINYOLS

SNOILYY3IdO0 34NLONYLSYYANI ¥3L¥YMm

AAVIAVHANI




‘SINIWHWOD

aooo Jojesay
V/IN ¢puod ayj Jo awn|oA 9y} paonpal pue pPajejnwnoade Sey Jusipas
ON Zluswjuequia Jo wep ay) uo Juasaid uociyejabaa Apoom 10 saal]
ON ¢juasaid sjue|d aAsieAu|
ON uasaid swoo|q aeb|e aAlssadax]g
aooos Zadid |je} 1no ayj punoue uone}abaa jo uonpuo)
VIN Lleuoneiado uado aajea abieyasiqg
S3aA £,S2In)oN13s }9[3N0 10 Ss)ajul 3y} punote BulNaso uoisoly
S3A Zaujjaioys je juasaid uoisoly
S3IA Zjusunjuequua ay} uj a|qistA sdaas 10 s)yoeId ‘IjoyYulS
ON &9Is je punoj ysel)
S3IA £ S1JQap 1O JuUaWpas pPaje|nWNIde 1o JBajd S)aju|
S3IA Juonipuod [einjanis poob ui sjaju|
RR(RE| Zl9A3] J9jem puod

(3S1N3 AYVIN) 2-2 JOM

uoijeaon puod

VIvaA AWNVL “HO3L
La44'11T4 ‘# OM
ceoe/oe/L :31vda

HONVY NOINN3Y -1ORilSIa

SANOd 13Mm
NOILDO3dSNI ANOd ¥31LVMINNOLS

SNOILIYY3d0 3YNIONEYLISYHANI HILYM

AAVIANVHINI




Hoday puodynr 0\2202\sHoday O3 ¥ PuogQIDMMY) QIDM Youey LoNB\SILISIAUNN-S A0V

‘SLINIWINOD

V/IN ¢puod ay} Jo awnjoA ay) pasnpal pue pajejnwnade sey JUaWipag
ON Zjuaunjuequia Jo wep ayj} uo Juasaid uorne}aboa Apoom 1o saaly
ON juasaid sjuejd aasieAu|
ON Zjuasald swoo|q sede aa|Ssaod9xy
ON 2adid |[e} Ino 3y} punoie uoije}dabaa Jo uolpuod
V/N Zleuopelado uado oAjea ebieyssiq
ON £521njonJ3s JaIno 1o sjajul ayj punote Buindso uoisoiz
ON Zouljaioys je jussaid uoisoig
ON Zlusunjuequa ayj uj a|qisiA sdaas 10 S)IeId ‘BjoyYyuls
ON £9)iS Je punoy yseij
S3A £ SHQGap JO JusBWIpas paje|nwinaoe Jo Jeald S}aju|
S3IA Zuonipuo? [ein3anas poob ui syeju|
11N4 ¢I2A3] Jajem puod

(HONVY NOINN3IY 672 SSOYOV) £-2 JOM

uoijeso puod

YIIVEA AWNYL -"HO3L
144411:14 # OM
&eoz/oc/L “m._.<n_.

HONVY NOINNZY -LORLSId

SANOd 13IM
NOILO3dSNI ANOd ¥31LVMINYHOLS

SNOILYY¥3IdO IYNLONYLSYYINI YILVYM

AAVIAVYINI




it ) Q15 fa yausy SOV

WodRx PUONT o3v

) ~ 'SINJIWWOD
S3A Juswipas pue s1Igap Jo 1e3]d eale u] S)ajul |je aly
V/N Jeuoneiado pue paso|a aAleA ssedAq Asuabiawg
aooo xog J1oRi|ds Jo [auuey) apjouL
ON &("0)0 'sjjem ueiqebh ‘sjjem Buiuiejal ‘abeurelp ajalouoa ‘sadid) sjuswaje |einjonys 03 ommE.mu Auy
aooo 399y3 pue sdoj Jno uesjo uado sroway ¢buidid ujelp Jepun ayj Ul PUNO} JUSWIPSS SeM
aooo j ’ adid |jej Ino ay3 punose uone}abaa Jo uonpuo)
aooo ; . i 2EeIpaw 3y} Jo uopipuc)
ON ¢eale uiseq Ul punoy ysniq Jo sd3l ._..
S3A ] biay u1 g1 mojaq uoneloban s|
ON . ...ww._m je punoy yseij
uE = ul : Zeale I3y pues ayj uj Yidap juawiipas
W€~ . 2Aeqioy ayj ul yidap Juawipag
S3A - ; . . . 4SINoY g LiyuMm Em._u.ucoa.ﬂﬁ s90Q
AYQ = : [9A3) 19)EM u:om.
(311¥X 40 ANT) 2 JOM| _ _ : _ uoneso puod
INILSAS ¥3171d ANVS
VHHVEA AWNVL THOAL NOILO3dSNI ANOd M3LVMINHOLS
. vvoLeZ u%g SNOILYY3IdO JYNLINYLSVEINI ¥ILYM
T _m MUYV EINIO)
HONVY NOINNZN  :1Oi¥l1sia




woday puogmr a3y i ) QIO M youey INW-SdOVI

SIN3INNOD

v1va ON 2puod ay) jo 3WN|[oA ay} pasnpal pue paje|nWnNade Sey JUswWIpag
ON Jluaunjuequue 10 Wiep ayj uo Juasald uopjejaboA Apoom Jo soal
ON 2uasaad sjuejd aas[eau)
ON Liussaid suioojq aebfe sAjsssaexy
aooo ¢adid (je} 1no ay) punoase uogejabaa jo uolpuo)
VIN Z2feuogesado uado aafea sbreyosiq
ON 4S9IN30N43S 13[IN0 JO S39|uUY Y} punose BuiNdao uoisoi]
S3IA Zauraioys je yuasaid uosoig
ON 2luaunjuequia 3y} ul A|qISIA sdaas 1o $Hoeld ‘doulg
ON 20¥S je pungy yseil
S3IA 2S1IQap 40 JU3W)Pas Paje|NWINIDE JO JBald SIaJU|
S3IA 2Uonipuos [EMmongs poob ui sj9|u|
TIN4 £I9A3] Jajem puog

(HONYY NOINN3Y SO0LE ANIHIE) L-€ JOM

uoness] puod

VHUVEA ANNVL FHO3L

¥rroL62 #OM

wozioz,  EIva

HONV2 NOINNZY  :LORILSIO

SANOd 13m
NOILO3dSNI ANOd J3LVMINYOLS

SNOILYY3d0 2UNLONYLSYHINT BIivm

NYVNVYANI




Woday puodinf 20ZZ02\5HOdaN D3 ¥ PUOLVCIIDMYY) OIDM UOUBY UOIINIMSIINSIONU NW-SJ OV

‘SINIFWWOD

VIN Zpuod ay} Jo aWn|oA ay} padnpal Pue pajejnwnode sey JUsWipas
ON Zjuawnjuequia Jo wiep 3y} uo juasaid uoijejaboa Apoom 1o s3a1L
ON Juasalid syue|d aasieau|
ON Zjuasaid swoojq eebe aaissasaxgy
aooos 2adid jjes 3no ayj punole uoe)abian jo uonpuo)
S3IA Zleuonerado uado aajea sbieyasiq
VIN 2S31NJoNJ)S }3)IN0 10 S}3jul 3y} punole Huind20 uoisoig
S3A Zauljaioys je juasaid uoisoig
S3A Zjuaunjuequua ayj} ul a|qisiA sdaas Jo S)oeld ‘ajloyjyuis
ON £9lIs je punoj ysel]
Y/N £ SHQap JO JUBWIP3s P3ajejnwnode Jo Jeajd s}aju]
VIN Juonipuod jesnjanyys poob ul sjsjul
%05 ¢I9A3] J3)em puod

(youey uolunay zyLE pulyag) ¢-€ JOM

uoyE30] puod

VHIVEA ANNVL THO3L
olLec # OM
€c0c/0e/L 31iva

HONVM NOINNTY :1ORM1SIa

SANOd 13IM
NOILO3AdSNI ANOd ¥3LVMINNOLS

SNOILVYIdO FUNLDONALSVIAINI ¥3I1VYM

AYVINVHANI




‘puod Jeau a3ejd Supjel SISNOY JO UOHINIIUOI MAU UM YSES] Ul ISEIIIU] I|qEIIPISUO] iT 330N

3UON SUON JUON QUON T 910N 3§ T SION 33§ T IION IS
luasald juasald Juasaid Juasald juasald juasald Juasald
Juasaid juasaid juosald juasald Juasald juasald jussald
pooo pooo pooo poog poon pooo pocp
poog poog pooo pooo pooo pooo poog
3uoN 3uoN auoN 3UoON 3uoN SUON JSUoN
BUON SUON S9A 3UON SUON SUON QUON
UON 3UON JUON S9A AUON auoN JUON
3uoN AUON SIA SOA 3uon auoN auoN
SAA SOA SBA 3uoN SIA 3UON SIA

SIA SaA S3A S3A SIA uUoN SIA
poog pooo poog pooo poog pooo poon
suojjed 0T< suojje8 QT< suo|leS 0T  Suoj|e9 0z  SUO||eD O  SUOeD Oy 1e9 O
nf anf Aew Jay BN LEE] uef
ST, L g6 UWT LT puze’,8  UWTWOT  PUZTIST  YWT'WET

$310N pue $33udINII0 [esnun (6
Ysy oxnbsow (g

sBuuoow ‘3|qed ‘s1ydi ‘1eoyy ‘siawn |aued |0Jju0)
ulelunoy Jouuo (£

dn pjing uojjeuawpas
534N39nJ1S sdwey 81315U0) PUE 13)INO PUE 13)u] JOLUCA (9

sjueq puod apisino pue doj ‘apisui s3dojs JOLUO (S
|eAow?aJ 1o} 3sanbay Jo [eacwal uone1da (¢

JEpa) 1ES ‘MO||IA\ ‘D1INDSOIA (SSAISEAU|
siue|d pagiawqns
sjue|d aloys/jeuidiey
sed|y
suopnedlddy |eajway) -uoe1adap aauesn 4o [0Ju0) (£

Anjenb Ja1em oy uonipuos uone1adsa [z
teAowal Ja111| pue sugag (T

53]e( aJlAlas
£S28L X1 ‘unsny
3Jueqlauing T199
*3u] ‘sainjead Jnenby

PAE HY Hoday =ueuIjUIR puod




SUON AUON SUON BUON SUON SUON JUON
1uasald Juasaid lussald Juasald juasald jussald juasald
Juasald Juasald juasald Juasald Juasaid juasald pUELEIF]

poon pooo pooo pooo pooo pooo pooo

pooo poog poog poog pooo pooo pooo

BUON JUoN auoN AuUoN QUON SUoN BUON

BUON SOA SIA BUON auoN IuoN BUON

BUON JUoN BUON S\ 3UON JUON BUON

JUON SOA SIA SaA AUON 3UON JUON

SOA SaA SIA 3UON S9A SN SBA

SOA SaA S3A SIA SDA SIA SIA

pooo pooo poog poog poog poon poon

suojed oT> Ssuo|e8 QT> SuoOj[eD QT SUOJEeD QT SUOjeD Q¢ SUO|lED ST  suojed oT

AON mr unf e ay =N CET] uer
T L €06 UWTET puzZ',8  UWZ'UIOT  PUZZIST  UWTWIET

S3)0N PUE §33uaIN320 [esnun (§
ysiy oxnbsow (g

s3unoow ‘ajqea ‘s3ysi| ‘eo|} ‘s1awiy |aued josjuo)
uielunoy JOUUo (/£

dn pjing uoneUaWIPas
$31n190.1)S sdwey 31210U07) PUB 13|INQ PUE 13|U] JONUOW (9

syueq puod apisino pue doj ‘apisu) sado|s J0UOW (5
|eAoway Joy 153nbal Jo [eAowal uolieladap (¢

iBp3) 1[ES ‘MO||IA ‘@3Inbso A (SaAIseAu)
siue|d padiawgng
sjue|d asoys/ieuidiey
sedly
suofzesi|ddy [eaiway) -uoneladap asuesn Jo |0J1uo) (g

Anjenb 1s1em oy uoiipuod uolie1asap (g
|eAowal Ja1y| pue sugaq (T

s3)e(q adNISS
LSL82 XL "unsny
aue 3auIng 1199
*Ju| ‘saunjead sijenby

mepsydef ¥y uoday asueuadlule puod




3uoN SUoN auoN 3uoN auoN auoN 3uoN
juasalg wasald Ju3sald juasald 1uasald Juasald juasalg
jussald w3s3d juasalgd 1uasalg Juasald juasald juasald
pooo poon pooo poon poog pooo pood
pooo poon poog pooo pooo poon poon
SuoN auoN auoN auoN 3UoN 3uoN AuoN
SuoN SOA auon auoN 3uoN 3uoN 3UoN

auoN auoN SuoN 3uoN QauoN 3uoN 3uoN

auoN SaA 3uoN 3uoN auoN SuoN auoN

SIA S3A SSA auaN auoN 3suoN auoN

S9A S3A SOA SUON SUON ENLIN] auoN

pood poog pood paoo poon poon poog
suojed gT> suoje8 oT> suojed gr> suo|edQr> suo|ed gT> suojed QT> suojes gr>
330 inr unr e 1oy BN CEX] uef
T L €06 UWZ',ET  puzz', 8 UWTWOT  PUzZZiST  UWT'WIET

$330N pue $33u3Jn330 [esnun (6|
ysy ounbsai (g

s3ulioow ‘s|gqea ‘s1ys| ‘Jeo|} ‘s1awi) jdued josu0)
uleIUNO} JOUUOA (£|

dn ping uoneuaw|pas
saJn1onas sduley 31a13uo) pue 13[1NQ PUE 3d|ul JoUUO A (g|

syueq puod apisino pue doj ‘apisul sadojs 10HuoW (5
|eAow3aJ Joy 15anbay Jo [eAOWl uo1Ie13B3A (]

JEP3D JES ‘MO|[IM DUNDSOK :SIAISEAU|
sjue|d padiawgns
sjue|d aJ0yS/jeulsiey
Iedy
suopeal|ddy |eajway) -uoije1adap adUBSNN JO |0J1U0)) (£

Aljenb J31em Jo} UDIIPUOD LOIIRIZAA (2
|eAowal )| pue suqaq (1

s3)eq 3dAISS
£S/82 X1 unsny|

aueqjauing 1199

Ju| ‘saimes4 Jjjenby

MeEpsHIEr ¥y Hoday ajueuajulepy puod




BUON JUON QUON JUON aUoN 3UON
Juasalyg uasald juasald juasald Juasald Juasald Juasald
juasald juasald Juasaid Juasald Juasald jJuasald JusAId

poon poos poag poog pooo poo9 poon

poop poog poeo poog pooo poon poog
auoN 3uoN BUON SuoN SUON auoN 3uoN
3uoN SOA SIA JUON JUON 3uoN BuoN

JUON SuoN BUoN SIA 3uonN 3UoN auoN

BUON SIA S3A S3A auoN auoN SUON

SIA AUON auopN AUON SUON AUON S9A

S9A SIA SBA SBA JUON SUON SaA

poon poon poog pooo poog pooo poog

suojjeS oT> suojed Q7> SuO|EDQT SUO||ED O SUOjlED Oy Suo|ep ST  suojed oT

33g mr unf AeW gy BN 933 Uef
T2, L €T 06 UWTET puzzZ', 8  YWZWIOT  PUZZIST  YIrZ'WIET

$3J0N PUB §33u3JN330 (esnuf (6|
ysy oxnbsowy (g

sSuuoouw ‘aqes ‘s3ysi| “1eoy ‘siaw) |2ued |oJIuc)
ulelunoy JoJluo (£

dn p|Ing uoeUBWIPAS
531N39M415 sdwey 339J3U0) PUE IB[INO PUk 131U J0NUOK (9

syueq puaod apisinc pue doy ‘apisul 53dojs Jojuop (5
|eAowsaJ Joj 1sanbau 1o jeAowal uoneladan (i

1ep3) 1S ‘MOj|IM '91INbSo A 1SBAISEAU|
sijue|q padiawgns
sjue|d aloys/jevidiey
sed|y
suoijeol|ddy [eaiway?) -uoneladap asuesn Jo |0suo) (g

Ajljenb Ja1em Joj uojipuod uoize1adan (z|
|eAOW3aJ 43| pue s.uq3q (T

sa1e(q IIAI3S
£SL8L X1 unsny|
aueT 1auing T199|
*au] ‘saunjead Jjenby

[HWPUIM HY Uoday ajueualue|y pucd

SaA



06/28/2022 Erosion Control Inspection Report

GINFRAMARK

HEYL / Operator: PHILIP KEYES

VIOLATION

AMOUNT

567 DELAYNE (LOT 27) SIP (REPAIR NEEDED) 1 1 $500
567 DELAYNE (LOT 27) CS 1 1 $500
LEGEND

BRN - bull rock needed; EC measures not held during rain event 1* Violation $500
CS - clean street and/or curb area 2" Violation _ $750
CW - concrete washout, repair, not holding or needed 1= N’ﬁr‘ﬁ‘“’ |

ECM - EC measures needed; sod, silt fencing, mulch, curlex, geo textile, etc. i \jf‘[ ﬂ'qn

OF - orange fencing; repair or needed | " q‘g}}%ﬂ

PBC - properly bed and cover; sewer/water lines, inspection/reinspection needed | Increments |

RSF - repair silt fencing; replace, extend or needed

SCO - sewer cap off; repair/missing 4" or 6" adaptor plug

SIP - storm inlet protection; repair, replace, clean or needed
TCB - trash containment box; broken, over full or not contained
YL - yard loamed out, needs sod within 5 days

OTHER - as described in report

Note: District may charge for District property replacement cost or trash removal at cost plus 15%

Inframark CONTACTS:
Ronja Keyes 281-608-4361

Page 1 of 1




G INFRAMARK AtiANEL SRIRN SAT e IS REsH o 22eRe

WATE® INFEASTHUC ) URL OFCEATIONS ) a »
PDerd

OWNER ADDRESS VIOLATION PIC#| VIOLATION | AMOUNT
NUMBER OF FINE
DILIP NAIK 1034 JACKSDAW CSs 1 1
ARCHANA NAIK
LEGEND
BRN - bull rock needed; EC measures not held during rain event 1st Violation $500

CS - clean street and/or curb area $750
CW - concrete washout, repair, not holding or needed

ECM - EC measures needed; sod, silt fencing, mulch, curlex, geo textile, etc.

OF - orange fencing; repair or needed

PBC - properly bed and cover; sewer/water lines, inspection/reinspection needed
RSF - repair silt fencing; replace, extend or needed

SCO - sewer cap off; repair/missing 4" or 6" adaptor plug

SIP - storm inlet protection; repair, replace, clean or needed

TCB - trash containment box; broken, over full or not contained

YL - yard loamed out, needs sod within 5 days

OTHER - as described in report

Fines may be levied per lot, per day
Note: District may charge for District property replacement cost or trash removal at cost plus 15%

Inframark CONTACTS:
Ronja Keyes 281-608-4361




